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INDBPENDENT AUDITOR'S RBPORT

TO THE MEMBERS OF SINDHUJA MICROCREDIT PRIVATE LIMITED

Report on the Audit of the Ind AS financial statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Ind AS financial statements of SINDHUJA MICROCREDIT
PRMTE LIMITED ("the Compdny"), which comprise the Balance sheet as at 3lst March 2025, and

the statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), statement of changes in equity

and statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the Ind AS financial statements, including

a summary of material accounting policies and other explanatory information. (hereinafter referred to as

"the Ind AS financial statements").

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid

Ind AS financial statements give the information required by the Companies Ac!2013 in the manner so

required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under

section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended,

("Ind AS") and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the

Company as at March 31,2025, its profit (including other comprehensive income), changes in equity and

its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section

143(10) of the Companies Act,2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in

the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Ind AS financial statements section of our report. We

are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered

Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the Ind AS

financial statements under the provisions of the Companies Act,2013 and the Rules thereunder, and we

have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of
Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis

for our opinion on the financial statement.

Bmphasis of Matter

We draw attention to note no. 58 to tl,e Ind AS financial statements with regards to requirement to maintain

minimum 75o/o of the company's total assets in the nature of "Microfinance loans" as define under

Quali$ing Assets Criteria of Master Direction - Reserve Bank of India (Regulatory Framework for

Microfinance Loans) Directions, 2022. As on March 31,2025, the Company's qualif,ring assets are 69.65

%o of their total assets. Accordingly, the Company has written a letter dated April 30,2025 to Reserve Bank

of India (RBI) requesting waiver for not meeting the minimum Qualiffing Assets Criteria. The Company

has also apprised RBI of the circumstances under which this breach occurred and has sought time till March
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31,2026 to comply with the Quali$ing Assets Criteria of Master Direction. However, requisite approval

frorn RBI has not been received till the date of this report.

Our report is not modified in respect of this matter.

Information Other than the Ind AS financial statements and Auditor's Report Thereon

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information. The other

information comprises the information included in the Board report but does not include the Ind AS

financial statements and our auditor's report thereon. The Company's Board report is expected to be made

available to us after the date of this auditor's report.

Our opinion on Ind AS financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express

any form ofassurance conclusion thereon,

In connection with our audit of the Ind AS financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other

information identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether the other

information is materially inconsistent with the Ind AS financial statements, or our knowledge obtained in

the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

When we read the Board report identified above, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement

therein, we are required to communicate the matter to those charged with governance and take necessary

actions, as applicable under the relevant laws and regulations. .

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Ind AS financial

statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Cornpanies

Act, 2013 ("the Act") with respect to the preparation of these Ind AS financial statements that give a true

apd fair view of the financial position, financial performance including other comprehensive income,

changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally

accepted in India, including the Indian accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under section 133 of the

Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the

provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Cornpany and for preventing and detecting frauds

and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments

and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate

internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of
the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statement that give a

true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the Ind AS financial statements, lnanagement is responsible for assessing the Company's

ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using

the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to

cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the company's financial reporting process.
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Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Ind AS financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Ind AS financial statements as a whole

are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that

includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level ofassurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit

conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements

can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could

reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these Ind AS

financial statements.

As paft of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professionaljudgment and maintain professional

scepticisrn throughout the audit. We also:

Identiff and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Ind AS financial statements, whether due

to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit

evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting

a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may

involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal

control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures

that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3Xi) of the Companies Act, 2013, we are

also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial

controls system in place and the operating effectiveness ofsuch controls.

Evaluate tlie appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting

estimates and related disclosures made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and,

based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or

conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. If
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report

to the related disclosures in the Ind AS financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to

rnodity our opinion. Our conciusions are baseci on the auciit evicience obiained up io iire daie r.ri our

auditor's repoft. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as

a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Ind AS financial statements, including

the disclosures, and whether the Ind AS financial statements represent the underlying transactions and

events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the Ind AS financial statements that, individually or in

aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the Ind

AS financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in

fi: ("r--a(f)
a I! 1l

'f{

MEi-l



S S KOTHARI MEHTA
&CO LLP---

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

(i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the

effect of any identified misstatements in the Ind AS financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope

and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal

control that we identifo during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant

ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other

matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related

safeguards.

Other Matters

The cornparative financial information of the company for the year ended 31 March 2024 were prepared

in accordance with the Accounting Standards specified under section 133 of the act, read with rule 7 of the

companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 as amended and other accounting principles generally accepted in India

which were audited by SCV & Co. LLP, Charlered Accountants ("previous auditors") who issued an

unmodified auditor's report dated June 1g,2024. Those reports are furnished to us by the management and

relied upon by us for the purpose of issuing this report on the Ind As financial statements for year ended

March 31,2025.

The figures for the year ended March 31,2024 have been derived after rnaking suitable adjustments to the

accounting heads from their Indian GAAP values following accounting policies and accounting policy

choices (both mandatoryexceptions and optional exemptions availed as perIndAS l0l) consistentwith

that used at the date of transition to Ind AS (April 01,2023) and as per the presentation, accounting policies

and grouping/classifications followed as at and for the year ended March 3l ,2025, which has been audited

by us.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of the above matter

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

A" rcnrrired hrr rhe Comnanies (Arrditor's Renort) Order. 2020 (the "Order") issued bv the Central,^^_ _,,^-I__--,," \ ,_, | /

Government in terms of Section 143 (l l) of the Act, we give in "Annexure A" a statement on the matters

specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

2. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit, we report that:-

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge

and beliefwere necessary for the purposes ofour audit.

b) In our opinion, proper books ofaccount u, ."quir"d by law have been kept by the Company so far as

it appears from our examination of those books
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c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive Income,

Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flow dealt with by this Report are in

agreement with the books of account.

d) [n our opinion, the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements comply with the Indian Accounting Standards

specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 3lst March,2025 taken on

record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 3lst March, 2025 from

being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

0 With respect to the maintenance of accounts and other matters connected therewith, reference is made

to our remarks in paragraph 2(iXvi) below on reporting under Rule I l(g) of the Rules.

g) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to Ind AS financial

statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate

Report in "Annexure B".

h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with the

requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended :

The provisions of section 197 readwith Schedule V to the Act are not applicable to the Company since

the Cornpany is not a public company as defined under section2(71) of the Act. Accordingly, repofting
under section 197(16) is not applicable.

i) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Repoft in accordance with Rule I I

of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information

and according to the explanations given to us:-

the Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its Ind

AS financial statements. Refer Note 45 to the Ind AS financial statements'

The Company has made provision, as required under the applicable law or Ind AS, for material

foreseeable losses, if any, on long-term contracts including derivative contracts. -ReferNote
+i to the inci nS frnanciai statements.

there were no amounts which were required to be transferred, to the Investor Education and

Protection Fund by the Company during the year ended 3l'1 March 2025.

a. The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds

(which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been advanced or loaned or

invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds)

by the Company to or in any other person or entity, including foreign entity ("Intermediaries"),

with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall,

whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any
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manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

b. The Management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds
(which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been received by the Company
from any person or entity, including foreign entity ("Funding Parties"), with the understanding,

whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether, directly or
indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by
or on behalf of the Funding Parfy ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, securifr
or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

c. Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and appropriate in the

circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the

representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 1 1 (e), as provided under (a) and (b) above,

contain any material misstatement.

tlre company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year ended March 31,2025

Based on our examination which included test checks, the Company has used accounting

software and loan management software for maintaining its books of account which has feature

of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has operated throughout the year for all
relevant transactions recorded in the software.

Fufther, during the course of our audit we did not come across any instance of audit trail feature

being tampered with, wherein tlie audit trail functionality was enabled and the audit trail has

been preserved by the Company as per the statutory requirements for record retention.

vl.

For S S Kothari Mehta & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants

Firm's Registration No. 0007s6NArs0044 i

\,.ls,,"r ra,:

Vijay Kumar
Partner ,, rllr;1,r'

Membership No. 092671

UDIN: 2509261 IBMOFCRS786

Place: New Delhi

Date: June 02,2025
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ANNEXURE *A" TO THE INDEPENDENT AT]DITOR'S REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph I under 'Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements' section of
our report to the Members of SINDHUJA MICROCRBDIT PRMTE LIMITED of even date)

To the best of our information and according to the explanations provided to us by the Company and the

books of account and records examined by us in the normal course of audit, we state that:

i. In respect of the Company's Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible Assets:

a. (A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment and relevant details of
right-of-use assets.

(B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible assets.

b The Property, Plant & Equipment have been physically verified by the management during

the year and no material discrepancies were identified on such verification.

c.

d

e

Based on the information and explanation given to us, the Company does not have any

immovable property, hence repofting under clause 3(i) (c) of the order is not applicable.

According to the infonnation and explanation given to us and based on our examination of
records, the Company has not revalued any of its Property, Plant and Equipment (including

right- of-use assets) and intangible assets during the year.

According to the information and explanation given to us and based on our examination of
records, no proceedings have been initiated during the year or are pending against the

Cornpany as at March 31, 2025 for holding any Benami property under the Benami

Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (as amended in 2016) and rules made thereunder.

(a) The Company does not have any inventory and hence reporling under clause 3(iiXa) of the Order

is not applicable.

(b) The company has not been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of rupees five crore.

Accordingly, the requirement to report on paragraph 3 (ii) (b) of the order is not applicable to the

corrpany.

ll 'i 
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(a) Since, the Company's Principal business is to give loans and accordingly, the requirement to

repoft on clause 3(iii)(a) of the Order is not applicable as the Company.

(b) In our opinion, the investments made and the terms and conditions of the grant of all loans

provided, during the year are, prima facie, not prejudicial to the Company's interest. Company

has not provided any guarantee or security to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships

or any other parties.

(c) In respect of loans granted by the Company, the schedule of repayment of principal and

payment of interest has been stipulated and the repayments of principal amounts and receipts

of interest are generally been regular as per stipulation. Since, the Company is NBFC and

considering the significant volume of transactions with number of borrowers furnishing the

number of cases of default is practically not feasible.

(d) In respect of loans granted by the Company, the details of total amount overdue above 90 days

are as follows:-

(Amount in Rs. in Lakhs)

Type of Loan Nos of
Cases

Principal
Overdue

Interest
Overdue

Total
Overdue

JLG (Joint Liability Group) 4,094 49.63 4.91 54.54

MSME (Micro Small &
Mediurn Enterprises Loatts)

1 14.66 0.90 15.56

Total 4,095 64.29 5.81 70.10

Basecl on the informatiorr & explanations given to us, reasonable steps have been taken by the

Company for the recovery of the Principal & Interest.

(e) Reporting under clause 3(iii)(e) of the Order is not applicable as the Cornpany is a Non-

Banking Financial Company whose principal business is to give loans.

(0 The Company has not granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans either repayable

on demand or without specifuing any tenns or period of repayment during the year. Hence the

reporting under clause 3(iiiX| is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no transactions which are

required to be reported under Section 185 of the Ac| accordingly, provisions of section 185 of the

Act are not applicable to the Company. However, the Company has complied with the provisions of

section 186 of the Act in respect of investments made.

The Company has not accepted any deposit or amounts which are deemed to be deposits. Hence'

'i[1: {t
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VI The maintenance of cost records has not been specified by the Central Government under sub-

section ( I ) of section 148 of the Companies Ac| 2013 for the business activities carried out by the

Company, Hence, reporting under clause 3(vi) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

vll In respect ofstatutory dues:

In our opinion, the Cornpany has generally been regular in depositing undisputed statutory

dues, including Goods and Services tax, Provident Fund, Employees' State Insurance, Income

Tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax, duty of Custom, duty of Excise, Value Added Tax, Cess and

other material statutory dues applicable to it with the appropriate authorities.

There were no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Goods and Service tax, Provident

Fund, Employees' State Insurance, Income Tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax, duty of Custom, duty

of Excise, Value Added Tax, Cess and other material statutory dues in alrears as at March 31,

2025 for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable.

According to the records and information and explanation given to us, there are no dues in

respect ofstatutory dues referred to in vii (a) above which have not been deposited on account

of any dispute.

There were no transactions relating to previously unrecorded income that have been surrendered or

disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 196l (43 of
196r).

a,

b

vlll

IX (a) According to the information and explanation given to us and based on our examination of
records, the Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other borrowings or in the payment

of lnterest thereon to any lender and hence, reporting under clause 3(ix)(a) of the Order is not

applicable.

(b) Based on the information and explanations obtained by us, the Company has not been declared

wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or govemment or any government authority.

(c) Money raised during the year by the Company by way of term loans has been applied for the

nrrrnose for which fhev were raised other than temporarv deployment pending application of proceeds.

(d) According to the inforrnation and explanation given to us and based on our overall examination

of records, funds raised on short- term basis have, prima facie, not been used during the year for

long-term purposes by the Company.

(e) According to the information and explanation given to us and based on our examination of records,

the Company has not taken any funds from any entity or person on account of or to meet the

obligations of its subsidiary, associate or joint venture. Further, the company does not have any

subsidiary, associate or joint venture. Hence, reporting under clause 3(ix)(e) of the Order is not

N\l', iJ rt'' I
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(f) According to the information and explanation given to us and based on our examination of records,

the Company has not raised loans on the pledge of securities held in its subsidiary, associate or joint
venture during the year. Fufther, the company does not have any subsidiary, associate orjoint venture.

Hence, reporting under clause 3(ixXf) of the Order is not applicable.

(a) The Company has not raised moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer
(including debt instruments) during the year and hence reporting under clause 3(x)(a) of the Order is

not applicable.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of
records, during the year, The Company has issued Optionally Convertible Redeemable Preference

Shares (OCRPS) in compliance with the provisions of Section 42 and section 62 of the Act read

with Rule l3 of the Companies (Share Capital and Debentures) Rules,2014 and the funds raised

through such issuance have been utilized for the intended purpose. The company has not made any

preferential allotment or private placement of shares or convertible debentures (whether fully,
partly, or optionally convertible).

(a) During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company carried out in

accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, we have neither come across

any instance of fraud by the Company or on the Company being noticed or repofted during the

year, nor have we been informed of such case by the management.

(b) According to the information and explanation given to us and based on our examination of
records, no repoft under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act has been filed in Form

ADT-4 as prescribed under rule l3 of Cornpanies (Audit and Auditors) Rules,2014 with the Central

Govemment, during the year and upto the date of this report.

(c) As represented to us by the management, there are no whistle-blower complaints received by

the Cornpany during the year.

The Company is not aNidhi Company and hence reporting under clause 3(xii) of the Order is not

applicable.

11 rrlrr opinion, fhe Companv is in compliance with Section 177 and I 88 of the Comoanies Act" 2013

with respect to applicable transactions with the related parties and the details of related patty

transactions have been disclosed in the Ind AS financial statements as required by the applicable Ind

AS,

(a) According to the information and explanation given to us and based on our examination of
records, in our opinion the Company has an adequate internal audit system commensurate with the

size and the nature of its business.

(b) We have considered, the internal audit reports for the year under audit, issued to the Company

during the year and till date of our report, in determining the nature, timing and extent of our audit

EF/\I\
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XV According to the infonnation and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records

of the Company, the Company has not entered into non-cash transactions with directors or persons

connected with him. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xv) of the Order is not applicable.

XVI (a) The Company has registered as required, under Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act,
1934.

(b) The Company has not conducted any Non-Banking Financial activities without a valid Certificate

of Registration (CoR) from the Reserye Bank of India as per the Reserve Bank of India Act,1934.

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the

records, the Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made

by the Reserve Bank of India, accordingly, paragraph 3(xvi)(c) of the Order is not applicable.

(d) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the

records, there is no core investment company within the Group (as defined in the Core Investment

Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016).

xvil The Company has not incurred cash losses during the financial year covered by our audit and the

imrnediately preceding financial year.

XVIII There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year and accordingly, requirement

to repoft on Clause 3(xviii) is not applicable to the Company.

XIX. On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets and

payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the Ind AS financial statements

and our knowledge of the Board of Directors and Management plans and based on our examination

of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to

believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report indicating that Company

is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due

within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an

assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting is based on

the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that

all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged

by the Company as and when they fall due.

XX (a) There are no unspent amounts towards Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) requiring a transfer

to a Fund specified in Schedule VII to the Companies Act in compliance with second proviso to sub-

section (5) of Section 135 of the said Act. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xxXa) of the Order

N\I: l-tJ'J,1'tt,
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(b) As per information and explanations given to us, there are no ongoing projects with respect to

CSR. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xx)(b) of the Order is not applicable for the year.

For S S Kothari Mehta & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants

Firm' s Registration No. 00075 6Nn\f 5 0044 I

Vijay Kumar
Parhrer
MembershipNo.
UDIN: 2509267 |BMOFCR5786

Place:New Delhi

Date: June,022025
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'oAnnexure B'o to the Independent Auditor's Report of even date on the Ind AS financial statements

of SINDHUJA MICROCREDIT PRIVATE LIMITED.

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the

Companies Act, 2013 ("the Actoo) as referred to in paragraph 2(g) of 'Report on Other Legal and

Regulatory Requirementso of our Independent Auditor's Report

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to Ind AS financial statements of
SINDHUJA MICROCREDIT PRIVATE LIMITED ("the Company") as of March 31,2025 in

conjunction with our audit of the Ind AS financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that

date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Board of Directors of the Company is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal

financial controls with reference to the Ind AS financial statement criteria established by the Company

considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal

Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial

controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business,

including adherence to company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of
frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of
reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act,2013 '

Auditors' Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to

Ind AS financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance

Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the "Guidance Note") issued by

the lnstitute of Chartered Accountants of India and the Standards on Auditing, prescribed under section

143(10) of the Companies Act,2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls.

Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and

perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with

reference to Ind AS financial statements was established and maintained and if such controls operated

effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal

financiai controis systerrr willr reiclcrrue i.u irrd AS fiiiaiicial staieiiients and tlicir opcrating cffcctiveness'

Our audit of internal financial controls with reference to Ind AS financial statements included obtaining an

understanding of internal financial controls with reference to Ind AS financial statements, assessing the

risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of

internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement,

including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the Ind AS financial statements, whether

due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our

audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls system with reference to Ind AS financial
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S S KOTHARI MEHTA
&CO LLP-

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to Ind AS financial statements

A company's internal financial control with reference to Ind AS financial statements is a process designed

to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of Ind

AS financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.

A company's internal financial control with reference to Ind AS financial statements includes those policies

and procedures that ( 1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly

reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the comp any; (2) provide reasonable assurance that

transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of Ind AS financial statements in accordance

with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being

made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide

reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or

disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the Ind AS financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to Ind AS financial statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to Ind AS financial

statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material

misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of
the internal financial controls with reference to Ind AS financial statements to future periods are subject to

the risk that the internal financial control with reference to Ind AS financial statements may become

inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or

procedures rnay deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, based on the records, tlie Cornpany has, in all material respects, an adequate internal

financial controls system with reference to Ind AS financial statements and such internal financial controls

witlr reference to Ind AS financial statements were operating effectively as at March 31,2025, based on

the internal control witli reference to Ind AS financial statements criteria established by the Company

considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal

Filancial Controls Over FinancialReporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For S S Kothari Mehta & Co. LLP
Chnrtered Ac.corrntants

Firrn Reg. No.:- 000756N4{500441
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Vijay Kumar
Partner

Membership No. 092671

IIDIN: 2509267 |BMOFCR5786

Place: New Delhi

Date: June 02,2025



Partlculars Notes As at
31 Merch 2025

As at
31 March 2024

As at
I Aprll 2023

Assets

Financiel assets

Cash and cash equivalents
Bmk balances other than cash and cash equivalents
Derivative financial instruments
Trade receivables

Loans

Other financial asset

Total Financial assets

Non Financial assets

Current tax assets (net)

Defened tax assets (let)
Properly plant and equipment
Right- of- use assets

Intangible assets

Intangible assets under development
Other non-fi nancial assets

Total Non Financial assets

5

6

7

8

9

1t

12

t0
14

l5
l6
t'1

l3

13,5t2.19

9,866.44
72.12

240.13

68,984.06

859.51

21,168.22
3,391.86

lql q?

92,720,31

619.35

t2,411.32
1,655.77

253.30

62,629.48
184.34

9^3,s34.4s 1,18,093.66 77.734.21

475.88
2,038.01

421.49

147.39

3.22
86.93

244.18

133.14

619.52

332.55
254.87

5.95

36.53

220.t7

22.69
285.42
234.18
3t2.84

5.85

r25.93
3.411.tO 1.602.73 986.91

Totsl Assets 96,951.55 r,19,696,39 78.721,12

I

lLiabilities & Equiff
Liabitides
Financial liabilities

Derivative linancial instruments
Payables

Trade payables

(i) total outstanding dues ofmicro enterprises and small
enterpris€s

(ii) total outstanding dues ofcreditors other than rnicro
enlerprises and small enterprises

Debt secudties
Borrowings (other than Debt securities)
I-ease Liability
Other financial liabilities

Total Flnanclal liabilities

Non-Flnanclal liahllldes
Provisions
Otlier non-fi nancial liabilities

Total Non-linancial liabilities
Total Liabilities

Equity
Equity share capital
Corlpulsory Convertible Preference Shares

Other equity
Total Equlty

7

t8

l9
20

2t
22

23

24

25

26

r 8.41

114.67

19,813.68

49,112.31

t69.79
664.54

2j.02

'7.26

50.58

12,289.43

74,681 .71

270.13

1.888.69

5.17

23.93

12,925.98

48,613.36

307.73

r.302.24
69.893.40 89,2 10.82 63.r78,41

323.50
262.15

297.44
257.40

r 39.00
r53.24

585.85 554.84 292.24
63-47it.6570,479.25 89.765.66

t,667 .59

3,028.39
21.776.32

1,665.08

3,028,39
25,237.26

1,662.40

1,97 6.03

11,612.04
26.472.30 29.930.73 15.25r.47

Total Liabilitles and Equity 96.951.55 I,19.696.39 78.727.12

Slndhuja Microcredit Prlvate Limited
CIN: U65990UP2017PTC099006
Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2025
(All amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Summaryoftnaterialaccountingpolicies I to4
The accompariying notes are an integral part ofdre financial stateurents

As per our attached repofi of even date

For S S Kothari Mehta & Co, LLP
Chartered Accountants

Registratlon No. 000756N / N500441

Vljay
Partner
Membership No : 092671

Place : New Delhi
Date: June 02, 2025

For and on behalf of the Board of Dll.ectors
Sindhuia Microcrcdit PrivBte Limited

Abhisheka Kumar
Managing Director
DIN:02972579
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Panksl Kumar SinM
conrpdny s..r.turf, |
MenrbBrshiR No :Qlf 7t

Malldt Singh Dldyah
Wrole Time Director
DIN:07957488

Place : NoidaPlace :Noida
Date: June 02,2025
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Slndhuja Microcredit Private Limited
CIN: U65990I1P2017PTC099006
Statement ofProfit and Loss for the year ended 31 March 2025
(All amounts in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Summary of rnaterial accounting

The accompanying notgs are an integral part ofthe financial statcments

As per orlr attached report of cvcn datc

For S S Kothari Mehta & Co, Ll,P
Chartered Accountants

For and on behalf of the Board of I)irectors
Slndhuia Microcredit Private Llmlted

i1L'urt 'tco- l\r.*t '=-l**^ ) { '-
Abhisheka Kumar Malkit Singh Didvala

I to4

No. 000756N / N500441 t'- t,=-Sirm Registratlgn

b*9r
Vijay Kumar
Partner

Membership No : 092671

Place: New Delhi
Datc: June 02,2025

:#fih.",ffi
Membership No :QJ97t

Managing Director
DIN: 07957488

Place : Noida
Datc: June 02,2025

Whole Time Dircctor
DIN: 07957488

Place : Noida
Date: June 02,2025

For the yenr ended

31 March 2025
Particulars Notes For the year ended

31 March 2024

23,013.69

2,t57.74
205.52

R7.21

20,973.37

76.96
12.79

543.28
23^464-14 21.606.40

226.67 4.14

25.590.85 27.610.54

9,754.98
I 1,285.39

7,333.28

224.43

2,077.78

9,260.38

1,182.36

5,645.6r
192.90

r,290.68

30.675.46 17.51r.93

(4.984.61) 4.038.61

78.42
(1,438.8 l )

(20.5e)

1,325.64
(322.l',l)
(27.92)

(1.440.98) 975.55

(3.543.63) 3,063.06

(68.ee)

t'l.36
41-42

0 1.93)
(51.63) 35.49

(3.492.00) 3,027.57

Revenue from operations
Interest fncome
Fees and commission income

Net gain on fair value changes

Net gain on derecognition offinancial assets

Total Revenue from operation

Items that wlll not be reclasslfied subsequently to proflt or loss
(i) Re-measuremcnt (gains) / losses on defined benetit plans
(ii) Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassificd to profit or loss

Other complehensivc income for the year, net of tax

Earnings per equity share (face value ofRs. 10 each)
Basic (loss)/ profit per oquity share (in Rs.)
Diluted profit per Equity Sharc

Total Expenses

Proflt / (Loss) before tax

Total tax expense

Profit / (Loss) for the year

Other comprehenslve income

Total conrprehensive lncome for the yerr

Other lncome

Total Income

Expenses
Finance costs

impairment of financial instruments

Employee benefits expenses

Depreciation and amoftization expense

Other expenses

Tax expense

Cuftent tax

Defened tax

Earlicr year tax adjustments

32
JJ

34

35

36

44
44

21
28
to
30

31

(7.55)

(7.s5)
fJ.40

8.37
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Sindhuja Microcredit Private Limited
CIN: U65990UP20 17PTC099006
Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 31 March, 2025
(All amowts in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Cash flow from operating activities
Net profit / (loss) before taxation
Adjustments for:
Depreciation and amortisation expenses

Provision for gratuity

Provision for compensated absences

Income frorn unwinding ofExcess interest spread (EIS) receivable

ECL on Loans & Advances Assets

Interest income on unwinding of loans

Finance cost on lease liabiliry
Gain on sale of mutual fund
Gain on sale of loan portfolio through assignment

l,oss on sale of propefty plant and equipment

Loans written off
Amount written back
Share based compensation expense

Gain on prepayment of loan assets

Changes in the fair value of derivative liability
Net (gain)/loss on foreign currency transaction

Unrvinding of security deposits

Operating proflt before working capltal changes

Changes in working capital
Increase / (Decrease) in trade payables

Increase / (Decrease) in other financial liabilities
lncrease / (Decrease) in provision

Increase / (Decrease) in other non-financial liabilities
(Increase) / Decrease in bank balance other than cash and cash equivalents

(Increase) / Decrease in trade receivables

(Increase) / Decrease in loans

(Increase) / Decrease in other financial assets

(Increase) i Decrease in other non financiai assets

Cash used in operations
Income tax paid

Net cash used in operating activities (A)

Cash flow from Invesfing activities
Payment for propefty, plant and equipment and intangible assets

of mumal fund
from redemption ofmutual funds

ibr Intangible assets rurder development

from sale of properfy plant and eqnipment

cash florry used in investing activities (B)

Cash flow from Financing activities
from debt securities

of debt securities
fi'om other than debt seculities

of other tlran debt securities

of lease liabilities (including interest)

from issne of equity shares (including security prerrium)
from issue of cornpulsorily convertible preference shares (including security premiutn)
fiorn issue of optionally convertible redeernable preference shares (including security prerniurn)

Particulars lFor the year ended

llr March 2025

For the year ended

31 March 2024

(4,984.6t)

224.03

4',t.96

67.96

328.84
(3e.2e)

(1 08.e8)
27.96

(1 i 0.37)

0.09

10,810.38
(163.1e)

17.24

(87.23)
(e5.1 5)
148.7t

(3.76).

4,038.61

192.90

61.98

107.00

733.11

825.09

460.60

31.93
(r2.79)

(4e3.6e)

0.68

364.45

24.01

(4e.se)
23.02

t6.'16
(3.24\

6.079.99 6.326.89

239.03

(t,224.1s)
(20.81)

4.95
(6,4',74.58)

(46.21)

13,161.38

(s6s.24)
(24,01

28;t4
586.45
(s7.96)
1 04.1 6

(1,736.09)

59.3 8

(3 1,63 1 .85)
(e8.36)

(t26,67)

11.130.28 {26.545.31)
( 340.57) (l,408.r7)

r 0,789.71 n1-s53.48\

(203.26)
(13,810.00)
13,920.31

(50.40)

(1 90.83)
(7,615.00)

7,627.79
(36.53)

1.53

(213.04)

g 50R 97

(2,133.33)
28,273.70

(s3,844.37)
( 128.30)

8.49

1 1.98

5,442.7'7

(6,096.06)
65,958.22

(39,889.87)
(120.3 1)

9,06

11,619.61

al 8-302-R6) 35-923.42
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Cash Flows from Financing Activities



Net increase in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning ofthe year

and cash equivalents at the end ofthe year

Cash and cash equivalents comprise
with banks

bank accounts

deposits with maturity of less than 3 months
on hand

The accompanying notes are an integral part ofthe financial statements

As per our attached report of even date

For S S Kothari Mehta & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants

(1,6s6.03)
21 168.22

For and on behalf of the Board ofDirectors
Sindhuja Microcredit Private Limited

8,756.90

11.32

\irm Registratigl

b,.lBl-
Vijay Kumar

No.000756N /
p$\:r'Llco 'Pa'*"r

Abhisheka Kumar Malktt Singh Didyala
Managing Director Whole Time Director
DI}I:02972579 DIN:07957488

Parbrer

Membership No :0926'71

Place : New Delhi
Date: June 02,2025

";FM;Comp'any Secrfuryf
Membership No l'il'z t sz t

Place : Noida
Date: June 02,2025

13.st2.t9 21.168.22

t,213.32
t2,284.28

14.59

633.06

20,535.01

0.1 5

13.512.19 2l-168-22

1) The above Cash Flow Statement has been prepared under the 'lndirect Method' as set out in the Ind AS -7 "Statement of cash flow" as specified

ote:
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Sindhuja Microcredit Private Limited
CIN: U65990UP2017PTC099006
Notes to the Material accounting policies and other explanatory
information
(All amounts in NR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

1. Corporatelnformation

Sindhuja Microcredit Private Limited ("the Company") is a private limited Company incorporated

under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (the "Act") and having its registered office at Noida

Uttar Pradesh, India. The Company is a non-deposit accepting Non-Banking Financial Company

('NBFC-ND') and is registered as a Non-Banking Financial Company - Micro Finance Institution
('NBFC-MFI') with the Reserve Bank of India ("RBI") on 1l September 2018. The Company is

engaged primarily in providing micro finance services to women in the rural and semi-rural areas of
India who are enrolled as members and organized as Joint Liability Groups ('JLG').

2. Basis of Preparation of Financial Statements

2.01 Statement of compliance with Ind AS

The financial statements of the Company as at and for the year ended March 31,2025, have been

prepared in accordance with requirements of Indian Accounting Standards ("lnd AS") notified by under

the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules,2015 (as amended from time to time) as

prescribed under Section 133 of the Companies Act,2013 ('Act') , guideline issued by RBI, other

accounting principles generally accepted in India and presentation requirements of Division III of
Schedule III of the Act (Ind AS compliant Schedule III) as applicable to the Company.

In addition, the guidance notes/announcements issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India
(ICAI) are also applied along with compliance with other statutory promulgations which require a

different treatment. The notified Accounting Standards (AS) are followed by the Company insofar as

they are not inconsistent with the NBFC Regulations. Any directions issued by the RBI or other

regulators are implemented as and when they become applicable.

The financial statements have been prepared using the material accounting policies and measurement

bases summarized below. The accounting policies have been used throughout all periods presented in

these financial statements, except where the Company has applied certain accounting policies and

exemptions upon transition to Ind AS. These financial statements have been prepared on a going

concern basis.

For all periods up to and including the year ended I April 2023,the Company had prepared its financial
statements in accordance with accounting standards notified underthe section 133 of the Companies
act 20i3, read together with paragraph 7 of the Companies (zrccounis) Rules,20i4 (indian GAAF)
which is considered as "Previous GAAP"

These financial statements are the first financial statements of the Company under Ind AS. Refer note

4 for an explanation of how the transition from previous GAAP to Ind AS has affected the Company's

financial position and financial performance.

In accordance with Ind AS l0l - "First Time Adoption of Indian Accounting Standards" (lnd AS I 0l ),
the Company has presented a reconciliation of Shareholders' equity under Previous GAAP and Ind AS

as at 31 March, 2024, and I April, 2023 and of the Net Profit as per Previous GAAP and Total

Comprehensive Income under Ind AS for the 3l March, 2024. (Refer note no. 4)

The financial statements for the year ended

the Board of directors on June 02,2025.
authorized and approved



Sindhuja Microcredit Private Limited
CIN : U65990UP201 7PTC099006
Notes to the Material accounting policies and other explanatory
information
(All amounts in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

i. Going Concern

Management is of the view that having regard to the projections of the business prospects, Company

shall be able to continue as a going concern. Accordingly, management considers it appropriate to
prepare these financials statements on a going concem basis,

The financial statements have been prepared using the material accounting policies and measurement
bases summarized as below. These policies are applied consistently for all the periods presented in the
financial statements.

ii. Presentation of financial statement

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS)
as per the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended from time to time and
notified under section 133 of the Companies Ac!2013 (the Act) along with other relevant provisions
of the Act and the Master Direction - Non-Banking Financial Cornpany - Systemically Important Non-
Deposit taking Company and Deposit taking Company (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2020 , as amended
('the NBFC Master Directions') issued by RBI. The financial statements have been prepared on a going
concern basis.
The Company uses accrual basis of accounting except in case of significant uncertainties. The financial
statements are presented in Indian Rupees (INR) and all values are rounded to the crores up to two
decimals, except when otherwise indicated. The regulatory disclosures as required by RBI Master
Directions to be included as a part of the Notes to Accounts are also prepared as per the Ind AS financial
statements.

The Company presents its balance sheet in order of liquidity. Financial assets and financial liabilities
are generally reported gross in the balance sheet, They are only offset and reported net when, in addition
to having an unconditional legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts without being
contingent on a future event, the parties also intend to settle on a net basis in all of the following
circumstances:

(a) The normal course of business
(b) The event of default
(c) The event of insolvency or bankruptcy of the Group and / or its counterparties

iii. Historical cost convention

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for certain financial
instruments which are measured at fair value at the end of each reporting period, as explained in the
accounting policies below. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to
transfer a liabilitv in an orderlv transaction hetween market narticipants at the measrrrement date.

iv. Functional & presentation currency

The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees which is the functional currency of the
Company and the currency of ttre primary economic environment in which the Company operates and
all values are rounded to the nearest lakhs, except when otherwise indicated.

v. Use of estimates, judgements and assumptions

In preparing these financial statements, management has made judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the application of Company's accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets,
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Sindhuj a Microcredit Private Limited
CIN : U65990LP201,7PTC099006
Notes to the Material accounting policies and other explanatory
information
(All amounts in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates. example .. Business
model assessment, effective rate of Interest.

3. Material accounting policies
Material accounting policies adopted by the Company are as under:

3.01 RevenueRecognition

Revenue (other than for those items to which Ind AS 109 Financial Instruments are applicable) is
measured at fair value of the consideration received or receivable. Ind AS 115 Revenue from conffacts
with customers outlines a single comprehensive model of accounting for revenue arising from contracts
with customers and supersedes current revenue recognition guidance found within Ind ASs.
The Company's revenue primarily consists of interest income on loans, interest income on fixed deposit,
Interest income in business correspondent arrangement, Income from direct assignment and dividend
Income.

The Company recognises revenue from contracts with customers based on a five-step model as
set out in IndAS 115:
Step 1: Identify contract(s) with a customer: A contract is defined as an agreement between two or more
parties that creates enforceable rights and obligations and sets out the criteria for every contract that
must be met.
Step 2: Identi$ performance obligations in the contract: A performance obligation is a promise in a
contract with a customef to transfer a good or seryice to the customer.
Step 3: Determine the transaction price: The transaction price is the amount of consideration to which
the Company expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring promised goods or services to a
customer, excluding amounts collected on behalf of third parties.
Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations in the contract: For a conffact that
has more than one performance obligation, the Company allocates the transaction price to each
perfonnance obligation in an amount that depicts the amount of consideration to which the Company
expects to be entitled in exchange for satisSring each performance obligation.
Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the Company satisfies a performance obligation.
Revenue from confiacts with customers is recognised when control of the goods or services are
transferred to the customer at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Company expects
to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services.
lncome from other financial charges including cheque bouncing charges, foreclosure charges are
collected from loan customers for early payment/closure of loan and are recognised on realisation.

i. Interest and similar Income

Under Ind AS 109 interest income is recorded using the Effective Interest Rate (EIR) method for all
financiai instruments measured at amortrsed cost, debt instrument measured at FVOCI and debt
inshuments designated at FVTPL. The EIR is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash
receipts through the expected life of the financial instrument or, when appropriate, a shofter period, to
the gross carrying amount of the financial asset.

The EIR (and therefore, the amortised cost of the asset) is calculated by taking into account any discount
or premium on acquisition, fees and costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The Company recognises
interest income using a rate of return that represents the best estimate of a constant rate of retum over
the expected life of the financial instrument. Hence, it recognises the effect of potentially different
interest rates charged at various stages, and other characteristics of the product life cycle (including
pfepayments, penalty interest and charges).
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Sindhuja Microcredit Private Limited
CIN : U65990UP201 7PTC099006
Notes to the Material accounting policies and other explanatory
information
(All amounts in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

If expectations regarding the cash flows on the financial asset are revised for reasons other than credit
risk. The adjustment is booked as a positive or negative adjustment to the carrying amount of the asset
in the balance sheet with an increase or reduction in interest income. The adjustment is subsequently
amortised through Interest income in the statement of profit and loss.

The Company calculates interest income by applying the EIR i.e. Spreading the processing fees over
the period of loan term and recognising the time-based proportionate processing fees to the gross
carrying amount of financial assets other than credit-impaired assets. When a financial asset becomes
credit-impaired and is, therefore, regarded as 'Stage 3', the company calculates interest income by
applying the effective interest rate to the net amortised cost of the financial asset. If the financial assets
cures and is no longer credit-impaired, the company reverts to calculating interest income on a gross
basis.

Gains arising out of direct assignment transactions comprise the difference between the interest on the
loan portfolio and the applicable rate at which the transaction is entered into with the assignee, also
known as the right of Excess Interest Spread (EIS). The future EIS basis the scheduled cash flows on
execution of the transaction, discounted at the applicable rate is recorded upfront in the statement of
profit and loss. EIS is evaluated and adjusted for ECL, expected prepayment & expected collection cost.

ii. Income from assignment transactions

The Company considers direct Assignment or transfer of loan assets as one of the altemative mode of
revenue. Income from assignment transactions i.e. present value of excess interest spread is recognised
when the related loan assets are de-recognised.

iii. Interest fncome on deposit with bank

Interest income on fixed deposits with bank is recognised on a time proportion accrual basis taking into
account the amount outstanding and the interest rate applicable.

iv. Gain / (loss) on fair value changes of financial asset
The Company designates certain financial assets for subsequent measurement at Fair Value Through
Profit or Loss (FVTPL). The Company recognises unrealised gains/(loss) on fair value change of
financial assets measured at FVTPL and realised gains/(loss) on derecognition of financial asset
measured at FVTPL on net basis.

v. Income from business correspondent arrangements

l'lic uuutpauy clicrcd itrio a eoniract lo guaraniee rhird-parry ioans, agreeing to reimburse iosses if enci
customers default. In refum, it earns a fee and recognizes both a financial asset and liability. Interest
income from the asset is recognized over time as and when the services are rendered as per agreed terms
and conditions of contract, while the liability is amortized on a straight-line basis.

vi. Other Income

All other income is recognised on an accrual basis, when there is no uncertainty in the ultimate
r e alization/ col le ction.
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3.02 Property, Plant and equipment (PPE)

An item is recognised as an asset, if and only if, it is probable that the future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Company and its cost can be measured reliably. PPE are
initially recognised at cost. The initial cost of PPE comprises its purchase price (including non-
refundable duties and taxes but excluding any trade discounts and rebates), and any directly attributable
cost of bringing the asset to its working condition and location for its intended use. Subsequent to initial
recognition, PPE are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses. When
significant parts of property, plant and equipment are required to be replaced in regular intervals, the
Company recognises such parts as separate component of assets. When an item of PPE is replaced, then
its carrying amount is de-recognised from the balance sheet and cost of the new item of PPE is
recognised. The expenditures that are incurred after the item ofPPE has been put to use, such as repairs
and maintenance, are normally charged to the statement of profit and loss in the period in which such
costs axe incurred. However, in situations where the said expenditure can be measured reliably and is
probable that future economic benefits associated with it will flow to the Company, it is included in the
asset's carrying value or as a separate asset, as appropriate.

Capital work in progress includes the cost of property plant and equipment that are not yet ready for
their intended use and the cost ofassets not pui to use before the Balance Sheet date.

(i) Transition to Ind AS

On transition to Ind AS, the Company has elected to continue with the carrying value of all of its
properfy, plant and equipment recognized as at 1 April, 2023 measured as per the Indian GAAP and use
that carrying value as the deemed cost of the property, plant and equipment.

Based on technical assessment by the management or as useful life prescribed in Schedule II of the
Companies Act, 2013 represent actual useful life of propefty, plant and equipment.. We have used
following useful lives to provide depreciation of different class of its propei'ty, plant and equipment:

Type of Asset
Vehicle
Electrical equipment
Office equipment
Furniture & fixture
Computer equipment

Estimated Useful Life
8 years

l0 years
5 years

10 years
3 years

Depreciation is calculated on pro-rata basis from the date on which the asset is ready for use or ti1l the
date asset is sold or disposed.
The management believes that these estimated useful lives are realistic and reflect fair approximation
of the perioci over whrch the assets are likely to be used.
Changes in the expected usefu1 life are accounted for by changing the amortisation period or
methodology, as appropriate, and treated as changes in accounting estimates.
The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are
reviewed at each financial year end and adjustedprospectively, ifappropriate

(ii) De-Recognition

Property and equipment is derecognised on disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
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the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is recognised in other operating income
irr the Statement of profit and loss in the year in which the asset is derecognised.
The date of disposal of an item ofproperty, plant and equipment is the date the recipient obtains control
of that item in accordance with the requirements for determining when a performance obligation is
satisfied in lnd AS 115.

3.03 Intangible assets

'Intangible assets are recognized only if it is probable that future economic benefits that are attributable
to the assets will flow to the enterprise and the cost of assets can be measured reliably. The intangible

assets are recorded at cost and are carried at cost less accumulated amortization and accumulated

impairment losses, if any.

Intangible assets are derecognised on disposal or when no fufure economic benefits are expected from
use or disposal. Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are determined as the

difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and recognised in
the Statement of Profit and Loss when the asset is derecognised.

Intangible assets are assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication ttrat the intangible asset

may be impaired. The amortisation period and the amortisation method for an intangible asset with a
finite useful life are reviewed at least at the end of each reporting period. Changes in the expected usefirl
life or the expected pattern of consumption of future economic benefits embodied in the asset are
considered to modify the amortisation period or method, as appropriate, and are treated as changes in
accounting estimates. The amortisation expense on intangible assets with finite lives is recognised in
the statement of profit and loss unless such expendifure forms part of carrying value of another asset.

(i) Transition to Ind AS

On transition to Ind AS, the Compmy has elected to continue with the carrying value of all of its
intangible assets recognised as at I April, 2023 measured as per the Indian GAAP and use that carrying
value as the deemed cost of the intangible assets.

Intangible assets include computer soffware, which are acquired, capitalized and amofiized on a useful
life of assets prescribed under Schedule II of the Companies Act, 2013 .

Type of Asset
Computer software

Estimated Useful Life
3 years

Intangible assets under development

Intangible assets under development represents expenditure incurred in respect of intangible assets
under development and are carried at cost. Cost includes development cost, borrowing costs and other
direct expenditure necessary to create, produce and prepare the asset to be capable ofoperating in the
manner intended by management. These are recognized as assets when the Company can demonstrate
following recognition requirements :

The development costs can be measured reliably
The project is technically and commercially feasible
The Company intends to and has sufficient resources to complete the project
The Company has the ability to use or sell such intangible asset
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The asset will generate probable future economic benefits
Amortization of the asset begins when development is complete and the asset is available for use

3.04 Impairment of non-financial assets

The carrying values of assets / cash generating units at each balance sheet date are reviewed for
impairment. If any indication of impairment exists, the recoverable amount of such assets is estimated

and impairment is recognised, if the carrying amount of these assets exceeds their recoverable amount.
The reduction is treated as an impairment loss and is recognized in the Statement of Profit & Loss. The
recoverable amount is the greater of the asset's fair value less costs of disposal and their value in use-

Value in use is arrived at by discounting the future cash flows to their present value based on an

appropriate pre-tax discount rate to determine whether there is any indication that those assets have

suffered any impairment loss. When there is an indication that an impairment loss recognised for an

asset in earlier accounting periods no longer exists or may have decreased, such reversal of impairment
loss is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss, except in case of revalued assets.

3.05 Leases

The Company evaluates each contract or arrangement, whether it qualifies as lease as defined under Ind
AS 116.

Company as a lessee

A lease is defined as 'a contract, or part of a contract, that conveys the right to use an asset (the

underlying asset) for a period of time in exchange for consideration'. To apply this definition the

Company assesses whether the contract meets three key evaluations which are whether:
the contract contains an identified asset, which is either explicitly identified in the contract or implicitly
specified by being identified at the time the asset is made available to the Company
the Company has the right to obtain substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the identified
asset throughout the period of use, considering its rights within the defined scope of the contract the

Company has the right to direct the use of the identified asset throughout the period of use.

The Company assess whether it has the right to direct 'how and for what purpose' the asset is used
throughout the period ofuse
At lease commencement date, the Company recognizes a right-of-use asset and a lease liability on the
balance sheet. The right-of-use asset is measured at cost, which is made up of the initial measurement
of the lease liability, any initial direct costs incurred by the Company, an estimate of any costs to
dismantle and remove the asset at the end of the lease, and any lease payments made in advance of the
lease commencement date (net of any incentives received)
The Company depreciates the right-of-use assets on a straight-line basis from the lease commencement
date to the earlier of the end of the useful life of the right-ofuse asset or the end of the lease tenn. The
Company aiso assesses the nght-ot-use asset tbr impairment when such indicators exist.
At the cofirmencement date, the Company measures the lease liability at the present value of the lease
payments unpaid at that date, discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease if that rate is readily
available or the Cornpany's incremental borrowing rate. Subsequent to initial rneasurement, the liability
will be reduced for payments made and increased for interest. It is remeasured to reflect any
reassessment or modification, or if there are changes in in-substance fixed payments. When the lease

liability is remeasured, the corresponding adjustment is reflected in the rightof-use asset, or profit and

loss ifthe right-of-use asset is already reduced to zero.
The Company has elected to account for short-term leases and leases of low-value assets using the
practical expedients. lnstead of recognising a right-ofuse asset and lease liability, the payments in
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relation to these are recognized as an expense in profit or loss on a straightline basis over the lease
term.

Determining the lease term of contracts with renewal and termination options where Company
is lessee -

The Cornpany determines the lease term as the non-cancellable term of the lease, together with any
periods covered by an option to extend the lease ifit is reasonably certain to be exercised, or any periods
covered by an option to terminate the lease, ifit is reasonably certain not to be exercised.

The Company has several lease contracts that include extension and termination options. The Company
applies judgement in evaluating whether it is reasonably certain whether or not to exercise the option
to renew or terminate the lease. That is, it considers all relevant factors that create an economic incentive
for it to exercise either the renewal or termination

3.06 Retirement and other employee benefits

a. Short-term obligations
Al1 employee benefits payable whoIly within twelve months of rendering the services are
classified as short-term employee benefits. These benefits include salaries and wages, bonus
and ex-gratia. The undiscounted amount of short-term employee benefits expected to be paid
in exchange for the selices rendered by employees is charged to the Statement of Profit and
Loss in the period in which such services are rendered.

b. Other long-term employee benefit obligations

(i) Defined contribution plans
The Company's contribution to employee provident fund and employee state insurance scheme
are considered as defined contribution plans and are charged as an expense as they fall due
based on the amount of contribution required to be made.

(ii) Defined benefit plan
Benefits payable to eligible employees of the Company with respect to gratuity, a defined
benefit plan is accounted for on the basis ofan acfuarial valuation as at the balance sheet date.
In accordance with the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972, the plan provides for lump sum
payments to vested employees on retirement, death while in service or on termination of
employment in an amount equivalent to 15 days basic salary for each completed year of service.
Vesting occurs upon completion of five years of service. The present value of such obligation
is determined by the projected unit credit method and adjusted for past service cost and fair
value ofplan assets as at the balance sheet date through which the obligations are to be settled.
The resultant actuarial gain or loss on change in present value ofthe defined benefit obligation
is reflected immediately in the balance sheet with a charge or credit recognised in other
comprehensive income in the period in which they occur.

3.07 Taxes

lncome tax expense comprises of curent and deferred tax. Current / Deferred tax is recognized in the
Statement of Profit and Loss except to the extent it relates to a business combination or to an item which
is recognized directly in equity or in other comprehensive income in which case the related income tax
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is also recognised accordingly. Defened tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset when there is a
legally enforceable right to set offcurrent tax assets against current tax liabilities; and the deferred tax
assets and the defered tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority. The
Company only off-sets its deferred tax assets against liabilities when there is both alegal right to offset
and it is the Company's intention to settle on a net basis.

i. Current tax

Current tax is the amount of income taxes payable/ receivable in respect of taxable profit/ loss for a
period. Taxable profit differs from 'profit before tax' as reported in the Statement of Profit and Loss
because of items of income or expenSe that are taxable or deductible in other years and items that are
never taxable or deductible in accordance with applicable tax laws. Current cax assets and liabilities for
the current and prior years are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from, or paid to, the
taxation authorities. Interest income / expenses and penalties, if any, related to income tax are included
in current tax expense. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted,
or substantively enacted, by the end of reporting date in India where the Company operates and
generates taxable income.

ii. Deferred taxes

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward ofunused
tax credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry
forward ofunused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised.
Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets

and liabilities for financial reporting pu{poses and the corresponding amounts used for taxation
purposes. Deferred tax is also recognised in respect ofcarried forward tax losses and tax credits.
Defened tax is recognized based on the expected manner of realization or settlement of the carrying
amount of assets and liabilities using tax rates enacted or substantially enacted by the end of the
reporting period.
Defened tax assets are recognized only to the extent that is probable that future taxable profits will be
available against which the assets can be utilized. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting
date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax benefits will be realized.

iii Current tax and deferred tax for the year
Current tax and deferred tax are recognised in statement of profit or loss, except when they relate to
items that are recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case, the current
and deferred tax are also recoglised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.

3.08 Provisionso Contingent liabilities and Contingent assets

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result
of past events, and it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the anount of the obligation.
When the effect of the time value of money is material, the Company determines the level of provision
by discounting the expected cash flows at a pre-tax rate reflecting the current rates specific to the
liability. The increase in the provision due to un-winding of discount over passage of time is recognised
within finance costs. The expense relating to any provision is presented in the statement of profit and
loss net of any reimbursement in other operating expenses.
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Where it is more likely that no present obligation exists at the end of the reporting period, the entity
discloses a contingent liability, unless the possibility of an outflow of resources embodying economic

benefits is remote. A contingent liability is disclosed, unless the possibility of an outflow of resources

ernbodying economic benefits is remote.

Contingent assets are not recognized in the financial statements, however they are disclosed when an

inflow of economic benefits is probable.

3.09 Determination of F'air Value

The Company measures financial instruments at fair value in accordance with the accounting policies

mentioned above at each balance sheet date.

Fair value is the price at the measurement date, at which an asset can be sold or paid to transfer a

liability, in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date.

The Company's accounting policies require, measurement of certain financial / non-financial assets and

liabilities at fair values (either on a recuning or non-recuning basis). A1so, the fair values of financial

instrurnents measured at amortised cost are required to be disclosed in the said financial statements.

The Company is required to classify the fair valuation method of the financial / non-financial assets and

liabilities, either measured or disclosed at fair value in the financial statements, using a three level fair
value-hierarchy (which reflects the significance of inputs used in the measurement).

Accordingly, the Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for
which sufficient data is available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs

and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are

categorised within the fair value hierarchy described as follows:

'-Leve[ 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

-Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability,

either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived fromprices).

-Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that arc not based on observable market data (unobservable

inputs)

3.10 Financialinstrument

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financiat asset of one entify and a financial
liability or equity instrument of another entity. Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised

when the Entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instruments.

i. Financial assets

Initial Recognition
All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value, in the case offinancial assets not recorded at

fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that arc attributable to the acquisition of the financial
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asset. Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame established
by regulation or convention in the market place (regular way trades) are recognised on the trade date,

i.e., the date that the company commits to purchase or sell the asset.

Subsequent measurement
Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured at amortised cost using effective interest
method. The amortised cost is reduced by impairment losses. Interest income, foreign exchange gains

and losses and impairment are recognised in Statement of profit and loss. Any gain and loss on
derecognition is recognised in statement ofprofit and loss.
Financial investrnent at FVOCI are subsequently measured at fair value. Interest income under effective
interest method, foreign exchange gains and losses and impairment are recognised in Statement of profit
and loss. Other net gains and losses are recognised in OCI. On derecognition, gains and losses

accumulated in OCI are reclassified to statement of profit and loss.

Financial assets at FVTPL are subsequently measured at fair value. Net gains and losses, including any
interest or dividend income, are recognised in statement of profit and loss.

All other equity investments are measured at fair value, with value changes recognised in Profit and
loss, except for those equity investments for which the company has elected to present the changes in
fair value through OCI.

Financial assets measured at amortised cost

A 'debt instrument' is measured at amortised cost if both the following conditions are met:

a. The financial asset is held within a business model with the objective to hold financial assets in order

to collect contractual cash flows.

b. The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely

payments of principal and interest (SPPD on the principal amount outstanding.

After initial measurement at fair value plus directly attributable costs, these financial assets are

subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate (EIR) method. Arnortised cost
is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are
an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included in finance income in the profit or loss. The
losses arising from impairment are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

The measurement of credit impairment is based on the three-stage expected credit loss model described
below.

Business model

The business model reflects how the company manages the assets in order to generate cash flows. That

is, whether the company's objective is solely to collect the contractual cash flows from the assets or is

to collect both the contractual cash flows and cash flows arising from the sale of assets. If neither of
these is applicable (e.g. financial assets are hetd for trading purposes), then the financial assets are

classified as part of 'other' business model and measured at FVTPL.
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SPPI (Solely payments of principal and interest)

Where the business model is to hold assets to collect contractual cash flows or to collect contractual

cash flows and sell, the Company assesses whether the financial instruments' cash flows represent

solely payments of principal and interest (the 'SPPI test'). In makrng this assessment, the Company

considers whether the contactual cash flows are consistent with a basic lending arrangement i.e. interest

includes only consideration for the time value of money, credit risk, other basic lending risks and a

profit margin that is consistent with a basic lending arrangement. Where the contractual terms introduce

exposure to risk or volatility that are inconsistent with a basic lending arrangement, the related financial
asset is classified and measured at fair value through profit or loss. The amortised cost, as mentioned
above, is computed using the effective interest rate method.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a debt instrument and of
allocating interest income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future

cash receipts (including all fees paid orreceived that form an integral part ofthe effective interest rate,

transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the debt instrument, or,

where appropriate, a shorter period, to the gross carryng amount on initial recognition. Transaction

cost and income which is directly attributable to financial assets are amortised over the tenor of the

loan. The amortised cost of the financial asset is adjusted if the company revises its estimates of
payments or receipts. The adjusted amortised cost is calculated based on the original or latest re-
estimated EIR and the change is recorded as 'Interest and similar income' for financial assets. Income
is recognised on an effective interest basis for debt instruments other than those financial assets

classified as at FVTPL.

Financial Instrument measured at fair value through profit or loss

Any debt instrument, which does not meet the criteria for categorization as at amortized cost or as

FVTOCI, is classified as at FVTPL. In addition, debt instruments that meet the amortised cost criteria
or the FVTOCI criteria but are designated as at FVTPL are measured at FVTPL,

ii. Equity instruments

Equity instruments are instmments that meet the definition of equity from the issuer's perspective; that
is, instruments that do not contain a contractual obligation to pay and that evidence a residual interest
in thg igsrrgr's nit a.SSetS Fxamnles of enrrit.' inStrUnrentS irr.ClUde baSi" nr.r'lina^' shqr"s

iii. Financial liabilities

Initial Measurement
Financial liabilities are classified and measure d at amortized cost. All financial liabilities are recognized
initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable
transaction costs. The company's financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and
borrowings including bank overdrafts and derivative financial instruments.

Roc
r(
3t

€
'\'

.9 *



Sindhuj a Microcredit Private Limited
CIN: U65990UP2017PTC099006
Notes to the Material accounting policies and other explanatory
information
(All amounts in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Subsequent Measurement
Subsequent to initial recognition, all liabilities are measured at amortized cost using the effective
interest method except for derivatives, financial liabilities designated for measutement at FVTPL which
are measured at fair value.

Impairment of financial assets

The company applies the expected credit loss (ECL) model for recognising impairment loss as against
norrns of RBI.

ECL is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the company in accordance
with the contract and all the cash flows that the company expects to receive (i.e., all cash shortfalls),
discounted at the original effective interest rate.

Lifetime ECL are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible default events over the expected
life of a financial asset. l2-month ECL is a portion of the lifetime ECL which results from default events
that are possible within 12 months from the reporting date.

The company assesses at each reporting date whether a {tnancial asset such as investments, loans and
advances, non-fund-based limits not designated as FVTPL and security deposits held at amortised cost
and financial assets that are measured at fair value through other comprehensive income are tested for
impairment based on evidence or information that is available without undue cost or effort. Lifetime
Expected credit losses are assessed and loss allowances recognised ifthe credit quality ofthe financial
asset has deteriorated significantly since initial recognition.

No ECL is recognised on equity investments.

Definition of default
The Company considers a financial instrunent defaulted and therefore Stage 3 (credit-impaired) for
ECL calculations in all cases when the borrower becomes 90 days past due on its contractual paynents.

PD estimation process
Probability of Default (PD) is an estimate of the likelihood of default in a homogenous pool of loans,
over it's performance period of following 12 month / lifetime horizon. PD estimation process is done
based on historical & empirical intemal data available with the company. 'Company calculates the 12-
month PD by taking into account the past historical trends of the portfolio, credit performance including
actual default data and Macro economic variables. For credit impaired assets (Stage 3), a PD of 100%
is applied.

Exposure at Default (EAD)
EAD refers to the expected exposure to a borrower in the event of default. The Company considers the
historical prepayments and nses the behavioral maturity of loans while calculating lifetime ECL for
loans. The asset maturify pattern of the loans is used to estimate the expected balance at the end of each
year after the reporting date. The asset maturity pattem of the loans is adjusted for prepaynents using
the historical prepayment rate.

Loss Given Default (LGD)
It is defined as the percentage risk of exposure that is not expected to be recovered in the event of
default. Workout method is used to calculate the LGD by considering post default recoveries from all
defaulted loans and comparing them with the balance outstanding at default. Such recoveries are
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discounted to the date of default using the interest rate of the loan. LGD is then calculated as the % of
exposure notrecovered at the date ofdefault.

Financial assets are classified through the following three stages based on the change in credit risk since
initial recognition:

Stage 1: This includes financial instruments that have not had a significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition or that have low credit risk at the reporting date. For these assets, l2-month expected
credit losses ('ECL') are recognized and interest revenue is calculated on the gross carrying amount of
the asset (that is, without deduction for uedit allowance). l2-month ECL are the expected credit losses
that result from default events that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date.

Stage 2: Includes financial instruments that have had a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition (unless they have low credit risk at the reporting date) but that do not have objective
evidence of impairment. For these assets, lifetime ECL is recognized, but interest revenue is still
calculated on the gross carrying amount of the asset. Lifetime ECL are the expected credit losses that
result from all possible default events over the expected life of the financial instrument.

Stage 3: Includes financial instruments that have objective evidence of impairment at the reporting
date. This stage has obligors that already are impaired (defaulted). For these assets, lifetime ECL is
recognized. And interest revenue is calculated by applying the effective interest rate to the amortised
cost (net of provision) rather than the gross carrying amount.

Credit-impaired financial assets:
At each reporting date, the company assesses whether financial assets carried at amofiised cost and debt
financial assets carried at FVOCI are credit impaired. A financial asset is 'credit-impaired' when one
or more events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset
have occurred.
Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes the following observable data:

a) Significant financial difficulty of the borrower or issuer;
b) A breach ofconffact such as a default or past due event;
c) The restructuring of a loan or advance by the cornpany on terms that the company would not consider
otherwise;
d) It is becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; or
e) The disappearance of an active market for a security because of financial difficulties.

Measurement of ECLs
The measurement of ECL reflects
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outcomes
b) The time value of money
c) Reasonable and supportable information that is available without undue cost or effort at the reporting
date about past events, current conditions and forecasts of future economic conditions.

ECLs are derived from unbiased andprobability weighted estimates of expected loss, and are measured
as follows:

' Financial assets that are not credit-impaired at the reporting date: as the present value of all cash
shortfalls over the expected life ofthe financial asset discounted by the effective interest rate. The cash
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Notes to the Material accounting policies and other explanatory
information
(All amounts in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

shortfall is the difference between the cash flows due to the company in accordance with the contract

and the cash flows that the company expects to receive.

. Financial assets that are credit-impaired at the reporting date: as the difference between the gross

carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows discounted by the effective interest

rate.

. Undrawn loan commitments: as the present value of the difference between the contractual cash flows

that are due to the company if the commitment is drawn down and the cash flows that the company

expects to receive.

ECLs are recognised using a provision for doubtful debts account in profit and loss. In the case of debt
instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income, the measurement of ECLs is
based on the three-stage approach as applied to financial assets at amortised cost. The company
recognises the provision charge in profit and loss, with the corresponding amount recognised in other
comprehensive income, with no reduction in the carrying amount of the asset in the balance sheet.

Write-off
Loans and debt securities are written off (either partially or in full) when there is no realistic prospect
of recovery. This is generally the case when the company determines that the borrower does not have
assets or sources of income that could generate sufficient cash flows to repay the amounts subject to the
write-off. However, financial assets that are written off could still be subject to enforcement activities
in order to comply with the company's procedures for recovery of amounts due.

Derecognition of financial assets and financial liabilities

Financial assets
The Company derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual cash flows from the asset expire or
it transfers its rights to receive contractual cash flows from the financial asset in a transaction in which
substantially a1l the risks and rewards of ownership are transferred. Any interest in ffansfered financial
assets that is created or retained by the Company is recognized as a separate asset or liability.
On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference befween the asset's carrying amount
and the sum ofthe consideration received and receivable is recognised in the statement ofprofit and
loss.

Financial liabilities
A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged, cancelled or
expires. Where an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on
substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an
exchange or modification is treated as derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a
new liability. The difference between the carrying value of the original financial liability and the
consideration paid is recognised in profit or loss.
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Sindhuja Microcredit Private Limited
CIN : U65990uP201 7PTC099006
Notes to the Material accounting policies and other explanatory
information
(All amounts in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Offsetting of fi nancial instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are generally reported gross in the balance sheet. Financial
assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is presented in the balance sheet when the Company
has a lega1 right to offset the amounts and intends to settle on a net basis or to realise the asset and settle
the liability simultaneously in all of the following circumstances:

. The normal course of business

. The event of default

. The event of insolvency or bankruptcy of the Company and/or its counterparties

3.11 Financialguarantee

Financial guarantee are contracts that require the Company to make specified payments to reimburse
the holder for loss that it incur because a specified debtor fails to make payment when it is due in
accordance with the terms of a debt instrument.
Financial Guarantee contract is initially recognised at Fair Value. Subsequently, this guarantee is to be
measured at the higher of an arnount determined based on the expected loss method (as per guidance in
Ind AS 109) or the amount originally recognised less, the cumulative amount recognised as income on
a straightJine basis.

3.12 DerivativeFinanciallnstruments

The Company enters into derivative financial instruments, primarily foreign exchange forward
contracts, currency swaps and interest rate swaps, to manage its borrowing exposure to foreign
exchange and interest rate risks. Derivatives embedded in non-derivative host contracts are treated as

separate derivatives when their risks and characteristics are not closely related to those of the host
contracts and the host contracts are not measwed at FVTPL. Derivatives are initially recognised at fair
value at the date the contracts are entered into and ale subsequently remeasured to their fair value at the

end of each reporting period. The resulting gain/loss is recognised in statement of profit and loss.

Hedge accounting

The Company makes use of derivative instruments to manage exposures to interest rate and foreign
cuffency. In order to manage particular risks, the Company applies hedge accounting for transactions
that meet specified criteria.
Hedges that meet the criteria for hedge accounting are accounted for, as described below:
Fair value hedges the exposure to changes in the fair value of a recognised asset or liability, or an
identified portion ofsuch an asset, liability, that is attributable to a particular risk and could affect profit
or loss.
For designated and qualifuing fair value hedges. the cumulative change in the fair value of a hedging
derivative is recognised in the statement of profit and loss in net gainl(loss) on fair value changes.
Meanwhile, the cumulative change in the fair value of the hedged item attributable to the risk hedged
is recorded as part of the carrying value of the hedged item in the balance sheet and is also recognised
in the statement of profit and loss in net gain(loss) on fair value changes.

3.13 Share-basedpaymentarrangements

The stock options granted to employees pursuant to the Company's Stock Options Schemes, are
measured at the fair value of the options at the grant date in accordance with IND AS 102, Share-based
payments. The fair value of the options is treated as discount and accounted as employee compensation
cost over the vesting period on a straight-line basis. The amount recognised as expense in each year is
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CIN : U65990UP2017PTC099006
Notes to the Material accounting policies and other explanatory
information
(All amounts in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

arrived at based on the number ofgrants expected to vest. Ifa grant lapses after the vesting period, the
cumulative discount recognised as expense in respect ofsuch grant is transferred to the general reserve
within equity.

Fair value of share-based payments
Estimating fair value for share-based payment transactions requires detennination of the most
appropriate valuation model, which depends on the terms and conditions of the grant. This estimate also
requires determination of the most appropriate inputs to the valuation model including the expected life
of the share option or appreciation right, volatility and dividend yield and making assumptions about
them. For the measurement of the fair value of equity-settled transactions with employees at the grant
date, the Company uses a Black-Scholes model.

3.14 Recentpronouncements

Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA") notifies new standard or amendments to the existing standards
under Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as issued from time to time. On March 31,2023 ,

MCA amended the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 by issuing the Companies
(Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2023, applicable from April 1, 2023, as below:

Ind AS 1 - Presentation of Financial Statements
The amendments require companies to disclose their material accounting policies rather than their
significant accounting policies. Accounting policy information, together with other information, is
material when it can reasonably be expected to influence decisions of primary users of general purpose
financial statements. The Company does not expect this amendment to have any significant impact in
its fumncial statements.

Ind AS 12 - Income Taxes
The amendments clari$r how companies account for deferred tax on ffansactions such as leases and
decommissioning obligations. The amendments narrowed the scope of the recognition exernption in
paragraphs l5 and 24 of Ind AS l2 (recognition exemption) so that it no longer applies to transactions
that, on initial recognition, give rise to equal taxable and deductible temporary differences.

Ind AS I - Accounting Policiesn Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors
The amendments will help entities to distinguish between accounting policies and accounting estimates.
The definition of a change in accounting estimates has been replaced with a definition of accounting
estimates. Under the new definition,
accounting estimates are "monetary atnounts in financial statements that are subject to measurernent
uncertainty". Entities develop accounting estimates if accounting policies require items in financial
statements to be measured in a way that involves rneasurement uncertainty. The Company does not
expect this amendment to have anlz sisnificant
impact in its financial statements
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Sindhuja Microcredit Private Limited
CIN: U65990uP2017PTC099006
Reconciliation for the year ended 31 March 2024 and as at 01 April 2023

(All arnounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

4 First time adoption of Ind AS
Upto the Financial year ended March 31,2024, the Company prcpared its financial statements in accordance with accounting standards notified under the Section

133 ofthe Act, read tog€ther with paragraph ? ofthe Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 ("Indian GAAP" or "Previous GAAP").

The financial statement for the period ended 3 I March 2025 is the ftrst set ofFinancial Statements prepared in accordance with the requirements of IND AS 101 -
First time adoption oflndian Accounting Standards. Accordingly, the hansition date to IND AS is 0l Apnl 2O23.

Ind AS Financial Statements as at and for the year ended 3 1 March 2024 have been prepared after making suitable adjustments to the accounting heads from their
Indian GAAP values following accounting policies and accounting policy choices (both mandatory exceptions and optional exemptions availed as per lnd AS 101)

consistent with that used at the date oftransition to Ind AS (01 April 2023) and as per the presentation, accounting policies and grouping/classifications including
revised Schedule III disclosures followed as at and for the year ended 3 1 March 2025.

The impact of above to the equity as at 3 1 March 2024 and I April 2023 (Opening balance sheet date) and on total comprehensive income for the year ended 3 I

March 2024 has been explained as under.

(A) Exemptions availed on first time adoption of Ind AS

Ind AS l0l, Fkst-time Adoption of Indian Accounting Standards, allows first-time adopters cefiain exemptions from the retrospective application of ceftain

requirements under Ind AS. The Company has accordingly applied the following exemptions.

i) Deemed Cost

Ind AS 10i pennits a first time adopter to elect to continue the carrying value ofall its property, plant and equipment as recognised in the financial stat€ments as

at the date oftransitio[ to Ind AS, rneasured as per the previous GAAP and use that as its deemed cost after making necessary adjustments to decotnmissioniug

liabilities. This exemption can also be used for intangible assets. Since there is no change in the functional currency, accordingly, as permitted by Ind AS l0l, the

Company has elected to continue with the carrying values under previous GAAP for all the items ofproperry, plant and equipment. The same election has been

made in respect ofintangible assets also.

ii) Lerses

Ind AS - I 16 is applied with Full retrospective approach, ihe Compary has identified leases since the inception of all lease contracts that are presented ir the

financial statements, and has restated the comparative years presented.

The Company also applied the available practical expedients wherein it:
- has used a single discount rate for leases in hrdia to a portfolio ofleases with reasonably similar characteristics.

- has slected to apply short term lease excmption to leases for which the lease term ends within l2 months ofthe date ofinitial application,

- has excluded the initial direct costs from the measurement ofthe right-of-use asset at the date ofinitial application.

@) Mandatory Exemption on {irst-time adoption of Ind AS

i) Estimates

An entity's estimates in accordance with Ind AS at the date olhansitiorr to Irrd AS shall be consistent with estimates made for the same datc in accordance with
Indian GAAP (after adjustntents to reflect any difference in accounting policies), unless there is objective evidence that those estimates were in enor,

lnd AS estimates are consistent with the estirnates as at thc same datc made in conlbrmity with Indian GAAP, The Company madc cstirnates fbr the following
items in accordance with Ind AS at the datc oftransition as these werc not required under Indian GAAP:

(i) Impairment offinancial assets based on expected credit loss model.
(ii) Fair valuation of Non-current lnvestments.
(iii) Effective interest rate used in calculation of security deposit and retention money.

ii) Derecognition of financial assets and financial liabilities

A firsl-time adopter should apply the derccognition requirements in Ind AS 109, Financial Instruments, prospcotively to transactions oocurring on or after the datc

of a transaction that occuned before the date of transition, it should not recognize those financial asscts and liabilities under Jnd AS (unlcss they qualiff lor
recogrrition as a result of a later hansaction or event). A first-time adopter that wants to apply thc dcrccognition rcquirements in Ind AS 109, Financial
lnstruments, retrospectively from a date of the entity's choosing may only do so, provided that the information needed to apply lnd AS I 09, Financial Instruments,

to llnancial assets and l-rnancial liabilities derecognized as a result oi past transactions was obtained at the tinrc of initially accounting lbr those transactions,

The Company has elected to apply the de'recognize provisions ollnd AS i09 prospectively from the datc oftransition to Ind AS.

iii) Classilication snd measurement of financial assets

Ind AS l0l, First-time Adoption oflndian Accourting Standards, requires an sntity to assess classification and measurement offinancial assets (invcshnent in
debt instrurnents) on the basis ofth€ facts and circurnstances that exist at the datc oftransition to hrd AS.
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Sindhuja Microcredit Private Limitcd
CIN: U65990IJP20t7PTC099006
Reconciliation for the year ended 3l March 2024 and as flt 0l April 2023

(All amounts in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

4,1 Re conciliations

The following reconciliations provide the effect oftransition to Ind AS from lndian GAAP in accordance with Ind AS l0l, First-time Adoption oflndian

The presentation requirements under previous GAAP differs from ind AS, and hence, previous GAAP information has been regrouped for ease of reconciliation
with Ind AS. The regrouped previous GAAP/ Indian GAAP information is derived from the Financial Statements ofthe Company prepared in accordance with
previous GAAP.

(a) Reconciliation oftotal equity as at3l March,2024 and 01 April,2023

(b) Reconcilistion oftotsl compr€hensive income for the vear ended 31 March,2024

Particulars Notes As at
31 March,2024

As at
01 April,2023

Equity Share Capital
Compulsorily Convertible Preference Shares

Securities Premium Account
Reserve Fund under RBI Act
ESOP Reserve
Retained Earnings
Shareholder's equity as per previous GAAP

Adiustment
EtTect due to EIR ofprocessing fees on loans & Advances
Effect due to EIR ofprocessing fces on borrowings & debt securities
Effect ofgain recognised on assignment transaction
Impact due to fair value ofsccurity deposit
Effect on recognition ofECL on loan assets

Irnpact of ROU and lease liability adjustment as per IND AS I I 6
Effect ofincome recognised on stage 3 loans and advances as per Ind AS
Adjustment due to prior period error
Effect of cancellation of vested ESOP

Effect ofDefened tax on lnd AS adjustments
Total Adjustment

Shareholder's equity as Der Ind AS

d (ii)
d (iii)
d (x)

d (ix)
d (i)
d (iv)
d (v)

d(xt)
d (vii)
d (vii)

1,665.08

3,028.39

20,189.51

1,1 93.1 3

59.61
4 500 08

1,662.40

1,976.03

9,615.88

534. l8
36.92

1.864.29

30,635.80

( 1, r 68.47)
(r34.02)
330.3 l

2.77
(8.81)

(22.43)

81.09
(te.7 4)

(2.e0)
).t'1 l1

r5,689.70

(703.s6)
(1 15.28)

493.34

(0.41)
(284.80)

21.18

(3.38)
14',1 74

(705.07). (439.23\

29.930.73 1s.259.47

Particulars Notes For the year endcd
31 March,2024

(latest period
presented under
nrevious GAAP)

Net Profit/ (loss) after trx as leported under previous GAAP

Adiustment
Effect due to EIR ofprocessing fees on Inans & Advances
Effect due to EIR ofprocessing fees on bonowings & debt securities
Effect ofgain recognised on assignment transaction
Ef1'ect on recognition ofECL on loan assets

Impact of ROU and lease liability adjustment as per IND AS 116

Impact due to fair value of security deposit
Effect ofActuarial (gain)/ loss on defined benefit plans
Efi'ect ofESoP charged at lhir value
Effect ofincome recognised on stage 3 loans and advances as per Ind AS
Adjustnlent due to prior period error
Effect of cancellation of vested ESOP
Effect olDefened tax on Ind AS adjustments
Total effect of transition to Ind AS
Remeasulement of defined bencfit
Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

d (ii)
d (ii,
d (x)

d(,
tl (ir)
d (ix)
d (vi)

d (viii)
d (r)
tl(xr)

d (t'|u)
d (r\u

d (vi)
d /viil

3,294.74

(464.e r )
(18.73)

(l 63.03)

275,99

3.24

4'1.42

(1.32)

53.91

(te.74)
0,33

't'1 5S

(23 1.68)
(47.42)

11.93

Totel comprellensive income/ (loss) under Ind AS 3.027.57
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Sindhuja Microcredit Prlvate Limited
CIN: U65990IJP2017PTC099006
Reconciliation for the year ended 31 Msrch 2024 and as at 01 April 2023

(All amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

(d) Not€s to first-time adoption

(i) ECL on Loans & Advances
Under previous GAAP, provision on loans was recognised based on RBI income rccognition and asset classification norms. On transition to Ind AS, the Company
has assessed impairment loss on loans, investments, trade receivables and other financial assets based on the expected credit loss model as required by Ind AS
109.

(ii) Itrterest recognition as per EIR
Under the previous GAAP, company recognizes full processing fees as incomc in statement ofprofit & loss at the time ofdisbwsal ofloan only. Under Ind AS,
Tr4nsaction cost or recoveries shall not be transferred to statement ofprofit & loss, but these items will be adjusted in the transaction price and amortized over the
tenure of the loan. And interest acctued on carrying value of such financial asset using effective interest method is recognized as 'interest income' under
"Revenue from operation".

(iiD Borrowings rneesured at emortised cosf using EIR
Under previous GAAP, transaction costs incurred on borowings were amortised to profit or loss on a straight line basis over the tenue ofthe borrowings. Under
Ind AS I 09 transaction costs incurred towards origination of financial liabilities (bonowings) are amortised to profit or loss as interest expense on a effective
interest rate basis.

(iv) Effect of adopting Ind AS 116 - Leases
Under previous GAAP, lessees used to classi! a leasc contract as a finance lease or an operating lease at the inception ofcontract. Under operating lcase, rent
pa)mrents were recognised as an expense in the statement ofprofit and loss on a straightJine basis over the lease tenl. Under lnd AS, the Company measurcs the
lease liability at the present value ofthe fufure lease payments as at transition date, discounted using the Company's incremental borowing rate. Subsequent to
initial nreasurement, the liability will be reduced for payments made and increased for interest expcnsc. Further, the Company recognises a right-of-usc asset

which is made up ofthe initial measurement oithe lease liability. Subsequent to initial measurenent, the Company depreciates the dght-of-use ass€ts on a straight
line basis from thc leasc commencement date to thc carlier of thc end of the uscful lifc of thc right-of-use asset or the end of the lcase tcrm. The Company has

followed modified approach to rccognize lease liability and right- of- use asset as on thc transition datc.

(v) lnterest recognised on stage 3 tsset
Under the previous GAAP, interest income on nonperforming assets (NPA) was recogniscd upon realisation as per RBI Guidclines. Under Ind AS, interest income

and 2 and on the antortised cost for assets falling under stage 3. Accordingly, the Company has recognised income on stage 3 asscts on thc calrying value ofthe
asset.

(vi) Defined benefit liabilities
Both under previous GAAP and Ind AS, thc Company recogniscd costs related to its poslemploynent defined benefit plan on an actuarial basis. Under previous
GAAP, the entirc cost, including actuarial gains and losses, arc charged to profit or loss. Undcr Ind AS, remea$rements [comprising ofactuarial gains and losses,
the effect of thc asset ceiling, excluding anrounts includcd in nct interest on the net delined bcnefit liability and the rotum on plan assets excluding amounts
included in net interest on the net defined benefit liabilityl arc rccognised immetliately in the balance sheet with a corespontling tlebit or credit ro retained
earnings through Other comprehensive incomc.

(vii) Deferred tax
Under previous GAAP, delbned tax was prepared using income statement approach. Under Ind AS, Company has prcparcd defened tax using balance sheet
approach. A1so, dcfcrred tax have been rccognised on thc adjustmcnts nrade on transition to Ind AS.

(viii) Ernployee Stock option expense
Under the previous GAAP, the cost ofcmployee stock options were recognised using the intrinsic value rnethod wherein the excess ofmarket price ofshare over
the exercise pricc was recorded as an employee benefit expense. Under Ind AS, the cost ofequity settted employee stock options is recognised based on the fair
value ofthe options as at the grant date.

Under the previous GAAP, the company had the option to measure the cost of equity-settled employee share-based plan either using the intrinsic value method or
using the fair value method. Under Ind AS, the cost ofequity-settted share-based plan is recognised based on the fair value ofthe options as at the grant date.

(c) Reconciliation of Cash flow for the year ended 31 March 24 Indian GAAP*

Difference due to
change in Ind AS
and Prior Period

Adjustments

Ind AS

Net cash (used in) operating activities
Cash flow ftom investing activities
Cash flow from financing activities
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at the begiming of the year

Cash and cash equivalents at the end ofthe vear

(28,r34.04)
(213.04)

37,094.98

8,747.90

t2,403.31

21.151.21

180.56

(1 7 1.56)

9.00

8.01

17.01

(27,953.48)
(213.04)

36,923.42

8,756.90

12,411.32

21.168.22
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Sindhuis Microcredit Private Limited
CIN: U65990UP2017PTC099006
Reconciliation for the year ended 31 Merch 2024 and as st 0l April 2023

(A1l amounts in INR lakhs, ulless otherwise stated)

(rD Security deposit
Under IGAAP, interest free security deposits given (that are refundable in cash on completion of the term) are recorded at their transaction value. Under Ind AS,

alt financial assets are required to be recognised at fair value. Accordingly, the company has fair valued these security deposits undcr Ind AS. Difference between

the fair value and transaction value ofthe security deposit has been recognised as ROU Asset / Prepaid expense based on the nature of deposit. Subsequcntly ROU

asset is amortised over the lease term and Interest Income is recognised over the period of time.

(x) Income recognised on assignment transaction
Under IGAAP, incone on assignment transaction is recognised on accrual basis. However, Under lnd AS on the transition date financial asset has been

recognised by discounting the futurs interest to be received by the Company from the assignee and subsequently interest income recognised due to unwinding

(xD Adjustment due to prior period error
During transition, prior period errors on account of interest accrued but not due on bonowings were identified and corrected in accordance with Ind AS 8

4,2 Ind AS 101, First-time Adoption of Indian Accounting Standards, allows first-time adopters certain exemptions from the retrospective application of cerlain

requirements under Ind AS. The Company has accordingly applied the following exemptions.

(e) Property, plant end equipment and intangible assets - Previous GAAP carrying value as deemed cost

Ind AS l0l permits a first time adopter to elect to continu€ the carrying value ofall its property, plant and equipment as recognised in the furancial statements as

at the date oftransition to lnd AS, measured as per the previous GAAP and use that as its deemed cost aftsr making necessary adjustments to decommissioning

liabilities. This exemption can also be used for intangible assets. Since there is no change in the functional currency, accordhgly, as permitted by Ind AS 101, the

Company has elected to continus with tho carrying values under previous GAAP for all the items ofproperfy, plant and equipment. The same election has been

made in respect ofintangible asseis also.

(b) Fair value measurement offinancial assets or financisl liabilities at initial recognition
Ind AS 109 requires fair value measurement, retrospectively, however an entity may apply the requirements of Ind AS 109 prospectively to transactions entered

into on or after the date oftransition. Accordingly, the Company lras opted this exemption.

(c) Estimates
An entity's estimates in accordance with lnd AS at the date oltransition to Ind AS shall be consistent with estimates made for the same date in accordance wiih
Indian GAAP (after adjustments to reflect any difference ir accounting policies), unless there is objective evidence that those estimates were in error.

Ind AS estimates as at I April, 2022 are consistent .rith the estimates as at the same date made in conformity with Indian GAAP. The Contpany made estimates

for following items in accordance with Ind AS at the date oftransition as lhese were not required under Indian GAAP:

(i) Impairment offtnancial assets based ou expected credit loss model.
(ii) Determinarion of the disconnted value for financial assets and financial liability where applicable caried at amortised cost,

(d) Derecognition offinancial assets snd financial liabilities
A first-time adopter should apply the dcrccognition requirements in Ind AS 109, Financial Instrunrcnts, prospectively to transactions occuritrg on or after the date

of a transactiol that occurrcd before the date of transition, it should not rccognize those financial assets and liabilities under Ind AS (unless they qualify for
recognition as a result of a later transaction or event). A first-time adopter that wants to apply the derecognition requirements in Ind AS 109, Financial

Instruments, retrospectively from a date ofthe entiffs choosing may only do so, provided that the information needed to apply Ind AS l09,Financial Instrumcnts,

to financial assets and financial liabilities derecognized as a rcsult of past transactions was obtaincd at the time of initially accounting for those transactions. The

Cornpanyhaselectedtoapplythede-recognizeprovisionsoflndAS l09prospectivelyfromthedateoftransitiontolndAS.

(e) Classification and measurement offinanciel assets
Ind AS I 0.1 requires an entity to assess classification of financial assets on the basis of facts and circumstances existing as on the date of transition. Further, the

standard permits measurement of financial assets accounted at amortiscd cost based on facts and circumstances existing at the date of transition il rctrospective

application is impracticable. Accordingly, the Company has dctcrminctl thc classitlcation of financial asscts bascd on facts and circumslalccs that cxist on the

datc of transition. Measurement of the financial assets accollnted at amortised cost has been done retrospcclively cxcepl where the same is impracticable, T'he

above measurement exemption applies fbr flnancial liabilities as well.
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Slndhuia Mlcrccredlt Prlvste Lirnited
CIN| U65990UP2017PTC099006
Statcment ofChargee h Equlty for the year etrded 3l luarch 2025

(All mounts in INR Lakhs, uless othenvise slated)

(A) Eqully sharc capllal

(B) Compuborlh CoDvertlble Cumulatlye Prefcr€trce Shareg

(C) Opitonally Cotrverllble Redeemble Preferetrc€ sh8res (OCRPS)

Ptrnlculan As &t
3l i{arch 2025

As 8t
3l March 202.1

As nt
I Ar)fl 2023

Number of
shrreR

Amount
NuNber of

shares
AmouDt

Number of
rhareg

Amount

OutstardiDg at the begiming of the ]rar
Add: Issued during the 1ea
Less: Preference shares converted into equitt'shares
Less: Bousht hack durins the vear

12,95,724 12.96

Orrefrndlno et tho en.I ofthe vcar 12-95-724 12.96

(Ir) Other equlty

PartlculaN
Secuiltles
prernlum

Resewe fund

[!li 45(Ic) of
the Reserye

Bankoflndl8
Act. 193,1

Relahed
ealalngs

Oth€r
comprchenslve

lncome

Sh&re based
payment
reserye

Equlty
conpotretrt of

OCRPS
Tolal

B&bnce ns at 1 Apdl, 2023

Profit forthelcar
Premium on issue ofcompulsorily cotrvertible
preferelce shares

Share issile expenses

fratrsfer to / (frou) stahrtoly reseFe urder-15IC'of
RBI Act 193.1

Transfer to Share based pattrert reserye

lmnsiened fiom ESOP Resere due to cancellation ol
ESOP a{ier \.esting (net of defered tax}
Shre option exercised during tbe ;eu
Other comprchensive income / (loss) for the ,ear
Rrlnnco ft rt -lt tlAl.h- 2O2J

9.6r5.88

10.94'1.64

(380.39)

9.77

5-34.I8

6ll.(rl

1,435. l0
3,063.06

(61?.61 )

2,l8

{35.49)

26.88

2.1.01

(2.18)

(3.38)

1 1,612.04

3,063.06

IO.94',t.64

(380.391

2.1.01

6.39
(35.49)

,0.192 gn I1t6.19 1_8t7.r3 (35-tg) J5..t:l 25.237.26

?0,192.90

(0.98)

t0.77

r,t46.79 3,887.73
(3,543.63)

4.16

(35.49)

5l.63

45.3-l

(4. t6)

|1.,4
(4.7e)

8,82

25,137.26
(3,543.63)

8.82

(0.98)

11?^

5.98

5r 63

20.202.69 l-146.79 3,t8-26 l6-l{ 5-l-6t 8.82 21.776.32
The acconrpnDying notes nrc atr inte$fl1 part oflhe finencial statetrretrts

n s per our ana('hed repon of eYen dalr

For S S Kotharl llehta & Co. LLP
Cbartered Accountants SltrdhuJa l{lcmcredit Prlvate Llnlted

For and on [ehalfof the Board of Dlrectors of

{rm 
Reglrtratlotr No.

u.p/
Vliay Kumr

af'l*.t*- ktt."*s <"-r 1 -f000756N / N500.l,ll
.fu

Abhlsheka Kuror
Managing Dirwtor
DINr 07957488

ilIalklt Slnsh Dldyala
Whole Time Dircctor
DINr 07957488Membenhip No ; 092671

Place : Nerv Delhi
Date: Juue 02, 2025

Place : Noida

PartlculaN As at
3lst Llamh- 2025

As at
3lst M.rch.2024

A3 at
I ADrlI 2023

Eoulty sh!res oflNR l0 each lssued. subscrlbed
and fullv pald up
openitrg balarce
Add: Issued during the year

Closlnq balsnce

1,66,50,827
?s os6

1,665.08
)s1

t,66,24,033
)6151

t,662.40
)64

1,66,24,033 1,662.40

1,66,75,923 1,661.59 t,66,50,827 1,665.08 1,66,24,033 1,662.40

Partlculas As at
3l N{arch 2025

As st
31 March 2024

As at
I ADrll 2023

Number of
Amount

Number of Amunt Nunber of Amunt

Outstarding at tbe beginning ofthe wu
Add: Issued during tlrc year

Less: Preference slrrues colverled iuto equity shares

I ecq Bmsht hack d'rrinr the wnr

3.02,83,858 3,028.39 t,97,60,3t2
1,05,23,546

1,976.03

1,052.36

1,9'7,60,3t2 1,976.03

Ont.tandlhd rf tb. end afthc wcrr t o).t1.tst -1-D28--19 -3-O2.83.85fl 3-028_39 't-97-60J12 1.976.03

Ner.,foreLHr

*
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Place : Noida
Date: June 02. 2025

Place : Noida
Date: June 02. 2025 Date: June 02, 2025



ShdhuJa Mlcrucredlt Prlvate Llmlteal
CIN: U65990UP201?PTC099006
Notes io lhanchl stalrments for the year ended 3l Ntarch 2025
(Aii aEoluls itr l-NR Laidls, uniess orireruise slared)

5 Cash Ard Cash Equlvalents

PartlculaN As at
3l March 2025

Ar al
3l lvrnh 2024

As rt
t Anrll 2023

Balalces with baDks:

-In curent accounts

-Fixed deposits witb trutuity of less tlm 3 months

Cash on fiand

t,2t3.32
t2,284.28

t4.59

633.06

20,535.01

0. l5

501.39

l 1,908.01

L92
Totrl 1-l-s't 2-19 27,168,22 12.411.32

b Brtrk BaiarcB orher rhan Casb an{i Cash Equivaietra

PalllcuhF As at
31 illanh 2025

As al
3t March 2024

As at
I Apdl 2023

Deposits with remioirg trEturity for morc than 3 montbs but less that 12 uronths

Deoosits withreMinhs Mturitvmore than | 2 honths
4,953.96
491249

t;19t.23
1.600 61

24't.93

I 407 R4

Total 9-866.44 3.391.86 1.655.17

ParllculaN As at
3t lLlrr.h tOtS

As at
tl L{aRh thtd

As at
I Anr{l 1O?1

Ienn loffi 2.962.56 3,240.12 t.52'1.09
Overdraft focilities l5l.2l t3'1.60 128.68

Dedvatives 4t.24 141
Sesrity against fmt loss deault guarante 1,25 L20

7 Dedvaalve Flnatrclal Irrtrument

PartlculaN As at
-11 trlrr.h t0ts

As at
1l N{,Fh tltd

As at
1 Anill totl

Ca[led at hlr vrlue (Assetsl

Cross cunency slap Late contract nor designated in hedge accounting relatiorohip * (refer Note-56.3) 72.t2
Total 72.12

Carded at falr value (Liability)

Cross cunercy $vaD rate contBct trot desisuated in hed[e accountiu relationship * {refer Not€-56.31 t23.O2\
Total (23.02)

QualltatlYe Dkclosums

notificntions, and circulars issued for Extemal Conmercial Borrorvings.

Additiomlly, the Company is also exposed to hterest rate risk on its loDg-terB Foreign Cufiercy Loros,

decisions regardiug the quidrun 0Id teror olhedgiog is delegnted by the'Iloard conunitteeiBoard olDirectors ss necesssry.

The foreign curency exposure reporting is prcvided to the board on an iluual basis to esure comprebensive overeight.

Pet'tlculan As al 3l l\lrrth 2025 Ar ai3l ilIflrch 2024

Cunrnc)'
nprlvrllvsr

Interest Rrte Cur'retrcy
D€r'lvallves

Itrterrst Rate
Der'[vrtlves

Derivrliver r iotional PrmciDal Artrou!tJ 5-S60 r0 I 1R7 60
For Heds

arkei Positions
fal Assels 12.12

{r1 0?\
Credit Exposu.e
tlnhedsed {posute

The Conpanyho enered inao Full CuFetrcy Swaps that allows lo convert long teriD FCY liability (tiltercst and Principal) to a lired INR liability

8 Tmde R€celYabl€s

Pafilcularr As at
3l March t025

Ar rt
3l }Irrrh 2024

AJ ai
I Apill 2023

IInsecured. considered sood

Unsecued. coNidered doubtfu I

240.13 193.92 153. 10

Tolal 240-t3 193-92 t53,30
Funher cldsified as;

Receivable from related paties
Receivable from olhers 240. I l t93.92 253.30
fotal 240.13 193.92 253.30

MEH

.9
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SlndhuJa Mlcrocredlt Pdvate Llmlted
CIN: U65990UP20r7PTC099006
Notes lo llnarclal statements for the yer eDded 3l March 2025

Tnde recelvableB Agelng Schedule as on 31 MaNh 2025 Oulstsndlns for followlno ve|r tlnfr dtre.late of newenl Total
Less than 6

Months
6Dotrths-lyesr 1-2 yean 2-3 yerB More tbatr 3

VEAF

Undisputed Trade Receivables - considered good

Undispilted Trade Rtreivables - which have sigdficant increase in credit risk
Urdisputed Tmde receivable - credit irnpaired

Disputed Trade meivables - comidered good

Disputed Trade receivables - whic[ have significmt hsmse in credit dsk
DispDled Trade receivables - credit impaired

Less: Allorvarce for expected credit loss

23t.',lt 5.03 1.03 2.36 240.13

231-71 5.03 t-0.! 2.16 7!n 1a

Tmde recclvablE Agelng Schedule as on 31 NIarch 2024 Otrktrndlnr for follnslns vesr fibm dre drte nf DAmcnl Tolal
Isr thatr 6

Morthi
6months-1year 1-2 ye.n 2-1 yeen More than 3

Utrdisputed Trade Receivatrles * coroidered good
Undisputed Trade Receivabls - which have signifrcant ircrere in credif risk
Undisputed Tmde rcceivable - credit inpaired
Disputed Tmde receivablts - comidered good
Disputed Trade receimbler - which bave sigoificilt increas in credit risk
Disputed Tmde rmeivables - credit impaired

Lqs: Allovarce for expected credit loss

191.56 2.36 193.92

t91.56 2.76 iq3 qt

Tmde H€lvables Agehg Schedlle as oB I Aorll2023 Ottsttndtnr fol fnlloslns verl fmm .lno .lrlr nfbrvhont Total
Lers than 6

Monrh(
6motrths-lyear l-2 yeaN 2J yean More than 3

U[disputed Trad€ Rffeivables - coroidered good

Undisputcd Trade Rmeivables - which have signiicont increase in credit risk
Undisputed Trade r€eivabte - credit inrpaired

Disputed Tmde receiwbles - omidered good
Disputed Trade r@eivables which have significmt inseaF ir credit risk
Disputed Trade receivables - credit irtpaired
L6s: Allowancc for exp6ted cedit loss

253.30 253.30

151.10 253.30

risk.
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SltrdhlJa MlcrocEdla Pdvale Llmlted
CIN: U65990Ugt0r7PTC099005
Note$ to fltrarclal statemeDls for lhe year eBded 3l Nlarch 2025

9 Loars (at amoltlsed cost)

Palilculan Ac at
3l Nlarch 2025

As at
3l MaNh 2024

As at
1 Aprll 2023

Tem Lous
Group lending loam

MSME loaN
Total cross
Less: ftq)airment loss otr allowance

Total Nel

(a) Secured

(b) UDsecured

Totrl Gross
Less: Impainrent loss on allowance

Total Net

(a) Public sector
(b) Other
Total Gre$
Less: Impaimnt loss on allowmce
Totel Net

Above amoutrt lncludes
(a) Loru provided in India
(b) Loans provided outside lndia
Total Gro$s

Less: Impairnent loss o[ allowance

Totrl Net

69,215.13

t-441.21

94,052.43

426.04

63.562.55

7t-701.94 94.478.47 tt3-562-55

(l.718.88) 0.758.16) (933.07)

68-984-06 92.720.31 62-629.48

t.487 .ZI
69.215.73

426.04

94-052.43 63.562.55

70.702,94 94,478.47 63.562,55

{ 1.718.88) ( l_758.t6) {933.07)

68.984,06 92,120.J| 62,629,48

70,102.94 94,4'18.47 63,562.55

70.712.94 94-47a,47 63-562-55

(1,718.88) (l.758.16) (q33.0?)

68.984.06 92.720,31 62.629.48

10,702.94 94.478.47 63,562.55

70,102,94 91,478,47 6J.562.55

il.718.881 (l.758.16] (933.07)

68884,06 92.?20.31 62,619.48

joiDtly wifi aqy other person tlut are - (e) repaydtrle on d€rund or (b) rvithout specifying my lems or period ofrepaytrreff,

quality ofthe Cotrrpalys exposurcs as at reporlhg date.

bo(orved fiom the said banks and finmcial istirutios

PartlculaN Stase I Slase II Strse m Total
Gross cau:dng yalue ofloatrs as al 1 April 202,1

New loffi origimted duriog the year, net oflfor repayments and derecognised
portfolio
Loms written offduring the yeat

Moveurert behvegn stages:

Transfer Aom stage I
Transfer fronr stcge II
Tronsfer lioil stap. III

92,603.90

(14.650.r2)

(1.57)

(e.438.4,3)

433.37

535.58

(74.25)

1.586_45

(.156.28)

1,44t.20

I,136.76

(r0,72t.93)

7.851.98

356.28

94,4',18.4'1

(L2,977.'18\

(t0,197.75\

Gros cawlng yalue of loans ee Na 3l tl{rch 2025 68,5rJ.78 2,t2{.81 64.29 '10,702.94

PaltlculaN Stape I Stroe rI Stepe IfI Totrl
Gmss canyiEg value ofloan$ as at I Apill 2023

NcN loans origiaaled during the yent, nel offlor tepayurrils ald deLccogtrised
poilfolio
Lorns rvrilten olfdtrrhg the year

Mov€m€nt betrv€o stages:

Tra$fer fiom stage I
Tmosfer fiom slage lI
Transfer fru[ stase lll

62.894.38

30,929.46

{t,219.94)

68.00

162.i5

264.10
(61.48)

600. l7
l7 7.09

(352.78)

955.24

61.48

63.56?.55

11,268.70

(3-52.78)

Grcse carrylng valu€ ofloans as at Jl Nlarch 2024 92,603.90 433.J7 1,441,2$ 91,178.47

a
*
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Prrtlculan Loatrs Toiel
Slase I Slase II St.oe m

ECL ollowance on 1 Aptil 2024

New assets origfunted duritrg the year, netted offlbr repalaNnts and derccognised

portfolio

Loas written oII duing tlrc yetr

MoYemetrt between stages:

Tmrofer flom stage I
Tlalsfbr liom slage II
Trufer from stage III
lnrnact on ECL on acmDnt ofmovenrcnt tFtrveen slases/ uDdates to ECL trpdel

238.J0
308.96

(0.001

(24.31)

246.42

1.141.0.1

(42.22)

4.09
r?o? 5q\

t.273.24
8,025.34

(9,4'12.40)

20.22

202.s9

1,758.16

9.47.s.34

(9,514.62)

f,C:L trllovrnce on 3l NIaNh 2025 523.15 1 t!61! 48-SS 1 -tt8_88

Slndhuja Mlcrocrrdla Prlvate Llmited
ClNr U6s990UP20r7PTC099006
Nofes to noatrclal staieme[ts for tbe year ended 3l trlarch 2025

Rtroncillatlon ofloss allowance provlslon ftom begltrnhg to end ofreDortlng p€dod:

Refe! Note 52 for disclo$res related to credit risk, inpaiment oflimncial seryices receivables uder expected credit loss npdel etc.

l0 Defered tar

Pa11lctrlaE Ar al
3l illarch 2025

As at
3l luarch 2024

- Curent Iax

- Adjushrents in respect ofcurrert income tax ofprevious year

- Defeffed tax chuge / (ircolue)

18.42
(20.5e)

(l.438.81)

1,325.64
(21.921

(322.t7t
ln.ome lrr ern€nre rrnor{ed ln the rlitem€nl ofnrollt or loss (r.440_98) 975.55

expense in statement ofprolit aud loss are as lbllows:

PartlculaN As at
3t lfrrth 2025

Ar at
31 iuarch 2024

- Net (sain)/loss on .enreasurerrents ofdefined benefit Dlrs r7.36 (1 1.93)

In.nmo rrx chaN€.| to OCI 17.36 {11,93)

Partlculan Loans Tntrl
Slase I Stase tr Srrse III

ECL allowance on I Apr{l 2021

Nerv a$ets orighated during the 1rar, uetted offfor repaymeDts atrd derwognised
portfolio
Loffi ${itletr offduing the yeil

Movement b€tween stages:

Trasfer ftom stage I
Tralsfer fton stage II
Tresfer fron stage Ill
Imnrct nn F.CT. on ,csunl ofnmvement hetween stasev uodates to ECL nodel

327.94

(83.08)

to.Jol

30.55

242.I

l.l8
(2'1.62')

-5?4.58

1,003.80

(-337.74)

4.98

27.62

913.07

l 162.83

(337.14\

F,C[, rllosrn.a oh 3t lfrrch 202{ 238.50 246.42 t t17.r! t -t58-trt

PartlculnF As at
3t trfarch 2025

As ra
3t M6rch 2024

As af
1 Anill t0tl

Deferred lax asiets
! !uYDruu rur LryrvJle wrNrxr

Inpairurcnt loss alloivatrce

Carry fonvud losses

Right oflse assets

Fiwcial assts measured at anDdised cost

Fimncial liabilities measred at amonised cost

Inpact ofESOP chtrged at fab value

Others

Defened tax Uablllals
Di.fferelce in written dowtr value as per Companies act md bcgnE Ta\ acl

IDpact ofESOP chtrged at fair value

DeferDetrt of excess interesl spread

Impact ofi[terest income on stage 3 loans

Impact ofOCRPS

1,335.S0

7.t2
244.25

31."19

2.14

56.05

2.4t

12.55

19.97

2.94

315.01

4.95

294.08

33.73

4.97

2.35

2.19

83.13

20.41

l'79.34

$.12

t'1'7.0'l

29.0t

1.57

2.53

t24.t6
6.84

2.038.01 rls at 285-4?

Y
::)
t
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Sltrdbula Mlcrocredlt Pdvate Llmlted
CINr U65990UP20I7PTC099006
Noles to llnanclal statements for lhe year eDded 3l March 2025

Reconclllatlon oftd

t I Oth€rI'lnanclal Ass€ts

PartlculaN As at
31 March,2025

As at
3l [Isrrh, 2024

As at
r Apdl 2023

Secuity Deposits

Receivable ftonr Insumnce conpanies

Excess interest spread {EIS) receivable

Other Finmcial assets

65.44

158.19

635.88

40.21

189.?9

3?8.84

60.5 I

30.32

108.78

595.43
4g-81

Total 8SS-51 61S-35 1e4.74

12 Cunrtrt Trr Assets (Nel)

Pafllcular As at
3l March.2025

As at

31 March.2024
As al

1 Aoill 2023

Advance incoDre tailTDS (net ofDroi'isions] 475 88 I11 t4 )1 69

Totel {7E ft t31 tr )). 69

13 Other Non-FlnAnchl Asrets

PaflkulaF As at
31 trIanh, 2025

As rt
3I trlarth, 2024

As at
I April 2023

Balilce $'rth goverrurcnt authorities

Prepaid expeuses

196.94

4'1.24

165.08

55.09

83.47

42.46

fotal 244.18 22tt.l7 t25-93

Prrtlculrs As at
1l tr{rnh t0ts

A$ at
31 Mrrch 20td

Proflt before tax

Applicabl€ tax rates in India

Corputed tax clnrge

Non Deductible Expenses

Allorvable Experoes

Otlers Adiustments

(4,984.61)

25.17%
(1.254.53)

t2'1.58

(287.06)
(9.61

4,038.61

25.l7o/o

L016.43

430.21

(180.98)
(302.M\

Total Income tar exoeDs€ (1423.62\ 963.62

Partlculas As at I Apfll 2024

Rfcognlsed ln
stal€metrt of

prcIlt and loss

Dehlt / lcre.lltl

Recognlzed ln
()cr

Recognlsed ln
eqully

As at Jl l\larch
2025

Defemd tax assets

Provision for employee benefits

Ippairment loss allowance

Carry lbnwrd losses

Rigllt ofuse assets

Finarcial assets mssured at mortised cost

Finaucial liabilities rctrured at atrpfiised cost

h$act of ESOP dlarged at ftir qlue
Others

Defercd tar llabllltles
Di$erenc€ in rvrittetr down vahre as per Coupanies flct atrd Incorm Tax act

Impact ofESOP clurged at &ir value

DefenEnt ofexce$ interest sprmd
Impact ofintgrest ircorDe otr stage 3 loans

Iopact ofOCRPS

Totrl

74.86

3 15.01

4.95

294.08

33.73

4.9'1

2.35

2.t9
83.13

20.41

23.91

2.2t
1,335.90

2.t1
(49.83)

(1.94)

2.14
5r.08

0.06
(2.t9\

(70.58)
(0.44)
(0.02)

(17.36)

2.96

81.41

3t7.22
1,335.90

'1.12

244.25

31.79

2.\4
56.05

2.4t

12.55

t9.97
2.94

619,5t r-418.nr tl1.76\ 12_g{6) 2-OtR.Ot

Partlcnlas As at I April 2023

Recognlsed ln
statemert of

ptont and loss

RerogDlzed ln
ocl

Recogrlsd ltr
equlty

As at 31 March
2024

I)elemd trx assets

Provisioo for ernployee beaefits

Disallowmce uodersection 438 of the lncone lax Act, l96l
Provision for loao portfolio
ROU and lease liability as per Itrd AS I 16

EIR iopact on loan portfolio
EIR inrpact oo borrorvings & debt securities

Others

Differerce h lwittetr dorvl vahre as per Coupoies act atrd hcome Tax acl

Iopact ofESOP chtrged at hir value

Delbrfielt of excess iltel"sl spre{d

Ilnpact ofillterest iilcoue on sfnge 3 loals

34.98

179.34

o.t2
t7'7.0'1

29.01

1.57

2.53

L2J.l6
6.84

27.95

t35.67
4.83

I 17.01

4.12
4.97

0.78
(0.34)

(.11.03)

t_1.57

I 1.93 74.86

315.01

4.95

294.08

33.73

4.9',1

2.35
? Iq

8-1.1.1

20.41

Total 285.42 322.17 11.93 6I9.52

MEH



Sindhuja Microcredit Private Linited
CIN: U65990UP201 7PTC0990{16
Notes to finaDcial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
(All amounts in INR takhs, unless otherwise stated)

14 PlantAnd

Notes:

its deemsd cost as at the date oftransition under Ind AS 101 "Firsltime adoption oflndian Accounting Standards", i.e. 1 April,2023.

Total

234.18

187.98
4-52

417.64

203.26

1.78

619.12

87.40

2.31

85-09

1.28

113.82

197-53

421.49

332.55
234-lA

75.90
1.96

171.02

282.57

55-81

72.81

t2a-62

153.95

lts.2l
97.08

Conput4r
I{erdwere

97.08

111-55

56.44

0.63

Electrical
Eouinments

34.33

22.90
2.32

54.9t

17.91

1.78

71.04

11.82

l.5l
1031

12.31

1.28

2t34

49.70

44.50

3433

Vehicle

28.43

41.07

69-50

69.50

8.58

8.5E

1o.76

19.34

50.r6
60.92

28.43

Office equipmenl

0.12

9. t3

9.25

5.41

14.65

0.40

0.40

2.59

2.99

11.67

8.85

n.12

Furniture and
fixture

74.22

38.98

0.24
112.96

68.39

181.3s

10.16

o.17

9.99

15.35

2534

156.01

102.97

74.22

Particulars

Accumulated Deprecia'tion
As at 01 April,2023
Depreciation for the yeai'

Deductions/Adjustrnents during the period
Ar at 31 March, 2024

Depreciation for the yeai

Deductions/Adjustments during the period
As at 3l March, 2025

Net Carrying value es nt 31 March, 2025
Net Carrying value as at 31 Marc\ 2024
Net Carrying value as at 0l April" 2023

Gross Carrying Value
As at 0l April 2023

Additions
Disposals

As at 3l Merch, 2024

Additions
Disposals

As at 3l March,2025

T
I
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Sindhuja Microcredit Private Limited
CIN: U65990UP2017PTC099006
Nnfac ta finenniol crnramants for lhp veer +ndcd 3l March 2025
(All amounts in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

15 Right-ofuse asset

*D-a^- -^.^ A1 f^- 1:^^l^^.,-^ --t^l:..-.^ t^^-^^r\crsr lurc a, tul ulsLlusuls lcrarrux, ru rccscs

Particulrm Amount
Right-of use assets

-Ollice Building
As at 01 April 2023
Additions

As at 31 Mar.ch 2024
Additions
Deletions

As al3l March 2025

Accumulated deprecirtion
As at 01 April 2023
Charge for the year

Disposals
l - ^+ l! lt^-^L tAt/

Charge for the year

Disposals

As at 3l March 2025

Net Carrying value as at 31 March,2025
Net Carrying value as at 31 March, 202{
Net Carrvinp value as at 01 Aoril. 2023

312.84

44.78

357.62

357-62

LA2.7s

r01-75
107.48

2tn-23

147.39

254.E7

312.84

R0c ,?

lr
=t

*
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Slndhuje Mlcrocredlt Prlvate Limlted
CIN: U65990UP2017PTC099006
Notes to flnanclal statements for the year ended 31 March 2025

(All amounts in INR lakls, unless otherwise stated)

Note (a):
Ind AS 101 exemption : The Company has availed the exemption available under Ind AS i01, where the Company has used previous

GAAP carrying value ofintangible assets at the date oftransition i.e. 01 April 2023 at its deemed cost at that date.

17 Intrnglble assets under dev€lopment

Particularr Computer Software Total

Gross Carrylng Value @eemed cost) - (Refer Note r)
As at 01 Aprll,2023
Additions
Disposals

As at 31 March,2024

Additions
Disposals

As at 31 Mrrch,2025

Accumulated Depreclation
As at 01 Aprll,2023
Charge for the year

Deductions/Adjustments during the period

As at 31 March,2024

Charge for the year

Deductions/Adjustments during the period

As at 31 Merch,2025

Net Carrying value as at 31 March,2025
Net Carrying value rs rt 3l March,2024
Net Carrving value rs rt 01 April,2023

5.85 5.85

2.85 2.85

8.70 8.70

8.70 8.70

2.75 2.75

2.75 2.75

2.73 2.73

5.48 5.48

3.22 3.72

5.95 5.95

5.85 5.85

Parfculars As at
31 March.2025

As at
31 March.2024

As qt

I ADrll.2023

Opening bslance
Addition during the year

36.s3

50.40 36.53

Closlns bslance 86.93 36.53

Parflculars
of Assets under

Less than 1 vear 'l -2 veerr 2-3 verrr More thsn 3 vearr Total
Proiect in nrosress 50.40 36.53 86.93

Project temporarily
susoended

50.40 36.53 86.93

Partlculars
Assets under for a of

Lees thsn 1 vear 1-2 vearf 2-3 vemr More lhrn 3 verrn Total
Proiect in nroress 36.53 35.53

Project temporarily
susDendsd

36.53 36.53

-.-:--\

-I,
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Sindhuja Microcredit Prirate Limited
CINr U65990UP2017PTC099006
Notes to fnancial strtementr for the yeor eDded 3l March 2025

iau 6ttrlunts uI [\K L&s! trrtess ortrclrvlsc slorcol

18 Trade Payables

PsrticulaE Ar ot
3l ]l{rrch 2025

Ar at

-3I Mrrch 2o?d
As at

I Abfrl 20r-l
Iotal oltstddilg &es of laiclo atrd smoll ederpdles (MSME)

Iotal outstatrdirg d[es of.reditors other lha micro and small

18.41

114.61

7.26

50.58

5.17

23,93

Tolal 131 n8 57 td to ro

(i) Ageing dlsclossre:

Outstandins for followirs Deriods from due d.te ofDavment As et31 Marh 2025

NOa OU€ Less iian I r-2 years z-J y€0rt more tlan J tora!

fohl outsta[dirg dues ofmicro enterprises and small efierprisB
Iotal oulstruding du6 ofcreditors other thd micro eDterprises aDd

imall enleryrises

Dispute{ dues ofmicro edeqrfis€s od sDall euterprises

Disputed dues of creditors other tlur miclo eqterpris$ sud smaU

'trterprises

18.41

r14.6'7

18.41

1t4.61

t1l ot 133-08

Pardculsrt Not due Irss lhrn I l-2 ycart 2-3 ye{rs i{ore ihm 3 Toral

Total outstauditrg dues ofmicro enterprises md s@l[ eDterprises

Total outstatrding dues ofcreditoG other tlan micro eDterprises and

slMll euterpdses

Disputed dues ofmicro enterplises and srMll eDterorises

Disputed dues ofcreditors other tLe micro enterprises Md small
enteljrises

7.26

-50.58

1.26

50.58

s7 tl t?-81

(ii) Disclosure ondrr th€ Nlicro, Smrll and lucdium nntcrprher Derrlopmert Act, 2006 ("MSMED Acf, 2006"):

Partiaulrrs As of
.ll tfrrch 2O)5 3t \Irv.h 2O?d

Ai nt
I lbfrl t$?f

P.illcjpal ailDunt due 1o suppliers uuder MSMED Act, €s at lhe year eld (silce paid) 18.41 't.26 5.t7

lDtercst accrued 6nd due to suDDliers ruder MSMED Act- on dre abore amoilnt as at the vear eud

Pa]DEnt made to suppleB (olher than Eterst) beyoM the apNiDted dnr dudlg ihe ya.
Itrterest paid to suDpliers uder MSMED Act (s@liou l6)
A[rount ol mterest paid along sith the @ounts ofpa]nenl made beyond tbe appoiued day
hteEst due and DBWble to suopliers uuder MSMED Act. for oautretrts alreadvorade
lotercst accnred tuid rcnraung uDpaid at rhe yee eod to suDDlies utrder MSMED Act

19 Debt Securilies

Refer Nole 38 ard .19 for detailed tenns & corditions ofdebt secorities

aSIeeDeDts.

bctrd.4! !o!!!t gr-lalrnleed b), hlo da{!o.s i! deu pesoral cagacitw ofLNR ?,?16 6? Lelbs {M.(!r -l !, 2024 : tNl 4,200 00 l.t]!s, Ma{h 3 l. 2023 : LNI- 5.200 00 La!!s)

Foreign cumency liabilities nmorDting to INR 6,240.72 Lal.t$ (March 3 I, 2024 : INR 1,856.44 Lalhs, Merch 3 l, 2023 : NIL)

Partlcrddrs
for

Not doe Irss thatr I 1-2 y€srs 2-3 yerrs il(ore thatr 3 Total

ldai ottstandug diles oimicrc entertrises alri smaii enierprises
Total outstanding dls of creditors other tlMtr nicro eDterprises aod

!mall etrterprises

Disputed dues of uicro enterprises Bnd smll enteprises
Disputed dues ofcredilors other tlratr rnicro erterprises md $Dall

J. ll
23.91

5.lt
23.93

29 l{ tq tfl

Prfrlcnlan
31 }Iarch 2025

As at
31 l\{arch 202.1

Ar at
I Anril 2023

Deltt Secudtis mcasur€d il Amorti5ed Cost
N^,r a 

^-' 
..,ihl- n^L.'$,rAc c4,ral*

Non Convefl;ble Debentutes , Unsecurcd
Add: Ioterest accnred bul trot due oil bono\rings from NCD
i:rrerilai !otriluelcrai Eorrtwrugs - Secliled-
Add: Ilrter*t accrued but not due ou borrowirus ftool ECB

!2,?-16.?-r

798.09

38.12
6,077.78

t6? 94

9.17S.75

600.00
54.24

t,788.00
6R 44

177.55

folal t9$_1i,-69
3,599.21

t6.2t4.41

_12,249.43
4.182.?0
8.107 ?t]

l2_925_98
Debt securities iI Ildil
Debt securities ortside Indio++

6,t18.91
6.601 o7

Totrl tq arl 6t lt rtoil rt ot{or

NEW

o*

cRoC
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Slndhujo Microcredit PrtveteLimtlcd
CIN: U65990UP1017PTC099006
Notes to fiDrtrcisl sht mertr for the ye&r erded 3l M4rch 2025
(all arruuuis il [,iR i:hlu, urriess oiinrvisc siatcdi

20 Bomwiap otier lhsD dcbt iecultis

Psrtlc[bB As rl
3l Mrrcb 2025

Ar rl
31 M!rch 2024

As at
I ADril 2023

Borrewfug measur€d rt aEortlsed coit
(!)--T-c-rs_loll!!
(i) FsD baDls (6ecured)*
(ii) ftom fmcial iNtitutios (secued)*
Add: Ilterest accroed but mt due on borowitrgs ftom bad6 & fmrcial
i6titutioN
Optiomlly Convertible Redemble Preference Shu6 (OCRpS)

30,230.'il
18,749.10

13t.23

1.27

40,2I9.85
34234.60

227.26

26,038,44
22.191.30

181.62

74.(tA1-11 /aA-6r136

Borositrg io lodio
Borowilq outside lndi8

49,1 t2.31 74,681.11 48,613.36

Tdtrl A9 llt 1t 7t 6A1 7t /a 6t3 16

Borrcwbg tems strd cordltiols
t Tem loaos werc smred by way of exclusive charge on the staudsd ssset portfolio lseivabls pertaioing to rnicrc credit l()s and cash couateml as pgr the resp@tive agre@nls.

Includes snouot guamoteed by hvo dirctoF in th€ir peFoml capacity ofINR 47.762.98 Lalfu (M{ch 31, 2024 r INR 69,045.73 Lflkhs, Mtrch 3 l, 2023 : INR 42,733.23 LaHB)

There wee ao delay in repajmreot ofbonowitrgs as at 3 I Marcb, 2025, 3 I March, 2024 ed 0l Apdl, 2023.
Rofer Nqto 39 for detailed temu & couditioru of borowilgs.

2i i,essel,isbiliiy

ParticuliK As rt
31 M*cb 2025

As qt
3l illanh 2024

A!.t
t ADlil 2023

tsse liabilie t& 19 )1n 1? 107 ?1

fotrl t6q-?s t1n tt a(7 77

Refq mte 47 for disclNue relating to l6es

22 OtherFiDADchlLirbiliti6

ParticukF
As at

31 Msrch 2025
As at

31 March 2024
As {t

I ADril 2023

Employee rclated palable
Pavul,ic ur osiqrsi wr riuiiu
Payable on business corespondence ryaDgemeol
Other mvables

348.31

3.06
t\t 94

495.83

t53.15
)1q71

228.33

271.60
197 tu

664-54 r -ffl*-69 t 30a,t6

23 ProvisioD

PartlcEhB
As at

31 ilLrch 2025
As it

3l wlarch 202{
As st

I ADrtl 2023

Provisiotr for gratrity (rcfcr rcte 46)

Provisiol for corupeuoted abseNes (refer rcte 46)

138.40

185.10

142.55

154_89

65.33

73.67

Ioarl 323,r0 297.44 139.00

2,1 o'therNoFllD.rciolLirbilitis

P.fticulln As it
3l Mrrch 2025

As .l
3l Msrch 2024

As .t
I April 2023

Statutory dues DaEble )6) 17 7\1 4n lsl ?d

fokl ,14 an 153.24

T5
t

{l
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Slndhuja Mlcrocredit Prlvat€ Llmited
CIN: U65990UP20 1?PTC099006
Notes to nnancid stat€ments for the year ended 31 Mrrch 2025
(Al[ amounts in INRlakhs, unless otheruise stated)

25 Equity Shsre Capitsl

During the yer ended 3 1 Much 2025: Nit, (3 1 Much 2024: 61,38,735) Compulsorily convertible preference shares offace value of { 10 each were issued and Bllotted to
Hururua Furd S.C.A., SICAR-EUSEF at the pretuiun ofRs 104.03 and 3 l March 2025: Nil, (3 1 March2024:43,84,81 1) compulsory convertible prcference sharcs offace
value of { l0 each were issued md allotted to Oikocredit Ecmenical Development Cooperative Society U.A. at the premim of Rs 104.03

(a) Reconciliatlon ofequity shares outstanding at the beghning and at the eod of the year

(i) During the ycar ended on 3l March 2025, 25,096 (31 March.2O24:26,794) Enployeo stock option Plan (ESOP) offace value ofRs 10 each were allotted to employees at a

Premiurn ofRs 23.83 each.

(b) Reconcillation of Compulsorilv convertlble preference shares outstrnditrg at the beginning and at the end ofthe year

(i) Duing the year ended 3 I March 2025: Nil, (3 I Much 2024:61,38,?35) Conpulsorily converlible preference shues offace value of t 1 0 each were issued and allotted to
Hurunra Fund S.C.A., SICAX.-EUSEF at the premium ofRs 104.03 and 31 March 2025: Nil, (31 March 2024:43,84,811) compulsory converliblc preference shiles of face
value of { I0 each were issued and allotted to Oikocredit Ecumenical Development Coopcrative Society U.A. at the prernim ol Rs 104.03.

(c) Recotrciliation of Optionallv Convertibl€ Redeemsble preference sharer (OCRPs) outstsnding at the beginning 8nd st ahe end of the vear

(i) During the year euded 3 I March 2025, 6,47,862 optionally corvertible redeenable preference shares of face value of { I 0 each partly paid up of Rs I were issued to, Mr.
Abhisheka Kwr at the premium of Rs 8L.20 afi 6,47,862 optionally convedible redeemable preference shares of facc value of { 10 each paltly paid up Rs I were issued to
Mr Matkit Singh Didyala ar ths premimr of Rs 81.20.

Psrticulsrs As at
31 March

'T'5

As &t

31 March
2024

As &t
1 April 2023

Authorized Share Caoital
Equity Shile Capltsl
18,600,000 Equiry sharos (31 Much 2024 : 18,600,000, 0l April2023 :

18,600,000) of{ l0 each

Compulsory Converdble Preference shares (CCPS)

31,?50,000 Preference shiles (31 March 2024 : 31,750,000, 01 April 2023 :

31,?50,000) of{ 10 each

Optiotrally Conv€rtible Redeemable preference shares (OCRPS)
'12,95 

,724 Option"lly Convertible Redesmable preference shares (3 I March
2024: Nil, 0l April 2023: Nil) of { 10 each

1,860.00

3,175.00

12.96

1,860.00

3,175.00

1,860.00

3,175.00

Tolrl 5-047.96 5.035.00 5-035-00

Issued. Subscribed anil Paid-up
Equlfy Share Capitsl
16,675,923 Equitysharcs (31 Much 2024: 16,650,827,01 Aprit2023 : 16,624,033) ofl l0 each tullypaidup
0.0170 Compulsory Convertlble Preferenc€ shares (CCPS)

30,283,858 CCPS (3 1 March 2024 : 30,283,858, 0 I ApriL2023 : 19,760,3 l2 ) of t l0 each fulty paid up

r,667.59

3,028.39

1,665.08

3,028.39

1,662.40

t,976.03

Total lsiued and strbscrlbed share csDltel 4.695.9t 4.693.47 3.638.43

Partlculars As at
31 March 2025

As at
31 March 2024

As at
1 April 2023

Number of
shares

Amount
Number of

shsres
Amount

Numb€r of
shares

Amount

Outstanding at the begiming of the yer
Add: Issu€d duing the yeu (refer (i) below)
Add: Preference shrues convened into equity
l,essr Borrslrt back d[rins the vear

1,66,50,827
25,096

1,665.08

2.51

1,66,24.033

26,794
t,662.40

2.68
1,66,24,033 |,662.40

Otrtrfanrlino af rhF oDil nf fhF vcar 't 66 7{ r)tl 1 l{6t a0 1 66 qO nt7 1 66< nn 1 66 aA 011 1 664 Ai

Par(iculars As at
3l Merch 2025

As at
ll Mar.h 2024

As at
I Anrll 2023

Number of
shrrer Amount

Number of
shsres

Amount
Nunber of

shsrer Amount

Outstandiug at thc bcginning ofrhc ycar

Add: Issued duiug the ycu (rcfcr (i) below)
Less: Prcferencc shares convened into equiry
Less: Bousht back durins thc vcar

3,02,83,858 3,028.39 t,9't,60,3t2
1.05,23.546

t,976.03

t,052.36
r,9't,60,3t2 t,9'76.03

Onlrtrndlns af ths end nf fhp ver] ? ot rl ttn 3.028.39 3-02-83.858 3.028-39 1.97-n0.3t 2 1.9?6-03

Partlculrrs As st
3l Merch 2025 31 March 2024 I Apdl 2023

Number of
shrrer Amout Number of

shrrer Amoutrt
Numbcr of

Amourt

Outstauding at the beginning ofthc year

Add: Issucd du.ilg the year (refcr (i) bclorv)
Less: Preference shues convened into cquity shares

Less: Bought back duins the vear

12,95,724 12.96

Outstandins at the end of the vear 12-S\.124 12.96

o*
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Sindhuja Microcr€dlt Prlvrte Llmited
CIN: U65990UP2017PTC099006
Notes to llnancial statem€nts for the year ended 31 March 2025
(All anoutrts in INR Lakhs, unless otheruise stated)

(d) D€tails of shrres held by shareholders holdlng mor€ than 57o of the aggr€gate ;hares itr the Company

(e) Detalls ofshareholders holdhg nore than 57o compulsorlly convertible preference shares in the Company

(0 Detailsofshar€holdirgsofPromofers

(i) Term rights attsched to equity shares
The Conpany has only one class of equity shares having the face value of { l0 per sharc. Each holder of equity share is eltitled to one vote per sharc, In the evetrt of

distribution will be in prcpodion to the lumber ofequiry shares held by the shareholders.
The Company declares and pays dividend in Indian Rupees. The dividcnd proposed by the Board ofDirectors ifany, is subject to the approval ofshareholders in the cnsuing
Annual Gcneral Meeting.

(ii) Terms rights sttached to Preference ihares

Basis.

(iii) Terru of0.017o compulsorilv convertiblc prelcrence sharcs

price calculated based on a ratio of l:l

(iii) Term of optlonally cotrvertibl€ redcemable pref€rence shares (OCRPs) - Durirg the year e[ded 3 I March 2025, Optionally Convertible Redeemable Preferercs
Shues ("OCRPS") offsce value INR l0 cach wcrc issucd on a partly paid basis at a price oIINR 91.20 (including a premiun of INR 81.20) per share. The OCRPS shall bo

-^,n-"h"1,""- ^-n-i D" t h-. n-rl^-"ll!' n^nt,^rriLl,, D^i,.,.n,,,L1.. n.^O,.^-^^ eL,i,ni' /r.n aDDc,\

(iv) Terru of Employee Stocl( optl0n plan

Company has grantcd Nil (3 I March 2024, 64,000 options) to thc cligiblc cmployccs ofthc Cornpany,

(v) The Cornpany, for thc period offivc ycars imuediately preceding the balarce shcct date, has lot:
(i) allotted any fully paid up shares pursuari to contract(s) without payrnert boing rcccived in cash
(ii) allotted any flrlly paitl up shares by way ofbonus shares

Name of the shrreholder As at
3l March 2025

As at
31 March 2024

As at
I Aprll 2023

Number of
shar€s

Vo oI
holdlng ln
the clers

Number of
shares

Y. of holding
in the class

Number of
shares

o/o ol
holdlng ln
the class

Equity shares ofRs.10 esch fully pald
Mr. Abhisheka Kunrar

Carpediem Capital Partne6 Fund I
Mr. Malkit Singh Didyala

30,'t2,600

73,89,890
24,20,000

18r'.3%
44.3tol
14.5101

30;12,600
?3,89,890

24,20,000

18.45%

44.38%
't4.s3%

30,'72,600

73,89,890
24,20,000

18.48%
4435%
14.56%

Tofrl 1.28-82-490 77.2501, 1.28.82.490 11 a60/^ 1 
't 

R2 dOfl 11 ASol,

Name of the shareholder As at
31 Msrch 2025

As at
31 March 2024

As at
I April 2023

Number of
shares

o/" ot
holding in
fhe.lnrs

Number of
shares

% ofholding
ln the class

Number of
shares

o/. oI
holdlng ln
the chss

Carpedien Capital Panners Fund Il
NMI Fund IV KS

Huruma Fund S-C.A., SICAR-EtrSEF

Oikocredit Ecuroenical Development Cooperative

58,'17,578
r,38,82,'734

61,38,735

43,84,81 1

t9.4t.t
45.840/,

20.27V,

14.4801

58,77,5'18
t,38,82,734

61,38,735

43,84,8 1 t

19.41%
45.84%

20.2'1%

144.8%

58,'17,5'78

r,38,82,734
29.'74%

70.260/n

T^tql I Ot Rl nqR 1 no 000/" 1 02 8? t{* tofl 00q/. 1 q?-60 1t 2 1 n0 000/^

Name of Shareholder As at
31 March 2025

As st
31 Msrch 2024

Number of
shares

oh oI
holding

9/u Change

during the
Number of
shar€3

% ofholdlng % Change

during thc
vetr

Equity Shares
Mr. Abhisheka Kumar
Mr. Malkit Singh Didyala

30,'72,600
?4 ?O 0n0

18.43%
14 a10/"

(0.02w
(r o)o/"\

30,'12,600
,4 ?O 000

18.45%
1 4 5?.0/"

(0,03%)
/0 oiozl

54-92-tt00 32-94n/" (Il-1140/"\ 54-92.600 32.gAV" (0.06y.)

*
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Slndhula Microcredit Prlvate Llmlt€d
CIN: U65990UP2017PTC099006
Notes to llnanclal stet€ments for the y€sr ended 3l March 2025
(AIl amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

26 Other Equlty

In temrs of Section 45-IC of the RBI Act, t 934, the Company is required to transfer at least 20% of its net prolits to a reservc betbre any dividend is declared. As at the year-e nd,

rhc Company has tansferred an amount ofNil (31 March2024:612.6t Lakhs)

I The amourt pertairing to Optionally Corvertible Redeeuable Preference Shares is net oldet'errcd lax

Nature and purpose ofother reserve i
(i) Statutory reserve

ard transfer a sum ofnot less than 20% ofnet profit every period before declaration ofdividend.

(il) Securltles premlum
Securities premium is used to record the prenium received on issue ofshares. It is utilised in accordance with the provisions ofthe Conpanies Act, 2013.

(lii) Retalned Earnlngs

(lv) Emplovec sfock optlon plan reserve
The said amount is used to recognise the grant date fair value ofoptions issued to employees by the Company.

Romeasucn)cnts ofdcf-med bcnefit plans represents the following as per Ind AS 19, Ernployee Benefits:
(a) actuarial gains arrd losscs on defincd bcucfit obligations
(b) the return on plan assets, excluding amoults irrcluded ii net interest on the net defined benefit liability (asset); and
(c) any change in the effect oftho asset ceiling, excluding amomts included in net interest on the net defiled benefit liability (asset)

(v) Other Comprehsnslve lncome -

reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods, .in line with Ind AS .19

(vl) Equlty component of OCRPS ( Net of deferred tax)

Prcfcrcncc Sharcs (OCRPS))

Psrtlculsrs As at
31 March

,ltts

As rt
3l March

2024

As at
1 April 2023

Securlfles Premlum
Balance ar 1he begiming of the year

Add: Securities premiul on share options exercised duing the year

Issue of compulsorily convertible preference shares

Less: Slrare issue expenses

Balance at the end ofthe yesr (A)

Reserue fund [u/s 45(IC) ofthe Reserve Bank oflndla Act, 1934 ('RBI')]
Balance at the begitring of the year

Add: Amoul trmsferred during the year

Balance at the end ofthe ycsr (B)

Retalned earnlngs
Balance at the begitring of the yetr
Add : ProfiV (loss) for the year
[.ess: Amomt transfened during the year to Reserue Fund [u/s 45(IC) ofthe RB] Act, t9341

Add: Arnount trmsferred from ESOP Rescrue due to cancellation ofESOP after vesting (net ofdefened tax)

First time Ind AS impact adjustrnent

Balance at the end ofthe year (C )

Other Comptehenslve Income
Re-measurement galns / (losses) on deflned beneflt plans

Balance at the begiming of the yetr

Add: Other comprehensive income for the year

Balance at the end ofthe yeff (D)

Share Based Payment R€serve
Balancc at thc bcginning ofthc ycar

Add: Anounl trmsfened during the year

Less: Amount transfened fiorn ESOP Res€rve due to cancellation ofESOP after vesting
Less : Transfer lo securities premim on account ofoptions exercised

Balance at the end ofthe year [E)

Equlty compon€nt of Optionauy Convertible Redeemable Preference Shares (OCRPS)

Balance at thc bcgirning of the yea'

Add: Issue during the year+

Balance at the end ofthe year (F)

20,192.90

10.77

/0.98)

9,6r5.88

9.'17

10,94'1.64
(380.39)

9,6r 5.88

2{t-202-69 20-792.90 9.615.88

1,146.79 534.18

61) 6t

534.18

r,146,79 1.145.15 614.1R

3,887.73

(3,543.63)

4.t6

r,435. r0

3,063.06
(612.6r)

2.18

t,864.29

u29.19\
348.26 1 RR7 73 I 415 10

(3s.49)

51.63 /35.4S)
16.14 (35.491

45.33

l't.24
(4. l 6)
(4.'t9\

26.88

24.O1

(2.18)
(3.38)

36.92

00.04)
53.62 45.33 26.E8

8.82
8t2

Total Other Eoultv (A+B+C+D+E+F) 2t-176-32 25"231-26 11.612.n1

*

Y

t
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Slndhuja Microcredit Private timited
CIN: U65990I1P2017PTC099006
Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
(Al1 amounts in INR Lal:trs, unless otherwise stated)

27 Interest Income

28 Fees and commlssion income

29 Net gain on falr value chanqes

Partlculars For the Yeer Ended 31
Merch,2025

For the Year Ended 31

M*ch,2024

On Flnancial Assets measured at Amortised cost
Interest income on loan portfolio
Interest on fixed deposits with banks
lncome fiom unwindins of assimed nortfolio

21,485.47

I,503.61
24.61

20,222.1',7

6?3.85
11.35

Total 23.013.69 20.q7t.37

Particulars For the Year Ended 3l
March,2025

For the Year Ended 31
March,2024

Documentation charges

Service fee

Income from Business Correspondent operations

27.6',7

108.78

2.02t.29

9.50

67.46

Total 2.1s7.14 16.96

Particulars 31 March 2025 31 March 2024

Type of Services or service
Income from business correspondent operations 2.02t.29 67.46
Totcl revenue from contracts wlth customers 2.02t,29 67.46

Geographical markets
India
Outside India

2,027.29 67.46

Total revenue from contracts wlth customers 2.021.29 67.46

Particulars 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Timing of revenue recognltlon
Services transfened at a point in time
Services transferred over time 2.021.29 6',7.46

Total revenue from contracts with custom€rs 2.021.29 67.46

Partlculars 31 March 2025 31 Merch 2024

Contrect balances
Trade receivables

Contract assets

Contract liabilities

2t3.32 12.54

Particulars 31 March 2025 3l March 2024
Revenue as per Contract

Adjustments
Discount

2,021.29 67.46

Revenue from contract with customers 2.n21.29 67.46

Particulars For the Year Ended 31

March,2025
For the Year Ended 31

March,2024

Net gain on fair value instruments at fair value through prolit or loss

Gain on fair value ofcross currency interesl rate swap
Rcaliscd gaiu ol salv uinuiuai iurti irrvusurgrrr

95.15
i i0.37

Total 205,52 12.79

Y

:t

* o
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Sindhuja Microcredit Private Limited
CIN: U65990UP2017PTC099006
Notes to financial statements for the year ended 3l March 2025
(All arnounts in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

30 Net gain on derecognition offinancial assets

31 Other Income

32 Finance Costs

33 Impairment of financial lnstruments

34 Enrplovee Benefits Expenses

35 Depreciation and amortisation expense

Particulars F or the Year Ended 3l
March,2025

For the Year Ended 31

March,2O24

Gain on sale ofloan portfolio through assignment
Gain on preparrynent of loans assets 87.23

493.69

49.59

Total 87.23 543.28

Particulars For the Year Ended 31

March,2025
For the Year Ended 31

March,2024
Interest on lncome tax refund
Unwinding of security deposit

Amount written Back
Miscellaneous income

5.38

3.',16

163.79
53 14

3.24

0qn
Tofel 22(t-(t1 4.14

Partlculars For the Year Ended
31 March,2025

For the Year Ended
31 Merch,2024

On Financial Liabilities measured at Amortised cost
- Interest on debt seourities
- Interest on dcbt sccurities ECB
- Interest on liability component of OCR?S

- Interest on bonowings (other than debt securities)
Other lnterest exp
- Intcrcst on Lcase liabilitics
-Fair value loss on derivative contract

Net (gain)/loss on foreign currency transaction and translation on

extemal commercial bonowing

t,350.72
597.33

0.10

7,630.16

2',1.96

148.71

t,626.9'.1

153.91

'7,401;79

3',7.93

23.02

t6.76

Total 9.754.98 9.260.38

Parficulars For the Year Ended
31 March,2025

For the Year Ended
31March,2024

On financial assets measured at amortised cost
Irnpainnent allowancc on loans

Loans writteu off(Net ofrecovery)
Writc off on account of first loss default zuarantee (Net of recovcrv)

(3e.2e)

t0,79'7 .7 5

526.93

825.09

352.78

4.49

Totel I 1.285.39 1-182_36

Partlculars For the Year Ended
31 March,2025

For the Year Ended
31 March,2024

Salaries, wages and bonus

Contribution to Provident and other funds

Share baseel compensation expense

Stafl' welihre exDenses

6,686.93

510.47
l',l.24

I 18.64

5,1 84. l4
382.37

24.01

55.09
Total 7,333.28 5.645.61

Particulars For the Year Ended
3l March, 2025

For the Year Ended
3l March, 2024

Depreciation of tangiblc assets

Amortization of intangible assets

Depreoiation on fusht-of use assets

r 13.82

2..tJ

107.48

87.40
2.75

to2.7s
Total 224-03 192_90

Roc
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Slndhuja Microcredlt Prlvate Limited
CIN r U65990UP201 7PTC099006
Notes to flnancisl stltements for the year ended 31 March 2025
(All amounts in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

36 OtherExpenses

*Includes to

# includes paynent made to previous auditor Rs 2.34 lakhs for the year ended 3l Match 2O25

For the Year Ended
31 March,2025

For the Yeer Ended
31 Mnrch,2024

recruitrnent expenses

& Subscription

expenses

expenses

& professional charges*

and travelling expenses

& taxes

sitting fees

& stationery

& maintenance on building

Software and technology expenses

Corporate social responsibilities
Other Bank changes

35.24

106,60

108.24

172.00

145.08

524.41

501;77

16.34

203.02

57.44
12.15

13.90

58.92
49.18
't9.49

39.23

68.86

7"t.17

t22.65
'15.62

233.O7

322.69

24.72
181.96

21.53

7.81

17.17

38.90

28.12

31.18

Audit fee
Out ofPocket Expenses #

21.00
2.',t3

12.50

1.35

Total ,3_73 t3.85

o*
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Sindhuja Microcredlt Privste Limlted
CIN: U5599OuP2017PTC099006

Notes to financisl stetements for the yeer ended 31 March 2025
(A11 amounts in INR lakhs" unless otheruise stated)

37 Releted party transactlons

In accordance with the requirements oflnd AS 24, 'Related Party Discloswes', the names ofthe related party where control exists/able to exercise signilicant influence along

with the transactions and year-end balances with them as identified and certified by tle management are given below:

a) Detailc of related parfles:

Dercrlotlon of relotlonshlD Names of related nertles

Key management personnel (KMP)* Mr. Abhisheka Kumar (Managing Director)

Mr. Malkit Singh Didyala (C.E.O. and W.T.D.)

Mr Yashvant Malhotra (Independent dhector)

Mr Sandeep Phanasgaonkar (Independent Director)

Mr Diwakar Pundir (Independert Director)

Mr. Pankaj Kumar Sinha (Company Secretary)

The Entltles havlng slgnlllcant lnfluenc€ ln the compsny

1-Carpediem Capital Partners through Carpediem Capital Partners Fund I and

Carpediem Capital Partners Fund II
2-NMI FundIV KS

3-Huruma Fund S.C.A., SICAR-EuSEF

4-Oikocredit Ecumenical Development Cooperative Society U.A.

b) Ststement of transactions and Outstandlng balances with above related parties -

RoC

t-r

Particulars For the year etrded 3l For ttre year ended 31
Merch 2025 March 2024

Transactlon durlns the vear

fssue of Compulsorlly convertible preference rhares
Huruma Fund S.C.A., SICAR-EuSEF

Oikocredit Ecumenical Development Cooperative Society U,A,

Irsue of Optlonally converdble redeemable preference shares

Mr. AbhishekaKunar

Mr. Malkit Sing! Didyala

Remuneration paid
Mr. Abhisheta Kumar
Mr. Malkit Singh Didyala
Mr. Pankaj Kunrar Sinha

Sltting fees peid
Mr Yashvant Malhotra
Mr Sandeep Phanasgaonkar

Mr Diwakar Pundir

Relmburs€ment of expense
Mr. Abhisheka Kumar

Mr. Malkit Singh Didyala

Contributlon towards Provldent fund and other funds
Mr, Abhisheka Kunat
Mr. Malkit Singh Didyala
Mr. Pankaj Kunar Sinha

Post Employement Benefits

Grstulty
Mr. Abhisheka Kumar
Mr Malkit Singh Did,vala

Mr. Pankaj Kunar Sinha
Earned Lerve
Mr. Abhisheka Kmr
Mr. Malkit Singlr Didyala
Mr. Pankai Kunar Sinha

PerBonal guarantee given by Directors against borrowings
Mr. Abhisheka Kumar
Mr Abhisheka Krmar and Mr Malkit Singh Didyala (Jointly)

Personal gutrrrntee wlthdrawn by Dlrectore agalnst borrowlngs
Mr. Abhisheka Kumm
Mr Abhisheka Kumar and Mr Malkit Singfi Didyala (Jointly)

6.48

6.48

149.79
149.'19

14.02

2.45

6.00

5.45

4.83
4,95

6.90

6.90
0.22

3.07
118
0.35

L64
t.54
0.23

26,939.46

3,1 70.68
42,034.86

7,000.00

5,000,00

1 15,65

r r5.65
12.87

4.36
6.27

6.s4

3.21

0_40

6.74
6.14

0.48

7.27
1))
0.01

't.60

7.67
0,73

4,714.45

52,928,29

1,309.80

31,080.44

t



Sindhujr Mlcrocredit Prtvate Limited
CIN: U6599OLIP20l 7PTC099006
Notes to linencid strt€ments for the year ended 31 March 2025

Particulars
As rt

3l March 2025

As at
1l Mrrch 2024

As at
1 Anrtl 2023

Outstandine balances rs at the vear ended

Post Employement Benefits

Gratulty
Mr- Abhisheka Kumr
Mr. Malkit Singh Didyala
Mr. Pankaj Kumar Sinha
Earned leave
Mr. Abhisheka Kumar
Mr. Malkit Singh Didyala
Mr. Pankaj Kurnar Sinha

Compulsorlly convertlble preference shares

NMI FundIVKS
Carpediem Capital Partners Fund II
Hurura Fund S.C.A., SICAR-EUSEF

Oikocredit Ecumenical Development Cooperative Society U.A.

Optionally convertible rsdeemable preference rhares
Mr. Abhisheka Kurar
Mr. Malkit Sing! Didyala

Personal guarantee given by Directors againlt borrowitrgs
Mr, Abhisheka Kumar
Mr Abhisheka Kumar and Mr Malkit Sineh Didvala (JoifltM

t7.79
17.7't

1.42

14.69

14.71

0.97

2,400.00

800.00

7,000.00

5,000.00

6.48

6.48

2,064.r2
52.915.53

14.72
14.59

1.01

13.05

13.17

0.73

2,400.00

800.00

7,000.00

5,000.00

5,234.80
68.010.93

7.M
7.37
1.06

5.46
5.50

2,400.00
800.00

1,770. l5
46.163.08

+Key management persomel are those individuals who have the authority and responsibility lbr plaming and exercising power to dilectly or indirectly control the activities

ofthe Company and its employees. The Company considers the members ofthe Board olDirectors which include independent directors and Executive Committee to be key
management persomel for the purposes of Ind AS 24 Related Party Discloswes.

Terms snd condltiotrs with r€lated parti€s
All transactions with related parties are made on the tems equivalent to those that prevail in Brf,'s length transactions and within the ordinafy course ofbusiness.

MEH
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Sindhuja Micredit Private Limited
CIN: U65990UP2017PTC099006
Not6 to li@nci.l ststcments for the yed ended 3l March 2025
(All mouts id INR Lakhs, ulcs6 otheryise stded )

38 end Conalition

As rt As 8t As rt
3! March

DebentErg

1.000.00

994.25

2,989.95

2,190.10

3.182.93

2,i8't.20

12.744-43
1A 1AA AA

100.00

t00.00
t00.00
200 00

100.00

600.00

748.39

349.19

638-00

2A62.OO

3,t89.24

2,39r.93

9.17a.75
10 17fl ?{

100.00

100 00

100 00

200 00

100.00

198.09
7qa oc

3,92'7.93

425.33

t.64t.33

3.195.52

2.396.64

l,l 50.00

12.736-75
t1 l?r' g

Fae valre

1,000.00

l-000_00

t-000-00

l-000-00

1,000.00

1.000.00

10,00,000.00

10,00,000.00

10,00,000.00

10,00,000.00

10,00,000.00

1,00,000.00

1,00.000_00

1,00,000.00

10,00,000,00

r0,00,000.00

1,00,000.00

8t As rt As st
0l 2t23

200,00

100.00

300.00

220.OO

320.00

2,1O.00

lJ80.00
I lf,O On

10,000.00

10.000.00

10.000.00

20-000.00

t0000no

6n,ono oo

150.00

70.00

638.00

2,462.00

320.00

240.00

3A80.00
5?-flfo oo

l0-000.00

l0-000.00
t0-000.00

20-000-00

to 000-00

20,000.00
R0-ono-00

4,000.00

638.00

2,462.00

320.00

24o.00

I,150.00

8310,00
fln-tto-00

ferms of Norenvertible debertus

Allotment Dale: Jue ld 2023; Redeemable d pd on Juc 12, 202i; lntercst Rale: 12% p.a, paid mnthly
on Jue 12. Inrcrcst Rte:

al on 04. 2025: Intcrest Rate: t2%
Allotmetrt Date; August 05, 2023; Redeemable d pe on Augut 04 2025: hrq€st Rats: 12% p.a, paid monthly
Allotrnent Dale: Octobs 16, 2023; Redeefrablc at pe otr October i l, 2025; Intercst Rare: l2al. p.a. paid monthly
Allohnent Dde: Jiludy 02. 2025; Redeemabb at pd on J&uary 0 , 2027: Inteiest Rate: l2ol. p.a. Daid monthly
Iotal Umecmd NCD (A)

% Secued Ra&d Non Corvedible Debcnnrc allotted on Ma rch 08. at pd stdting ftom July 25,2023.
by way ofhypotha*ioo ofBook Debts Mintaitred at all .imes at I I 0% ofthe valuc ofthc out6reding principal )

14.54 % Secued Rared Non Convertible Debctrture allotted on March 3 l, 2021, rcdewble d pd on Mdch 06, 2024.
(SecuredbywayofhypothecationofBookDebtsmaintainedatall iucsatll0%oftkvalueoflheoutstmdingprincipal.)

12.857o Secued Raled Non Convertible Dcbenture allottcd otr Md ch 15, 2022 redeee6le at p{ otr Mach I 5, 2024.
(Secured by way ofhlpothaation ofBook Debts mintained al all , ihcs ar I l0% oftlE value ofthe outsreding principal )

RatedNon Convertible Debmturc allofted on Aupust 05, 2022 ilpe April 07,2024.
(SecrcdbyMyofhypoth4ationofBookDebtsmaintaineddall ihcsatll0%ofth€va.lueoftheoutstedingprincipal)

13.55% Secued Raled Non Convenible Dcbentue allotted otr August 05. 2022, rcdqnable at pd stafring fiom Apil 07,2024.
(SeredbywayofhypothsationofBookDebtsmintainedalall imcsatll0%ofthevalucofthcoutstmdingplincipal)

12.3070 Sccued RatedNon Convcrtible Debenturc allotted on Mach 28.2025, redeerEble atpd sffiing iod October 23, 2025.
(SemrcdbymyofhypotbedionofBookDcbtsmaintainedala.ll imcsall0T.ofthe ra.lueoftheoutstedingprincipalplusrcrudintercstobligatiotrs)

12.94% Serucd Unrated Non Cotrvefiible Debmhre allotted or D:cember 28. 2013 redeemable d pd sffiing iom Deccmbd 15, 2025.
(Secrcd by way ofhlpotheation ofBook Dcbts minbined at all imcs ar 10070 of the value ofthc outsreding principal plus rccrud interest obligatiotrs)

[2.947. Secued Umted Notr Conveltible Dcbenturc allotbd on D3c€mbcr 28, ?023, redeemable at pd starting from Deccmbcr 15, 2025.
(Secured by way ofhlpothecation ofBook Debts maintained d all , imes at I 007. oftlE value ofthc outstbding priDcipal plus ecru€d interest obligdions)

12.80y" Secued Uearcd Non Convertiblc Dcbontw allottcd on D:ccmbq 16,2022, redeemable al pd on D@ember I 6. 202i.
(Sccurcd by my of hlpothcc*ior of Book Debts ruintaircd ar atl r imes at 10070 of th€ valuc of the ontstmding principal plus 4@ed interest obligatiotrs)

Secucd Uuated Non Conveniblc Debentuc allottd on D:ombcr 16, 2022, redeemble ar pd on D@embq 16, 2025.
by way ofhlpothaatiotr ofBook Debts maintaincd at all r imes at 1007. ofthe value ofthe outstmding principal plE ecrued intqcst obtigatioDs)

I 3 .000/. Secued Rated Non allottcd otr Ju( 28, 2024, redeetrEble at pd, 30% on Deccmber 25, :025 on
by way of hlpothcation ofBook Debts mintained al a.ll lises at I 10% of the vatue of thc outsteding principal plus ecrcd intercst obligationE)

Total Secured NCD (B)

Totrl (A+B)

As atAs rt

r,788.00

Amounl
A! rt

1,837.4r

4,240-37

of ExterEl CoMercid Borowitrg (ECB)

I 1.43%, 2 miuion Eurc ECB allotted on Juc 30, 2023. redcemabh on Jue 30. 2025.
by way of hypothccatiotr of Book Dcbts maintaincd ar all iimss al I l0% of the value of thc oursreding mout plus amed hter€st obligations).

5 million USD ECB allotted on Jue 28, 2024 ad rcdcem:ble on yalypalmeni 2570 @h on 03rd July 26 ad 03rd July27 ad r@ining 50% on 03!d July 2028
by My ofh]lothccdiotr ofBook Debts @intaincd at all limcs at I 109/0 ofthc valuc ofthc oursteding principal pl6 rccrued interest obligations)

lr.28a/o,



SlndhuJa Mlcrocredlt Pr{vrte Llnited
CIN: U65990UP2017PTC099006
Notes to llnNnclrl ststementE for the year ended 3l Mrrch 2025
(All amounts in INR Lakls, udess otheryise stated)

39 Tern$ of RepsymeDt of Debt Securltles/Bonowlngs/ECB

39.1 Terms of Debt

Term of of Debt

a$ oD Mrrch 2025

Frequency of
repsyment

Orlglnal
msturlty oflorn

lnterest rste

Du€ trlthln 1 vear Due between 1-2 vesrs Due betwcen 2-3 vears Due betwcen 3-4 vesrs

TotelNo. of
lnstall-
menfs

Amount No. oftnst&[.
msnts

Amaunt
No. of
lnstsu-
menfr

Ahount
No, of
lnstall-
menfr

Amount

Borrowlnss (Othcr iban Dclrt securltles)
From Benk 1'l

Monthlv to.'v" - 1|v. 44 .r.000.00 7 348.82 3.348.82
11% - 11.5% 93 5.502.38 26 1,512.88 4 211.18 7 297 $7

11 5n/"- 120r, 58 i 675 60 2 I,l 03.87 4.'179.47

12% - 12.5% 97 7;t72.55 36 3-568.45 11.34t.00
12.50/" - 13V" 22 2.552.08 t7 531 26 3,083.33

Ouarterlv I -3 veas 12.5%- 13% 8 500.00 25.00 525.00
From Financlal Instltulions (Term Loatr)
Moflthlv I,l9l. l2 14 615.28 1.806.40

115%- 12% 35 1.963,50 7 450.00 2.413.sO

t2v" - 12.5% 49 3.044.12 14 I 064 l7 3 240 00 .1.348.89

r2.5% - 13% t33 6,003.52 18 1.751.55 '1.755.0'1

t3v.- 13.50/" 28 1_855.84 I 855 
'{4Ouarterlv 64r.1S 642.39

Non CoDvertible Debentures (Secured)

Y earlv l2.5Yo - I3Yo 2 I,033.33 2 1.033,33 2.066.67
r3v, - 13.5% I 345.00 805.00 I,150.00

Ouarterlv t20/" - t).50/" 4 1.454.55 4 1.454.55 363.64 4.000.00
Bullet l-3 vears 12.5% - 13% j 5.600.00 5.600 00

Non Convertible Dcbcntures (Unsccrred)
Bullet t 20/" l2 so/" 5 600.00 1 200.00 800-00

Orteraal Commcrcial Bomwlnss
Yearly above 3 vears 1lV"- 11.50/" I O43 13 I |,043. I 3 I 2.086.25 4.172.50
Bullet tlyo- 11.504 I t;187.60 1.787.60

Totsl 605.00 46.009.30 165.00 17.294.88 12.00 3.015.45 2.00 2-419-49 68,?69.51

Inpact ofEIR on Borowirgs (Other thtui Debt Secuities) (2r 2.93)

Impact ofEIR on Debt Seculities (81.82)

Impact of EIR on Extemal Comercial Borowirgs (4"1.78)

Impact of Accrued Interest 332.29

Impact ofForeisn Exchillse Fluctuatiotrs otr ECBs 165.46

Impact ofLiability component ofOptionally Convertible Redeemable Prefbrence Shares (OCRPS) t.27
Grsnd Totrl 68.925.99

Due tr lln I vear Du€ bctwcen l-2 ycsrs Due lrctween 2-3 verrs Duc bctwccn 3-4 vcars
Frcquency of
replyment

Orlglnsl
msturlty oflo|n

Intsrest rtte No. of
lnstall-
mcnts

Amount
No, ofltrstsll"
ments

Amount
No. of
lnstsll-
mcnts

Amount
No, of
install-

ments

Amount
Totsl

Boros'lngs (Other thsn Debt Securides)

From B&nk (Tcm Loan)
Monthlv I -3 veaas too/"-to 5,% 272.73 2',12.73

IO.5%-lt% 23 1.256.89 I 256 l{9
11%- tl5% l19 1.162.09 65 4.-12'1 1a I 3t\7.24 r:.876.71
11.5V,- 12V. IM 4, I 65.00 15 895.71 l 1.,139.56
t2% - t2.5yD 24 3.084.71 l0 2.083.33 5 l6tt 05

12.5v,- 13% 6"1 4.1 I 9.fi6 1.149 6s 5.lt69.51
t3% - 13 s% 475.94

t4v, - 14.5% ll 857.15 857.15
Ouarledv I -3 Years 12.5V" - 13V" l{ 500.00 I 25.00 1.000.00

\3% - 13.5% 4 1.250.00 I 250 00

From Flnsncial Institutlons (Tcrm Loan)
Monthlv 1-3 vems lo.5v"-11v" 22 ,126.60 24 1.191.12 14 61 5.28 2.93i.00

tt% - 11.5% t2 402.00 l1 363.50 765.50
120/" - 12 5% 55 ? 826 05 ?g 1 144 1) 1M 11 5.!?4 !4
12.5% - t\n/. 192 t14 5,219.8t 14.729.58
t3% - t3.5% 63 4.600.58 26 1.518.58 6 41650 6,535.67
13.5%- t4% 1i6 2.104.16 2.tl&..t6
140/" - t4 51/" l1 627.3'7

altatrerlv l -3 years 5 857.r4 3 642 A2 1.499.96
Debt Securltlcs

Non Conveltlble Debentures (Securcd)
ilrhlv l-3 yetrs 13.5% - 14% 24 1.t00.00 1.1 00.00

Yearlv l-3 vem t2.56/. - t3V" ,033.t1 2 1.033.33 2 1.033.33 3 10000
Bullet l-3 verrs t2.5% - t3% 2 5_600.00 5.600.00
Non Conyertlble Debentures (Unsecured)
Bullet I -3 veus I 2"/o - l2.5Vn 5 600.00
Extemal Commerclal Borowlngs
B'rller l-3 yetrs l1y. - tt.5v. t 1.i8i.60 1.7R7.60
Total 31.639.23 s-764.f! 87,024.12
Impact ofEIR or Borowings (Other thaf, Debr Securities) (382.67)

ofEIR on Debt Securities (21.25)

Impact of EIR on Extemal Comrelrial Borowinqs ( r6,36)
of 349.94

lmpact ofForeign Exchanqe Fluctuations on ECBs v)-:-<rl 16.76

Grand Tolsl a6,971,14

/
* * .(,
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Sindhuje Mlcrocredlt Prlvete Llnlted
CIN: U6599OUP2017PTC099006

Notes to llnrnclsl statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
(All ernounts in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

39 Terms ofRepayment of Debt Securitles/Borrowlngc/ECB
(Continued)

Terms of Debt t8 0n 2023

39.2 R€concllhdon of llabllldei srlslng from llnrnctng actlvlties
The changes in the Group's liabilities aising fiorn lmancing activities cm be classified as follows:

oR L

*

l?

Y
=5

t

Frequency of
repayment

Original
msturlty of
loan

lDterert nte

Due wlthln I vear Due between 1-2 years Due hetween 2-3 verrs Due b€twe€n 3-4 vesro

TotslNa of lnrtall-
ments

Amount
No. of
install-
ments

Amount
No. oflnsfall-
meltts

Amount
No. oflnstall-
ments

Amoutrt

Borrowlnss (Other than Debt S€curitles)

From Bank (T€rmLoan)

Monthlv I -3 vean q.5v"-100/" 48 2,448.92 23 1.281.96 4.1?0.88
loo/"-10.50/" 30 1.181 .80 I 272.'7'7 1.454.57

10j%-11% 27 1,159.09 1.159.09

l1% - 115% 34 1.840.85 29 1.685.66 3.526.52

11.50/" - 12y" 36 1,548.00 21 906.54 ).454.55

120/" - 12.5V, 24 1-323.55 10 509.58 1.833.13

t2.50/. - 130/" 34 1.989.21 22 1.629.13 3.618.34
l3o/n - 13.5V" l2 73 1.55 8 543.63 1.275.t8
11.50/" - 140/" 36 2.293.O7 5 595.24 2.888.30
140/" - 14 50/" 28 716.96 6 268.33 985.29

14.5% - 15% 6 333.34 333.34

Ourierlv 1-3 vears 12.50/. - 130/, 4 1.250.00 4 1.250.00 2.500.00

From Flnanclal Instltutlons (Term Loan)
Month'lv I -i vean llo/" - lt ao/" 'l 214 50 12 402.OO ll 363.50 t.000_00

t20/o - t2.5vo 42 2.042.87 23 1.019.56 1.062.41

12.5%-13% 48 3.985.08 28 2.468.08 7 185.19 6 {518 15

130/, - t3.5v. 48 2.974.71 30 2.155.10 5.129.81
13.5o/o - l4Vo 212 3.213.57 110 1.533.86 4.747,43

140/" - 14.5% 15 958.33 958.33

14.5% - l5o/o 22 981 _68 981.68
150/" - 15.50/" 1 0.24 0.24

Debt Seculties
Non Convertible Deb€ntures {Secued)
Rilllet I -3 vears 12.50/" -'t?0/" 1 1.O00.00 2 5.600 8.600.00

Half Yearly 1-3 vears 13n/o - 135% a 1.000.00 1.000.00

Monthlv 1-3 vears 13% - r3.5% 1t 1.1 00.00 12 1.100 2,200.00

Yearlv 1-3 vears 14.504 - 150/o 1 1.000.00 1,000.00
Totsl 724 37.747.31 352.00 t7.62L.45 15.00 6.148.69 61,5t'1.46

Lroact ofEIR on Borowincs (Other thm Debt Secuitics) (285.72\

Irnoact ofEIR on Debt Sccuritiss (51.57)

Accroed ltrterest 3s9.17

Grand Total 61,539,34

Pardculars Debt
securldes

Borrowingr
(other than
dcbr)

Total

Aoril 01.2023 12 925 9A 4R61336 6t 519.34

Cash flows;
-Repaymsnt 16 I 00 00) /40.2S5 351 f46 195 151

-Proo€eds other thm overdraft facility 5.48?.60 66.415.01 '11.902.61

Non*ash:
-Addition during the yaar 122.68 227.26 349.94
. Reversal durinq the year (117 55\ rl R1 .62t /359.1?l
-Foreign exchange 16.76 16.'76

-Deferment of upfront pfocessing fe€ 07.61\ (382.6't) (420.28\
-Reversal of defcrment ofupfront processine fee upto 3 I March. 2023 51.5? 285.72 131.29
-Others

March 31, 2024 t2,289.43 71.68t.71 86.971.t 
Crsh llows:
-Repslment {2.133.33) (53.844.37,) (55.g',|',t;10\

-Proceeds other than overdraft facility I 522 4A 2R lSg SS 71 722 41

Non*ash:
-Addition during the year 201 06 lll 23 11229

Reversal during th€ year n22.68\ (22',1.26\ (349.94\

-Foreign exchanqe 1 4R't1 14R 11

-Defement of upfront processisg fes n29.60) (212.93\ (342.53\
-Rsvocal of dofcrmcnt of upfront prcocssios fcc upto 3 I Mwb, 2024 37.61 iR2 67 420 2R

-Oth€$ 7.27 1.2't
March 31,2025 l9-813-ttfl ds-l12-1r 6fl-92i,q9

r
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Sindhuja Microcredit Private Limited
Cl N: U65990UP201 7PTC099006

Notes to financlal statem€nts for the year ended 3l March 2025

(All arnounts in INR Lakhs, unless otheruise stated)

40 Ratlngs assigned try credlt ratlng agencies

Prrticulars As at 3l March 2025 As at 31 March 2024

(a) Micro Finance Institution Grading

(b) Non-Convenible Debenture

(c) Long Term Bank Loans

CARE MFI 1

,IND BBBY POSITI\'E

'IND BBB'7 POSITIVE and "CRISIL
BBB'TSTABLE

CARE M2+

'IND BBB'Y STABLE

"IND BBB"/ STABLE and

"CRISIL BBB'7 STABLE

41 Employee Shar€ Brsed Payments

Option plan (,.Employee Stock Option Plan (ESOP)') pursuant to the provisions ofSection 62 and other applicable provisions, ifany, ofthe Companies Act, 2013 read with the

2024, the Company granted 64,000 nulnber ofoptions (Previous year 96,968) to the eligible employees ofthe Cotnpany.

equity settled.

The

A Employee stockoption schemes:

Details ofgrant and exercise of such options are as follows:
2019SMPL

Mov€ment durlng the yeer
'lhe mxnber and weighted average exercise prices (WAEP) ol, and ttlovcrllents irt, shaic oplioils during ilrc ycat:

On completion ofone year

0n completion of two years

On completion oftkee years

25%
25%

25%
25%

Service

Service

Service

On

Tvne of arransement Tranche I Tranche II Tranche III Tranche lV Tranche V

ofgant ofoptions
ofoptions granted

of ernployees to whom such options were granted

Date ofBoard approval

Vesting period

Exercise period

Exercise Price

Option Life
Fair Value of fte option

Risk ftee interest tate

05-Nov-19

82,917
19

30-Sep-1 9

05-Nov-20
5 Novenber 2020 to

4 Noven$er 2024

33.83

4 years

8.45
'7.l6yo

l0-Nov-20
1,40,934

45

10-Nov-20

l0-Nov-21
l0 November 2021

to 10 Novembet
2025

33.83

4 years

14.71

6.92o/a

25-Nov-21

90,000
25

25-Jun-21

25-Nov-22

25 Novenrber 2022

to 24 Novenrber
2026

33.83
4 years

r4.69
6.13%

l2-Nov-22
96,968

23

28-Mar-22
l2-Nov-23

l2 November
2023 ro 12

November 2027

33.83

4 years

55.56

6.54%

20-Nov-23

64,000
1'l

20-Nov-23
20-Nov-24

20 Novenrber 2024

to 20 November
2028

33,83

4 years

87.63

6.64%

Particulars

Year endcd
31 March 2025

Year ended

3l Match2024

Number of options

Welghted average

exercise price
Number of
options

Weighted average

exercrse Drtc€

Outstanding at the begirming ofthe year

Granted druing the year

Iorfeited during the year

Exercised during the year

Expired duing the year

Lapscti tiuilg Lirc ycar

Outstf,ndlrs at th€ end of the vear

2.65

0.51

n-,,

33_83

3l.83
33.83

33.83

2.92

0.64
0.64

0.2'l

33,83
33.83

33,83

33.83

33.831.89 2.65

*
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Sindhuia Microcredit Private Linited
CIN : U55990uP2017PTC099006
Notes to finenclal st|tements for the year ended 3l March 2025

(All amouuts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise sared)

B Summary of share ba$ed payments
the 31 2025

f,'or the ended 31 2n24

L Yeruation ol stocl. optronr

options were granted.

The following table lists th€ inputs to the rnodel used for equity-settled options:

F'or the 3l 2025

Perticulars Tranche I Tranche II Tranche III Tranche IV Tranche V Total

Outstanding at the beginning ofthe year

Options granted during the year

Options forfeited during the year

Options exercised during the year

Options expired during the year

Ootions lansed duins the vear

0.19

0.09

0.04

0.45

0.10
0,09

0,61

0.12
0.09

0.79

0.11

0.03

0.60

0.09

2.64

0.51

0.25

Ontlons outrtendlnp at the €nd of the oerlod 0.06 0,26 0.40 0.65 0.51 1.88

For share optlons exerclsed:

Weighted average exercise price at date ofexercise
Money realized by exercise ofoptions

For share optlons outstrndlng:
Exercise prices

Avemge remsining contractual life ofoptions (years)

33.83
l,35

33.83

33.83

3.02

33.83
0.61

33.83
3.00

33,83
1.65

33.83
1.12

33.83
2.62

33.83

33.83

3.64

8.49

Perticulsrs Tranche I Tranche U Tranche III Trcnche IV Trenche V Totel
Outstanding at the beginning ofthe year

Options granted during the year

Options forfeited during the year

Optiom exercised during the year

Options expired during the year

Ootions laosed durins the vear

0,41

0.13

0.09

0.76

0. l8
0,t2

0.82

0.15

0.06

0.93

0. l4
0.64

0.04

2.92

0.64
0,64

0,27

Ontions outstandlns at the end of the Derlod 0.19 0.46 0.61 0,79 0.60 2.65

For share optlons excrclsed:
Weighted average exgrcise price at date of exercise

Money realized by exeicise ofoptions

For share optlons outstandlng:
Exercise prices

Average remaining conlractual life of options (years)

33.83

3.00

33.83

33.83

3.95

33.83
1.61

33.83

2.11

33.83

2.65

33.83

33.83

3.62

33.83

33.83
4.64

9.06

Prrflcrrlers Trsnche I Trenche fI Trenche III Tranche IV Totel
Outstanding at the beginning ofthe yeat
Options granted dru'ing the year

Options forfeited duing the year

Options exercised during the year

Options expired duing the year

Ontions lansed durins the vear

0.4 0.76 0.83 0.93 2.93

Obflonr oufsfrndlnq rf the end of the nerlod 0.41 0.76 0.83 0.93 2,93

For shar€ optlons exerclsed:

Weighted average exercise pdce at date of exercise

Money realized by exercise ofoptions

For share options outstanding:
Exercise prices

Average remaining conlractual life ofoptions (years)

33.83

33.83

33.83

33.83

2.6t

33.83

33.83

3.65

33.83

33.83

4.62

Valuation of Stock oDtions srunted Trenche I Trcnehe II Trenche III Trrnche IV Trnnche V
Grant Date
Number of options granted

Vesdng Dates
Fair value ofoption
Exercise Prioe

Expected volatility

Basis of detennination of expected volatility:
Conh"ctual Option Life (years) (till exercise period)
Risk free interest rale

Model ued

82,9t'l
05-Nov-20

8,45

33.83

12.68%

4 years

7.160/o

\- Black-Scholes
4.r\ Morlet

05-Nov-l 10-Nov-20
t,40,934

I 0-Nov-21
14.70

33.83

19.64%

4 years

692Vo
Black-Scholes

Model

25-Nov-21

90,000

25-Nov-22
14,69

33.83

20.6't%

4 years

6.73yo

Black-Scholes
Model

l2-Nov-22
96,968

l2-Nov-23
55.56
33.83

21.75%

4 years

6.54%
Black-Scholes

Mode]

20-Nov-23

64,000

20-Nov-24
87.63

33.83

21.10%

BtEzHcholes Model

4 years

6.64%

*
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Sindhula Microcredit Privete Llrnited
CIN : U65990IJP2017PTC099005

Notes to flnanclel strtements for the year ended 31 March 2025
(All amounts in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

For

Vrlurtion of Stnck ontions orented Trenche I Trenche II Trnnche III Trenche IV Tranche V
Grant Date

Nunber of options granted

Vesting Dates

Fairvalue ofoption
Exercise Price

Expected volatility

Basis of detemination of expected volatility:
Contractual Option Life (years) (till exercise period)

Risk ftee interest rate

Expected dividend rate

Model used

05-Nov-19
82,9t7

05-Nov-20
8.45

33.83
12.68%

4 years

7,16%

Black-Scholes
Model

l0-Nov-20
1,40,934

10-Nov-21

14.70
33.83

19.64Vo

4 years

632%

Blaek-Scholes
Model

25-Nov-21
90,000

25-Nov-22
14.69

33.83
20.670/o

4 yeare

6.73%

Black-Scholes
Model

12-Nov-22

96,968
12-Nov-23

55.56

33.83
21.75%

4 years

6.54%

Black-Scholes
Model

20-Nov-23

64,00c
20-Nov-24

87.63

33.83
21.100/"

4 years

6,64%

Black-Scholes Model

Valuation of Stock oDtions sranted Trenche I Trenche II Tranche III Trenche IV
Grant Date

Number of options granted

Vesting Dates

Fairvalue ofoption
Exercise Price

Expected volatility

Basis of detemination of expected volatifity:
Contractual Option Life (years) (till exercise period)

Risk ftee interest rate
Expected dividend rate

Model used

05-Nov-19

82,911
05-Nov-20

8.45

33.83
12.680/,

4 years

7.l6o/q

Black-Scholes
Model

10-Nov-20
1,40,934

10-Nov-21

14.70

33.83
t9.64%

4 years

6s2%

Black-Scholes
Model

25-Nov-21

90,000
25-Nov-22

t4.69
33.83

20.67%

4 years

6.73o/o

Black-Scholes
Model

12-Nov-22

96,968
12-Nov-23

55.56

33.83
21.75%

4 years

6.54o/o

Black-Scholes Model

MEH
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Sindhuja Microcredit Private Limited
CIN: U65990UP2017PTC099006
Notes to financial statements for the year ended 3l March 2025
(All amounts in INR Lakhs, unless othenrise stated)

42 CorporateSocialResponsibility

Note: The Company has undertaken CSR Activities as per schedule VII ofthe Companies Act,2013

a
**

Particulars 31 March 2025 31 March 2024

a) Gross amount required to be spentbythe Company during the year

b) Amount spent during the year on

(i) Construction/acquisition of any asset

(ii) On purpose other than (i) above

c)

d)

ShortfalV(Excess) at the end ofthe year (a-b)

Reason for shortfall of CSR expenditure if any

Nature of CSR activities

e)

{)

Details ofrelated party transactions in relation to CSR expenditure as per relevant
IND-AS 24 " Rclated Partigs Disclosurc"

Provision made with respeot to Liability incurred by entering into oontractual

oblieation

51.44

51.50

51.50

(0.06)
NA

Rural Healthcare Program,

Paediatric heart surgeries,

Support for poor hearing-

impaired Children and

adults, Revamping under-
privileged students' toilet
blocks and benches for
educational purposes at

BalakVrinda Education
Society school, Anup
Sridhat Badminton
Academy

NA

NA

21.53

21.15

27;75

(0.22)
NA

Paediatric heart sllfgeries,

Rural Eye Health Program,

Nutrition for children
through organic farming

NA

NA

NEW
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Sindhuja Microcrerlit Private Limited
CIN: U659901JP2017PTC099006
Notes to finsncisl ststements for the yerr ended 31 Msrch 2025

(All amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

43 DlsclosuresofDerivrtiveContracti

I. Assets
Foreign

Currency

31 Merch 2025 31 Msrch 2024 01 ADrll 2023

Exchange Rate
Amount in
Foreign
Curencv

Amounl
Exchange
Rate

Amount ln
Forelgn
Currencv

Amounl
Exchenge
Rrte

Amount in
Foreign
Currencv

Amounl

Receivables (trade & other)
Other Monetary assets (e,9. ICDs/Loans

eiven in FC)

Total Receivables (A)

lledses bv derivative contracts (B)
llnhedsed Recelvahles /C=A-B)

II. Llsbilttles Foreign
Currency

31 Msrch 2025 31 March 2024 01 Aoril 2023

Exchonge Rate
Amount in
Foreign
Currencv

Amounl
Exchange
Rrte

Amount in
Foreign
Currencv

Amounl
Exchange
Rste

Amount in
Foreign
Currencv

Amount

Pavables (trade & other)

Borrowines (ECB and Others) Euro 91.87 20.00 1.837.4t 90.22 20.00 1.788.00

Dollar 84.81 50.00 4.240.37

Totd Pavsbles (D) 70.00 6,077.78 20.00 1.788.00
Hedees bv derivative contracts (E) 70.00 6-077.78 20.00 1.788.00

Unhedeed Pavables G=D-E)

II. Contingent Liabilities and
commitmenls

Forelgn
Currency

31 March 2025 31 March 2024 0l Anril 2023

Exchenge Rate

Amoutrt in
Forelgn

Currencv Amount
Exchange
Rate

Amount in
Foreign
Currency Amount

Exchange
Rate

Amount in
Foreign
Currencv Amounl

Continsent Liabilities
Commitments

Total {G)
Hedees bv derivstive contracts (H)

Unhedeed Pavsbles fl =G'I{)

Total Unhedged FC Exposures
(J=C+F+I)

April 2023.
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Slndhuja Mlcrocredit Private Limlted
CINr U65990UP201 7PTC099006

Notes to flnenclrl statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
(All amounts in INR [,akh.s, unless oth€rwise ststed)

44 Esrnlng per shf,re

Basic eamings (toss) per share amounts are colculat€d by dividing the profiVloss for the year attributable to equity holders by the weighted average number of equity shares

outstanding during rhe year. Diluted eamings(loss) per share is computed using the weighted average nmber of comon and dilutive common equivalent shares outstanding dwing

the year, excspt where the result would be antidilutive.

The followlng r€flects the lncome and share dats used ln the baslc snd dlluted EPS computatlons:

Partlculars For the Year Ended
11 Mnrch 2025

For the Y€ar Ended
11 Mrrch 2O2d

Orrllnary equlty shareholders
Net profit / (loss) attributable to ordinary equity holders

Weighted average number of equity shares for basic EPS

Weighted average number of equity shares for diluted EPS

Face Value per share

Basic loss per share (INR)
Dilutetl loss oer share (INR)

(3,s43.63)

4,69,44,833
4,69,44,833

i0.00
(7.s5)

{7.55)

3,063.06

3,64,81,219
3,65,83,200

10.00

8.40

8.37

Notes:

the discloswe is resfticted to basic EPS.

ii. Weight€d average shares mentioned above are numbers.

iii. As per Ind AS 33,Para23 " Ordinary shares that will be issued upon the conversion of a mandatorily convertible instrument ie included in the calculation of basic emings per

shsre from the date the contract is enter€d into". Consequently CCPS have been included in the computation ofBasic EPS.

45 Contlugent Liabllltles nnd commltments (to the extent not provlded for)

financial position, results ofthe Compmy, or cash flows with respect to loss conthgsncies for legal and other contingencies as at March 31, 2025

Psrtlculars As rt
1l Mnrnh 202(

As at
11 Mcrch 2024

As st
I Anrll 2021

(a) Contlngent llablUtles
Claims against the company not acknowledged as debts

Coryorate guarantee towards loans

FLDG against Business Conespondence

(b) Commltmcnts
Estimated amount ofcoutracts remaining to be executed on capital account and not provided for
Commitments related to loans sanctioned but not disbursed

I,538.8 I
5.68 740.66

Tntrl 1.538,81 5.68 74n-66

RoC
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SlndhulN Mlcrccredlt Prlvlte Ltmlted
CIN: U65990UP2017PTC099006

Notes to flnsnclsl statement6 for the yeqr ended 31 Mrrch 2025
(All amounts itr INR Lakhs, unless otheruise stated)

46 Employee Beneflts

(A) Delined Contdbudon fl&ns The Cornparry makes Provident fund rvhich are defured cor[ibutio[ plils for qualifying employecs, Utrder the schenes, the Group is requirtd
to coltribute a specified percent&ge ofdre b&sic s&lary to fr]nd the benefits.

Duing the year, the Comparryhas recognized the following mounts in fte Statement of Profit ild Loss

Pffdculars
FQr thc Year Etrded 31

March 2025

For the Yesr Eoded

31 March 2024

Employers' Contributioo to Proyident Fund and other funds.
Emnl6verc .nntrilrntion tn ESTC

5t0.4'1
"t1 61

382.37
5t g?

(B) Deflned Bcneflt Plans
a) Grstulty paysble to employe€s The Company provides for the gratuity, a defitred benefit retiremenl plu coyering quali$ing employees. Employees vho are in continuous

seruice for a pedod of 5 yeus ue eligible for gatuity. The anount of gratuity payable on retireurent/temination is the employees last drawn

basic salary pm month computed proportionately for l5 days salary multiplied by the nmber of yeus of senice.

@

preseut value of the defitred beDefit plan liability is calculated using a discount Bte detemined byleference to Govement Bouds Yield, Il
liability is fmded md refum on plan asseLs is below this rate, it wilt crcate a plan defioit.Investrnetrt risk

lnt
Interest dsk (discomt rate risk) lA decrease iu the bond interest rate (discomt mte) will increase the plan liability.

Mortality risk
I The present value of rhe defined benefit plan liabifity is calculated by rsfereBce to the best estinate of tl]€ moltality ofplan padicipants. For tlis

lrepon we bave used Indim Assured Lives Morfrlity (2012-14) ultimate teble. A chmge in mofiality r"te will have a beiliog otr the plil\
Iti"uiriry.

Salary risk
[Th" pr"r.u, value of the defned benefit plau liability is calculated with the assunptiol of salary ilcrease rate of plm participilts itr futwe

I 
Deviation ir rhe rate ofhcreasc of salary in fuhtre for plm participauts from the rate of itrcrcase in salary used to detemine the present value oi

lobligation will havc a beuing on the plan's liabiliry.

Partlculars As at 3l March 2025 As st 31 Msrch 2024 As at lst Aplil 2023

Assumptlons - Economlc
Discorut mte (per amum)
Salary escalation rate

Assumptions - Demographlc
Retirement age

Attdtion mte

Mortalityrate

630%
t0%

60.00
40%

Indian assued lives

Norlality (2012- 14)

ult.

7.10%
t0%

60.00
20y"

Indim assued lives

mortality (2012- 14) UlL

730%
10%

60.00
20%

lndian assured lives

mortality (2012- l4)
ult.

Partlculars As at 31 March 2025 As 8t31 Mrrcb 2024 As at 1st April 2023

l'rsscnt vslue of obligsdon rt the lrglnning of thc year
Cunent seryice cost

lnterest cost

Benefits paid

Actuarial (gain)/ loss from change in financial essumptions

Actuarial (gai[)/ loss frorn change iI dernographic assumptious

Actuarial (eain)/ loss nrisins from exoerience sdiustmeflts

142.55

37.84
t0,12
(3.71)

2.21

(63.53)
t2 92

65.33

57.21

4.17
(5.s0)

1.64

lg t0

30.50
27.56
2.10

(r.s8)

6.75

Presenf vrlle of ohllsstlon !t the cnd ofthe vesr* lln40 142.\5 65-33

risks arc:- investmc[t

r--D
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Shdhujs Mlcrocredlt Prlvste Llrdted
CIN: U65990UP201?PTC099006

Notca to flnetrclsl ltatcments for the yerr ended 31 March 2025
(All mowts in INR Lakhs, unless otheryise stated)

Pardculars As at 3l March 2025 As rt 31 MNrch 2024 Ar at lst Aprll 2023

Ctrnent amowt due within a yw'
Ndn .rrpnr - qtr^rni due 

^ftcr 
dhe wFar

37.44
10096

12.83

t29.72
5.04

60.29

Tntel tlf ao 1d2-S5 65_11

Psrdculsru
For the Yerr Ended 3l

Mnrrh 2O2(
For the Yerr Ended

31 March 2ll24

Curent seryics cost

Net interest on net defued liabilityi(asset)

37.84

10,12

57.21

4.',l't

Tntal eyhFn{tss rF.oonlrrrt ln rh. Stsiemtsnf Prnfit nnd Lnrr* 41-96 61.S8

ln the Stat€m€nt ofProflt and Loss

Pardculrrs For the Year Ended 31

Mrhh 2025
For the Year Ended

31 Mrrch 202C

Actuariat (gain) / loss on liability for the period
Retrff on nlah assets exchrdins interest income

(68.ee) 47.42

Nef flrhrf,rlel fotln.) / lnsrc* recnmlspd ln OCI 168-9gl 47-42

Prrfhulelr As et 31 Mrrch 2025 As rt 31 Merch 2024 Ad rt lst ADdl 2023

Present value ofufuuded obfigation as at the end ofthe yeu
FrirVahrc nfplan A($t( .f fhF pnd 

^ffhp 
werr

138.40 t42.55 65.33

Net Ilehllltv recosnlzcd ln Bshnce Sheet 138.40 142.55 6{ 11

Parflculrrs Ac rf 1l Mrnh 2Ol-( A! ot 1l MrLh 2ntr' Ac cf lif Abr{l tntl

Defned benefit obligation on Curent Assumptiotrs
s) Impsct due to change ln dlscount rste
hnpact due to incre6se of l9lo

hapact due to decrease of lolo

b) Impact due to chsng€ In salary cscsladoD rste
lmpact due to iflcrease of lYo

lmpact due 10 deffeasc of I o/o

138.40

3.65

3.85

3.1 I

3.00

142.55

7.86

8.'72

't.53

6.91

65.33

3.67

4.07

3.77

3.5r

ofdelined benelit
Ac rf i1 Mcmh 2O?{ As rr 1l Mrvoh 2024 As rt lsi Anril ?021

Expccted Outgo Fi6t yetr
Expectcd Outgo Second yeil
Expected Otrtgo Thtud year

Expected Outgo Fourth )car
Expected Outgo Fifth yetr
Above 5 wrs

36.53
28.4'1

25.66
22.88
19.02

35.44

13.28

14.36

15.99

19.25

22.57

t48.43

5.22
6.60
7.35

8.25

10.53
'11.64

I 58.00 233.R1 109.58

b) ComFens&t€d absences

Psrllctrlrn As nf 1l Mrvch 2021 As rf 1t Mcych 2o2C Ar ri lsf Ahrll 20tl
Arsumptions - Economlc
Discount mte (per aMum)
Assutnptlons. Dcmogrrphlc
Attrition mte
Retircrnelt age

Mollaliwrate

630%

40.00%
60 years

IAIM (2012-14) Ult.

'7.10v,

20.00%

60 ycan
IAIM (2012-14) Ulr.

't.30%

20.00%

60 years

IALM r2012-14) Ult.

Pirtl.nlrvr As qt 1l M.r.h 2Ot< Ac qt 11 Mrr.h 2[tl I A. qf 1.t Andl 2O2?

PreseDt vslue of obllgadon et the b€glonlng of thc year
CureIt scryice cost

Interest cost

Benefits paid
Arhlarial {olih\/ l^.. frno charroe in ffnennial ec<,rmrdnn9

Actuarial (gain)/ loss from chuge in demogmphic assunrptiom
Actuarial (sain)/ loss arisine fiom exoelience adiusbnenls

154.89

7'7.55

I 1.00

(31.'t5)
?.10

(l 9.91)
() 1R\

73.61

71.94

5,39
(25.'t8)

1.-14

24.04

42,83

1.65

(8.28)
(1.30)

25 3i 14 71

Present vshre of ohlbotlnD ef lhp Rnd nf ihG vesf* tta ln 1{r'to I 11 67

MEH
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SlBdhulr Mlcmcredlt Pdvrte Ltnited
CIN; U65990UP2017PTC099006

Nots to flnrnclolststementf for the yerr ended 31 Msrch 2025
(Alt momts in INR Lakhs, unless otheryise stated)

Psrtlcula$ For thc Yesr Ended 31
Msrch 2025

For the Yesr Ended
3l Mrrch 2024

Cment s€rvice cost

Intcr6t oost
P.hpqeurencnfc

77.55

I 1.00
(20.59)

74.94
5.39

26.67

Totrl erbenrec recoorlzed ln ih€ Strtement Pront snd l{ss 67-95 107-fl0

PartlculsH Ac ci 11 Mctnh 2O25 Ar at 11 Marnh 2024 Ar ef 1rt Ahill 2021

Defined Benefi t Obligation
FairValue ofPlur Assets at the end ofthe year
Flh.lF.l Srrhr{ /Snmlrrr / /I)effciA\

185. l0 154.89 13.67

Net l,lehllltv recoenlzed ln Rdrncc Sheet 1tt 1n 1 sr'-fo 14.67

v) A qr8nlftattv€ sensldvlty andysls for slgnlflcant assumpilon es 8t 3l Mrrch 2025 Is f,s Nhown below:

PertlotrlxH Ac rt 3l Mrrch 2025 As at 31 Mgrch 2024 As at lst Atrrll 2023

Defincd bmefi1 obligation on Cwctrl Assmptiotrs
s) Impact oD cbmge h dlscouot rste
Iapaat dse to incretre of I %
lmpact due to decrea6e of I %

b) Rrte oflncreare ln srhry
Lrpact due t0 incretre of I %
lmpact due to decrctre of I %

3.48
3.64

3.49

3.40

6.44

7.O7

6.81

6.34

3.04

3.34

1tt

3.00

A. rf 1l Mrmh 2O2( Ar rf 11 Mrnh 2024 Ar sf 1rf Ahrll 2021

Expected Outgo Fist yeu
Expected Outgo Second yetr
Expected Outgo Third yeil
Expected Outgo lourth yeil
Expected Outgo Fifth yetr

't4.93

48.51

31.42
20.32

13.20

23.97

30,55
26.51

23.00
19.96

17.31

I 0R.50

14.65

12.7t
1 1.03

9.57
8.31

52.26

Tntql tlt 1{ a2a.sa 10fl-{1

Y:
D
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SlndhuJa Mlcrocredit Private Llmlted
CINr U65990IJP20r 7PTC099006

Notes to flnanclal statements for the yenr ended 31 March 2025
(A1l amounts in INR Lakhs, unless otheruise stated)

47 Leases

Company ls a lessee:

The Company has entered into lease agreements for office facility and such lease is generally non{ancellable in natwe. Cefain non-cancellable leases extend up to a maximum of
tbree to frve years fom their respective dates ofinception. The Cornpany has applied shon tenn lease exemption for leasing atangements where the petiod oflease is less than l2
months.

A, The followlng ls the movement ln lease llabllltles durlng th€ yesr end€d 31 Mgrch 2025 and 31 Msrch 2024:

B. The follorvlng are smounts recognised in statement ofprollt and loss:

whether these extension and temination options ate reasonably certain to be exercised. The Company does not havc any lease conlracts that contails variable palments.

C. The follorvlng ar€ amounts recoghlsed ln cash flow stat€m€nt:

Partlculars
For the year ended

31 March 2025

For the year ended

31 March 2024

Total cash outflow for leases t28 30 t203r

D. Mrturlty of lease llabllltles
The undiscounted maturity anolysis of lease liabilities is as follows:

Partlculars As at

31 March 2025

As at
31 March 2024

As at
0l Aortl 2023

Opening balance

Additions during thc year
Add: Interest Expenses

Less: Parments duine the vear

2'10.t3

27.96
fl 28.10)

307.73

44.78

37.93

r I 20.3 l)

30'7.73

Closlns balance 165.79 270.13 307.?3

Cuflent
Non-cwent

I 15.06

54.73

100.34

t69.79
31.60

2'10.13

Closlns tralance 169.79 270.13 397.73

Partlculnrs
For the year ended

31 March 2025
For the year ended

31 March 2024

Depreciation expense of rightof-use assets

Interest expense on lease liabilities
ExDenses relatine to short-term leases

107.48

21.96

501.77

102."15

37.93

322.69

Total 641-21 461-17

As at 31 March 2025 Mlnlmum leas€ Dsvments due
Less than 1 vear l-2 verrs 2-3 verrs More than 3 v€srs Tnfql

I€ese nevrnenfs 129.t0 57,2t t86 1t

As st 3l Mrrch 2024 Mlnlmum lerse nrwents due
Less fhrh I veer l -2 vesrr 2-1 vecvr More fhrn 3 vcsra Totel

Lesse Dawrents t28.30 l29.to 57.2t 3l4.rll

As at 01 Anrll 2023 Minlmum lease Dilm€nls due
Less than I vear 1-2 vears 2-3 vears More than 3 veah Total

Lease nawenls t20 31 l2R 10 trg lo s't,l A7A S2

48 Segment Reporting

The Company operates in a single reportable segnent i.e. financing which has similu risk and retums for the purpose of Ind AS I08 "Operating segments" is considered to be the

which is considered as a single geographical segrnent.

H

*

R o c

'o

-'



Slndhuls Microcr€dlt Prlvste Llslted
CIN: U65990UP2017PTC099006

Nots to flnanehl strtemenk for the verr ended 31 Msrch t025
(All amouob itr INR ljlhs, unlsss otholrise slated)

4' Maturlty strdyfis of!8ret & llsbudes

Perdcdert

193.92

92.720.31

619,35
r.1t,093,66

133.14

6t9.52
312.55

254,47
42.48

22n.11

I,602.?5
I,19,696.39

t2,2a9.43
74,681,7 |

210.13
1,888.69

89,1r0.$

291.44
251.40

55,r.84
89,755.56

1.26

23,02

50.58

2t,r6a.22
3,391.86

11.512.19

9,866.44
72.r2

240.13

68,984.06
8s9.5t

,3,534,45

475.88
2.038.01

421.49

147,39

90.15
244,18

3,4r7,10
96,951.55

19.8t3.68
49,t12,31

t69.79
664,54

69,893.10

323.50
262.35

5t5,t5
7n419,7,5

18.41

t14,67

2t,t68.22
t,79t.23

\93.92
60,206.89

579.14

220.11

353J
a4,292,71

21.02

7.26

50.58

83.939,40

l3l.l4

42.35
257.40
299,73

52,839.85
lt d<t t6

2,256.02
48,214,18

100.r5
1,888.69

5t,540.10

255.09

255.09

36925.E1
6-5a2-14\

1,600.63

32.s1;.a2
40,21

34,154,26

619.52
332.55

254,87

42.48

1,219,42
35,403.68

10,033.41

26,467.53

t69.78

36,670,12

13.512.19

4,95i.96
72.12

240.t3
51_t1t,72

794.O7

70,584.r8

244.14

720.06
71,404,24

8,506.67
37,814.93

115.06

664.54

11,251,28

55.68
262.15
318,03

41,512.31
tt tll sl

475.88

18.41

t14.67

t1,812.34
65,44

22,A50,21

11.307.01

tt,277.38
54.13

22,639.12

261.82

2t.9n6,94
2.6r'n.71

4,912,44

267.82

2,038.01

421.49

14',1,39

90,15

2,691,04
25.541.31

othEr thm e6h and cash Equivaldts

oubbdng dues of micrc enrerprises rnd sall

tohl ouMndiEg dus of crediiors other lhatr

sd Equlw

ffnmcial hstuenb

NoD.Fhanclrl ltBblltler

and @sh quivalds

linusial iNmmerts
recEivables

Flnatrcid $s€t9

Flnanclal rsleti
(!Et)

of- use ascb
a$eE

TradepaEbles

Tohl fl !rtrclal llabllltles

msll etrt€iprises

secutrles
Dett secuities)

Lsse Liabilities
liuancial liabilities

Olher non-fixancial liabiliries

Totll tron-fl nanclal lhblldes
Totsl Liabllltl€!

Flninclal alsts

Isns
Olher fitrancial assEt

Non Flnrnchl rsetg

bx 6sseb (nd)
plant and equipment

Psrdcularg

[$eti
Fiomchl s$el!
Cash and €sh equivalflls
Banl balmcos other th@ cash atrd cash €quivalcnts

Ddvalive fsarcial instrudenh
Iradereceihblcs

odrer finarcial rssct
Totcl Flnanclrl r3sets

Nm trbrnclrl rslet3
Cwdt bx ass€ls (nd)

Deftred bx assets (net)

hopedy, plailt atrd Equipmcnt
Riaht- of- usc assels

Inbnaible assets

other nm.finucial ilsels
Totsl Non Finrncial ass€13

Llabllltl$ snd Eqllty
Llsbllltles
Floancirl llsbllllleB
Dsivativr fi natrcial i!1s!unreills
PaFbles
(l) Trade paFbles
(i) lolal ou{sbnahnF dues oimido dterprises and snall Enteryr;ses

(ii) total outshding dues ofcredilors oiher fidr micro ertnuises ard snall enl€rprises

Dcbt sccuiri€s
tsofro\urgs (orber lhau lobl secultresi
Lease Liabilities
Olhd fi nancial liabilities
Totel fl nanclsl Itrbilith!

Othtr non-fbancial Iiabilhies
Totsl trotr.trninclsl liBbllllie!
Totrl Lhbilitles

t2,411.32
247,91

253,30
41,529.1 I

1 54.O2

55,195,6E

125.91

ua.62
55,114,30

5.t1
23.93

6,211.55
i i.;i.1. i;

1,302.24

39.444.05

19,I8
I 53.24
t1L.42

39.6r6.17

1,407.84

zt,t00.37

t0 t2
22,538.53

785.42

234.18

3 12.84

5.85

E3E.29

23,376.8r

6,648.43

ii,;;:.:c
307.73

23.?34.36

l 19.82

r19.82
23.851,18

(t11 aa

12,41t.32
1,655,?7

253.30
62,629.4&

784.34

11,131.21

22.69
285.42
234.18
112.84

5.85
125.93

9E6.9t
18,121.12

5.1'1

23.93
12,925,98

301.13
|,302.24

63,17r.41

139.00

153.24

292,24
63.1?0.65
r5 r50 at

,9
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Slndhule Mlcrocredlt Frivste Lldted
CIN: U65990UP2017PTC099006

Nobs to llnrnclrl strlemenll for the veft eDded 31 March 2015

(All mourb itr INR takls, uless otheraise slalcd)

.Level 3 - IDDuts forihe.ssets or liabililies thal arenotbas€d on obsmable markel data (unotBflable inpub).

{A) Tbe followlDs rable Dresents falr value hlerarchr ofaiseti etrd lhbllhles messured at fdr vdue on r recurrltrq baiis:

Tbe frir €lue oforhf oMent fnancial ass*, csh md cash €quivalmts, tade reccivabls, lade pat?bles sd other fimncial liabilitiEs approximrrc fE carrying Emounb because ofths

shd tsm ratue ofthese financial if,struments.

Thc moilized c6tBDg efective irkrc$ nre (ER) of non.curr@t finecial .tem dcfNits is lot sigdificaltlydif€rflt ftom lhe €arrying moMl,

Financial 6sdsrhat treffither past due nor impair€dinclude cash and cash equivalents, strwitydeposib, t6m desib aod olhfl finecial arse6.

The amodized cost uing €fl€ctive int6e$ rare (EIR) oflinamial tiabilities itrcluding boffowfug, trade p.yable is Dot signifimtly diffqdt ftom the carrying amount

5l l.L Velue Elerrrchv
The folloviag is the hiqdchy fo dctenninina ed iLscloging the fair value offnanoisl i!3h$ills by valualion ts€hniquE:

.Level I - Quoted pdces (madiusted) in acrivemtrk€b fot idmtical assels or liabililles.

I-ev.l I

Flnrtrclal Asscls
(a) Flnatrclal riiets masrued al frlr value tbroryh Droflt or lo33

ta) Fitranclsl llrbllltles nrersured st lhh vfllue lhrouqh prolll or loss
z7.oz

Nde:
i. Thde have bee! notra$fss beMeen l€vel I add lt'vcl 2 duri[g the period

*orities, olher financial Iiabilities are considered to be thc S.me as fteir {air values.

Valuatlon technlqu$.nd rlgnllicant uobrcrvable loputg
Th€ Cross CurrenryItileresa Rare Swaps (CCIRS) arc measued at fair value usitg theDarkno{iark t (MTId) value shted bythe conlmcting bank at balerce sh*t date.

Partlcul$$ Ai atll March 2025 Ar il 3l Msrch 2024
A! 8t

1 ADrll 2023

Fldeclel assets

Cash dd casb €quivalenls
Bant baldces other thau cash and cash Equivalent

Trad€ receivables
Othq r€ceivables

lsns (at amodised c6t)

Fix€d de6ir accouls with matuity for fitre
thm 12 months
Moul paid in Advmce

Recovsabl*
Sccuity DepNib
Advance to EmDlowes
Olhd Fidancial Assets

13,512.19
4,953.96

240.13
158.19

68,984,06

4,9t2.4A

153.40

47?.20
65.44

0.85
4.43

11 t7

13,5t2.t9
4,953,96

240.13

t58.19
68,984,06

4.912.48

153,40

471.20
65.44

0,85

4.43
7) 17

2t,168.22
1,19t.23

193.92

5 I 8.61

92,720.31

1,600,63

38.69
r0,02
40,21

o,26

I I,53

21,t68.22
|,791.23

t93.92
518.61

92,720,3r

1.600.63

38.69

10,02

40.21

0.26

I 1.53

12,411.32

241.93

253.30
104,21

62,629.48

t,407.84

26.99
12.37

30.12
0.78
9.61

12,411.3?

247,93

253.30
1M.21

62,629,48

1,407.84

26.99

30.12
0.?8
9.67

sr-5r4-44 t -la_09-!.66

Ftnanclrl Llabllltler
Trade palabls
Debi s€triries
Bonsving other than debl s*uities
LRse Liability
D6ivative Finecial Liability

Employoe beoefit payable

PayEble on assignsd portfolio

PaFble od busbess cffesponddce
Olher paFbtes

Torrl Dlnonclsl Lliblltdes

133.08

r9,813.68
49,Lt2.3t

t69,79

348.11

160.23

3.06
152 M

133,08

19,811,68

49,112.31

169.79

348,31

r60,23

3.06

152.r

57.84

12,289,43

14,68t.1 |
2?0.13

23.02

495.81

999.41)

151.75

239.?t

51.84

12,289.41

14,68r.11
2t0.t1

21.02

495.81

999.40

153.75

239,71

29,lo
t2,925.98
48,613.36

3n1.13

228.33

604.6',7

2't t,60
t97,U

29.ro
t2,925,98
48.613.36

307,73

228.33

60/.61

27r,60

69.893,40 6S tSl ln fc 21n f,2 f9-210.82 63.178.41 63.178.11

-t,

a
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52 Fitranclal Rlrk Menrgemedt Oblecllver ,,{trd Pollclei
Itrtroducllon ind rlrk proflle .

The CoBpmy is dpo*d to various fideciel risk. Thse risks are cat€gorized hto dcdit risk and liquidity risk. Tho Companys risk @agdetrt is coordinat€d by ihe Boud of

Diretuls and focses od ecuitrg long rcrm dd sho( tem cash flows. Ths Cohpany dG not engage ir traditrg of linancial ssolr lor spsulativ€ purposes.

Sindhuja Misocredit Pri@b Limired is oue ofthe leadrng microfinadce instituiiont id lndis i@used ot providing dnancial $ppod to womf tom low in@me houeholds engaged in

@omic activity $ith limited aeess to ilaffiat sflices. 0re Compmy predfinantly ofbrs @llateral fe lods to wornen tom low itcode households, willing to borrow h a g(oup

Wi$ a viewtodivssirying thEprodud profil., tho compmyhas intoduccd individual loils ftr nauod group l€nding flstmtr3,
The majo risks for lbe €ompany tre credif, opsational, milk€l, busiDess cnvironment, polirical, regulatdJ, cmcentralim, expalsid ild liquidity

(s) Rlsk manateme rt frMtwork
The Botrd of Dreturs arc resp@sible ls tbe ov€rall risk Dilagm@t apprsch md for approvjxg lhe risk maragem€trt sBalegr6 ild principle, The Risk Maragemenl &mowork

apEoved by the B@rd has laid dow lhe govdDilce structue suppding rbe idsilificaliotr, ass6sfl1, monhoring, reponjrg atrd miligatim ofdsk throughout the Cmpany. The

obietive of tlc risk mdagement platlm is ro trake a coDs0ious €frort in dorcloping risk cultu'o wi6in tho dgdisalion ald having appropriatc sysems Md t@ls for limoly

iddtificatior, mesummt and repodiilg ofriEk fd managiilgthm,

The Board h6 a Rjsk Mmagemeilt comifi€€ Mich js r€sponsibl€ for motritoring lbe overall rjsk pr&6s wiihin the Comptuiy ard repotu to the Board of Directors.

Tbe Risk Managemmt &idelines will be implmflred rhrough the cstablished ugaDization smcture of Risk Deptufll. The oversll monilodng of ih€ Risks is done by lhe MaDagiDg

Diredor) *ith lh€ suppm ftom all the depmor hsds of lhe Company. The B@rd reviews lhe sErus and progrqs ol lhe risk and risk managemmt sl6tem, @ a quaadly aDd half
yeatly basis though lhe Audir Commide and Risk Milag€ment Commifiee. The individual depamf,ts uo rEpmsible ld msring implemenbtim of the risk malagemenl

fimeuotL md policie6, slsted and methodologies a5 approved by the Bosd. Assignment of rBpousibilitis in relation to risk managsEmt is prsogative of the t{esds of Depffiflts.

to flsE€ effftir Baag€metrt of dslc ii eccordanw with i[E guideliles approved by tbe Bodd. The Mit workJ closcly with atd rwo6 to thE Risk Co@iteg to crsurc that

pr@edEes tr€ mpliet with the ov€rall fidework,

(b) RlskmitlEaflonMdri$kcultue
Risk assB@b are conducted for all buiness activilies. The a$essmetrts are b addrss porenlial rislc and to comply with relevant legal md regulaiuf requiremenb. Risk assssmmb
tre pqiomed by comFet$t pssomel ftom individust depffisb md risk milagemctrt dep3m@t itrcludin8, {derc appropdate, cxpdisc ftom oubidc the Co6pey. The risk

miligaiion is pluned usiog lhe following key $ralegies:

Fjsk Avoidan.e: By not perfming atr activity that could erry risk. Avoidatrce may seffi the answer to all risk, but avoiding riskr ilso mrus Iosillg out m the pot@tial gain that

acccpling (rclsiDing) thc risk may bave allorved.

fusk Transfer: Mitigarion by having atrolher partyto aGpt lhe risk, either parirl or total, rypicalty by conract or by hedgiilg

fusk rcdudion: Employirg meihods/solutions that reduce the severily of$€ lffs.

lcss s6bi!€d. All isks thal ie not avoided or tatsfered i€ relainedby d€fault. This includes risks thar aie so itge or catasrophic that lhsy eilh€r cunot bE in$red agaii$ or lbe

premiM! vould b€ infEasibl€

Shdhula Mlcrocredtt Prlvrte Llfrlted
CINr U65990UP20r7PTC099006

Not6 to fhsnclsl rtatemeDtc for the yerr ended 3l Mrrch 2015
(All MouG itr INR Lakh!, ulcss otheNise statcd)

{c) Rlsk meaiuemetrt md repof,lng ryitems
Thehsdsofalllhedqafrmntsjua$siationviihdskmtuiag@flt arerespmsibleforcmrdinathrgthesFtfsforidmrifyingriskssiihintheiroMdepaheDtorbusinssactivity

A Polltlcil RI3k mltlcstiotr mcasues:
High s@ial tbcused activities
I-ow cst opcrations and lowpricirg for cu$omds
Robust flrievance redressal mechanism

Concenlral{oB rlrk millsation messu€s:
Disrict cef,ric aFproach

Mdimum disbuscm€trt cap ps lom accoult
Maximum lsn *posue cap per @stoocr
Divssifi ed funding resouces

C Operatlonal & llR Rlsk nltllalion measueg
Stitrgflt cuslomff eilrolmert prff€ss

Stona IT systrff wiih accecs ro rcal timc clisl aid loa! dara

floDsr rccruihrent Dolicvard aDDraisl ststcnr

D Llquldttv rlsk ntllqatlon measures:
Divdsifi ed flulding rcsouces
j-".i i;"l;l;i' !.*"A."r"i
Effedive ftDd manaaement

Muimum crsh holding cap

The Mdagment lf,vel Risk Comisec mecti[gs are held as recexary . The MilDgement Lovcl Risk Comittce would monitot ihE mmagcmcnt of najor rjsks sptrifically aild orho
risks ofthe Compmy in general. The Commisee rakes an ifi€gated viev ollh€ risks facing the mtity and mmitor implmmlalion ofthe directivG recsved tm fus! Mila8emenl
Comitee md aEtionablc jtcms dra\h iom the risk mdag@@t SmrEwork

sality, R*ifl of process cmpliatrces aqoss qgilistion, Revie\q whde Decessary, policies that bave a btrhg on the optradonal & crcdit risk matragmenl and rccommd

(d) Rfuk Msnsgemetrt Slrategief
Exccssivc r{6k conccnhliors

mnnfl8c lhc variotrs keyrisks.



(B) Mrtkctrbk
Mrket risk ir the risk that thc ftir value of futue €sh flow of a finilcisl instu@t will flucruate bccause of chsdgcs in mtrk€l priss. Msrkd ri* comprisd ihr€E qDs of risk:

intqest raE risk, cmmcy risk md othd price rislq such as quity price risk and €omodity risk. Financial iostrummb affected by milket risk itrclude borowings.

Slndhula l\llcrocredlt Frlvate Limitcd
CIN: U65990UP20UPTC099006

Nds to fltrrncirl rtatemetrts tbr the vear etrded 3l Mrrch 2025
(Ail snouls io INR l*hs, unless oth@ite $atEd)

(ll Itrbrest rate rlrk
ldhe6t rate risk is the iisk Ihat the fair value d firsre €sh flows of a lhancial insMent will flucBate bcsuse of chmgs in mark€t uterdt rabs. The Company is not dpNed io lhe

risk ofchdges in mdk€t intssl rats.

Itrterst rele e6ifluty
ThE following hblo dmonsbald tho 6@sitivity lo a reasonably

Cobpily's profit beftre ax is ilot af*led rlrough ihe impact on

p$ible chdge in i[tsst rai6 @ that Fnio of loil3 md borowiDgs. With a[ othE vdiablos held conslant, thc

floating rate bonowiDgs, as follos:

Psdculeri :l Mfch 2025 3l Mnrdh 2o2a

At et
I Anrll 2021

50 ho incrak muldde.ease the sroiithefore tax hd (2t42n) rSlo t?' ().ta 49)

*Ac@ed iilcreil but not du6and uamonizcd tansaction costs areincludcd in borowings.

Intei$t rate senlltMty

(ll) Forelen currenw dsk
FdeiSu cw'mcyrist is lhc rirk that lhe faii valuc or fuluc Fsh flows of a findcial inslMent will fluctuate beause of chilge in foreigtr €xchange rates. Hos'ever, thg compuy i6 nd
expsed to sch risk.

Psrtlcukrg Currency

(C) Crcdll rlik

qualityof$€ mmterydies, hking intoaccout iheir filetcial position, past expe{j€nc€ and odts Isctus.

(l) Imprimenl ai*Bsment
The b€lwDdtimed notes, fu cmjudjon wilh the relevaDt ac@uiling policies, explain the colnpmys impairmenr assssmmt.

. Deflnltion ol dcl'adt

conEactuil paymo!.

As a part ofa qulibtive ass€smft olwhethE a sstomer is in defauh, the Company also considers r variety ofinsanc€s that inay indicate unlikeliness to pay. Whm sch evenb ocor,

approFiate. Sucb w@1s may include (ild ilor be limiled ro):
- All lhe facilities ofa bonows fros all rhe bo(owed a€coutrs ffetrearcd ns Stagc 3 whcil one ofhis facilitybccomcs 90 dtryspas dIej.c, crcdit idpaired.
- A covmanl breach not Naired by the Company

- PD E8tlmatlod procer!

applied.

the psfomn€e period. 12 mmlh period for which perfornrance has bcen empirically measured. The Company ass*ses and empirically mssure lhe possible default wmb wilhin l2
months or lifelimr. This PD fictor is applied ro ili Shge t & Stnge 2 loans, lo rstiilntc ihe IikclyofDcfirull.

For credit imprired ass€ts (i.e. StaSe I assers), PD of 100% is applicd.

. Lo$ GlleD Default (LGD) & EsNure st Defrult (EAD)
Lss Givd Defauh (lGD) is an estimate ofihe ultimale loss arking whm a alefault ocsrs. It is based @ emprical cmtactual rslizalios fom tredil impaLed trsets (i.e. Skge l
asscts). aftf, €lent ofdEfiiltincludilg ftom the realization ofuysecuityThis is comput€d basis seasored defaDlt€d loils,

Erpsure al Defalh (EAD) is cotrsid€r€d as 100% ofOustrnding balance in rspect ofloan receivables.

Prrtlcubn Al at
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Sludhuls Mlcrocrcdtt Prlvate Lidted
CINr U65990UP20r?P/IC099006

Not6 to llDrtrcial statem€ntr lbr lhe yest ended 3l March 2025
(All amou6 itr INR kkhs, unlers otheNisc $ated)

The Compaty continuously mooirors ib Loat Po(folio in order ro ass€ss Eterher there has bcet an evenl which could cause a signif€ntly increase in the credit risk (SICR) ofihe
Ed€rtying assd or the dstomf,'s abiliry to pay ed accordingly applies a bigher PD ratc. An aisct can movc in & out oISICR category bas€d upon whethfl it has unddSonc SICR

evob that may ioclude (md dot b€ limiled to):
- When one ofthe facilitis ofa lFrrowd b*ms 30 days past due

- Bfrovils ofa segment / iddustry / geo$aphy uds stress

- Change lo ,ccoullng erlhatet
Impact ofrpdrthg the E$scted Credlt Lors (ECL) Model
Tbc compny periodically reuevs md upda(s tbe model in linc with thE nEw ilpub md performance btrds to rcfle! rhe r€sdabl€nEss ild adequaoy of ECL amout rccolniscd as at

rQoning dste. Duing fte Fiadcial Yffi 2024-25, lhe ECL rodel $?s trd€rcd ad updat€d, ed it has resullcd itrlo i!trtre/d€ass€ in expecled tr€dit cost for vtious cohofs ofthe
Podfolio due to d€terioratim/ improv@ili in pslomdce of lhe cohod.

(D
a

AsretCla$lllcrllon rr per RBI Norms ch8sincqtion a!
per ltrd AS

Gro$ Crrryltrg
ADount as per Itrd
AS
(A)

Allowstrcd
(Provi8lons) a3

r€quired mder
ItrdAS r09

Net Carr)4trg
Amount
C-(A-B)

Prodsio! ss per

lRACPnoml
(D)

Dlffererce
beheetr hd AS
109 prodrlors ald
RACPno.mg
ElcBe/Ghort)

6? gg0 61
g?t 11 I1]a11

9tl ln 6Xa te
Notr.Fe rlorffis A$ets (NPA)

Sub|tandard Strpe 3 22.21

Orher llemr such 18 guBranteea, loan comllmenls, etc.

mder cunent lncome RccogollloD, Asset Cls$lllcitlon
cnd ProvlrtMlng (IRACP) trorN

Shge I

Strse I
Sbse 3

Subtotal
Tottl Shse I 68.513.78 523.I5 67.990.63 935.a7

Shse 2 2J24.47 1-146.14 978.13 2n.63 l.lt8.l I
Staoe 3 9.29 4i.99 l5-10 0-55 4A.14

Tobl 7n-102-94 1.71a-aa 6r.9M.06 986.05 13X.A3

kset Chsslflcallotr as pcr RBI Norns clasrlflcallotr rs
per ltrd AS

Gross Carrldtrg
Amounl as per Itrd
AS

(A)

LNg

(Provlsionr) aB

r€qulred uder
tnd AS I 09

(B)

Net Canying

c=(A_B)

Pro}dilotr ai per

IRACP norms
(D)

DllTerrnce
bei\ree! Ind AS
109 provlsloni snd
IRACP normg
Ercers/{short)

lnn-Psrfnrmlns Ar.ar. NPAI

I 441 )O , )71 71 l1 ?t

Dd'hrtiil - il. rn I verr

I l/1 tn
Other Item! such as quarrtrteer, Ioan r0mrdtmenti, etc.

sHch lre ltr the scope ofltrd AS 109 bul trot covered
udEr cunctrt ltrcome Rfcogtrltiotr, Asset Cl$gllicatiou
rnd Prord|lonltrs (IRr{CP) norme

Strge I

Tolel qt 60t q0 ?1t ln
aa6 aa

I 141 1n 1 t7a 14

ct a1a a7 I ?ln t6 qt trn rl

*f

o

*
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Slndhula MlcrocEdlt Prlvate Ltrlted
CIN; U65990UP2017PIC099006
Note8 to inanclsl ftst€merts for the year elded 31 Msrch 2025

(All mounts in INR Lakhs, ulcss olheryise 6tated)

(D) Llouldltv rlsk 8rd frrndlnq mrnaqement

There de Liquidity Risk mitigation mearues put iu place which helps in maitrtainiug the following:

in securitizalion ild assigmeul transactions.

Assat Liabilify Mamgment (ALM) can bc termed as a risk l]rMgement t€chnique designed to eam an adequate retw! while mintaining a comfottabl€ suplN of assets over

liabilities. The scope ofAlM futrclion canbe dcscrib€d u follows:

i. Fuding and Capital Mamgemeut,
ii. LiqDidity risk management,

iii. Inlerest Rate risk l@agemetrt,
iv. For€casting ard analyzing 'What ifsceraio'ed prepdatiou ofeo[tilgcDcyplaN.

realization ofnew buinese; and to provide a cushion agaimt ruexpected losses,

Ars€t tlattlllty ManNgement- Matudty patt€n ofcertaln lt€ms ofatiets snd llqbllltles

Pertlctrlsn l- 7 days 8-14 days
1S30/31

Drvr
Over 1

mnnfh tn t
Over 2 motrths

ln 1 monthr
Ovor 3 nonthr

to 6 mnnthr
Over 6 moDthd

lo 1 lear
Over I year to

3 vears
Over 3

vesB to 5
Over 5

vea16
Total

DBnosits

Advances * a 111 i1 I C75 Rl 84t 63 5 549 55 4 834.36 15.735.51 28-t47.94 32.185.40 270.99 57.03 qt 7tn 11

lnvestments
1 11l 12 415 61 2 1\|9 22 4 650.90 5.040.39 l3_806_69 22.363.23 34-'112.94 r5 11r' ?O

F^raioh.r,dFh.!.<cFt<

Foreion orrreno lirhilities 68.44 I ?RR NN 1-R56-4C

Partlculsn 1- 7 days 8-14 days
l5J0/31

Dsvs
Over I

month to 2

Over 2 motrths
to 3 months

Over 3 motrthr
to 6 months

Over 6 monthr
to 1 Yerr

Over I year to
3 vesrr

Over 3

ye&rs to 5
over 5
years Totsl

I 7g',l 55 I 420.43 5S6. I n 3.944.6'l 3.17t.70 10.826.88 t9.215.78 2t,019.49 )O RR

t. t00 98 247.58 r.490.27 2.653.I0 3.052.50 q tIt dR to 4{6 R0 )1 4)6 61 6t-539.3,t

Foreion cruletrcv Asielr
Forcion clrrencv liabililics

Note:
* Nct ofprovision for sturdard ard ron pcrloflning assct
* EIR on advancss has been hcludcd ir the last buckel ofadvmces
* Accrued intercst oD advances has been irclrrded il the lrst blcket ofadvances
t* EIR on borrorvings h6 been included in the last bucket ofthe respective borrowings
** Accru€d intBrst on boffowirgs has b€en included ir the first bucket ofboruovings

Llquldlty ratlos
Public Disclosurc on Liquidity Risk (in accordarrce rvith RBI Circuhr - RBI/20 I 9"20i88 DOR.NBFC (PD) CC. No. I 02/03.10.001/201 9-20), as on March 3 l, 2025 as bclorv:

a. Fundlng Conccntratlon based on slgnlllcant counterparty

Partlculrrs As at
31 March

2$25

As at
3l March

2n24

As at
1 Abrll 2021

Number of siqnificaut coutrter Filties 32.00
64 05t 1R

32.00
7R 41q qr'

35.0(

'(0 
RM 6C

P€rcsniroF nf fi'ndino forrl llrhlllilF.A qn-Rso, n7.1Rq ss.n00/"

rAccoed hterest but [ot due and utramortizcd transacliou costs are iucludcd in borrovittgs.

#'Total Liabilities does uol include lhe slrareholders fund

Prrtlculan 1- 7 dayi 8-14 days
15-30/31

Days

Over 1

month to 2
motrtht

Over 2 monthr
to 3 months

Ov€r 3 monthr
to 6 months

Over 6 monthr
to 1 yeNr

Over 1 ye$ to
3 yeen

Over 3

yeart to 5
v€sra

Over 5
years

Total

Deposits

3.058.21 1.804.2r 838.98 4 qll R4 4 619 06 I1 R3g 57 2t 9S9 85 17.220.68 591.79 59.87 6n_qM.06

lnvesttrents
I tt1 1{ ?RS 7l 2 n42 5'7 3 802.Ot 4. I 58.30 1 1 -l 08.02 21.190.78 16.14r.'^ 363.63 1)1 67 69< t1

Foreiqn cuffencvassets
Fnrcion n*rcnnw lialrilitic< 50.38 112.56 ? RR4 q6 ) 19) R) 6tan 1t

*
o

t
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Slndhula Mlcrocredlt Prlvate Ltunlted

CIN: U65990ttP201 7PTC099006

Notes to flnsncl|l stat€menb for the yerr ended 3l Mrrch 2025
(A1l amwts in INR Ialds, uules oflcnisc stated)

Prrtlcularo A5 8t
3l March

2025

As rt
31 MNrch

2nl

Ai rt
I Aprll 2023

Iotal Borowitrgs
Tdh I 0 Rorrowihss

6R Or5 0S fl6q11 lL 6t {1S 14

1R 07? {6 1q 611 50 10 52R 13

Tnh 1ll n. r n€vcentrse nffnfsl hnnn$4nsr (6 qao/. L1 a10/" t9.170/.

*Accrued intq€sf buf qof dqc tud @morfiz€d trffiacfion cosfs tre inoludcd in borcwings.

NAccrued inler€st but not due ard mmortiz€d trmsaction costs u€ included in boffowings.

* Total Liabilities dos mt irclude Total Equity.

e. Insdtutioral set-up for Hqutdity rlsk matragemetrl
The Liquidity Ri6k Mamg€|Mt Policy of the Compmy is approved by the Bord of Directo$ of the Comproy.

liabilities sidcs) in line with tbe NBIC's budget md decidcd risk ruagemut objectives. Thc scopc of ALM flmction m be dcscribcd m follows;

a) Liquidity dsk llffigemmt
b) Managemt of mrket risks

c) Fuding md capital plmiog
d) Prolit plamhg and growth prcjection

e) For€crctirgandaubzitrg\ilhatifscenario'mdpreparationofconti[geocyplau

*

Pgrtlculsn A6 rt
31 March

7075

Vo ot
Totd

LlablDtlcs

As at
3l March

2024

o/" oI
Tolal

Ilsblltl€s

A[ nt
I April 2023

o/a oI
Total

Ilrhllltler
Non-Convcrtibls Dcbentwcs (NCD)

Extemal Comercial Borowittgs (ECB)
13,572.96

6,240;12
49.11.2.31

t4.o\y"
6.44%
50.660/"

10,432.99

1,856.44

14,681.71

8;120/"

1.55%
6) 1So/"

12,925.98

dR 6l? 16

16.42%
0.00%

61 750/"

6fl-925.S9 eAq11 1A 61 (1S-1il

A5 rt
31 March

As at
31 Mrrch

Al rt
1 Apr{ 2023

Prrdculars

56.r5% 9.6to/,

Comercial Paper - 6 a percestage of total liabilitiq *
Comrcial Papu - ro a pGrcentags of toral asseti

(oriaiBl mhrity < lyeil) - 6 a percentage of tofal public funds

(origi@l @turity < lyee) - 6 I ptreatage of total liabiliti€s *
(origiml mturig < I yeil) - 6 a perentage of rotal as€t6

Other Short Term Debt - ffi a percetrtage of total public futrds

OthEr Short Term Debt - s a percenJ6gc oftotal liabilitier r

Commial d a percentag€ of total public ftrruls
NA

NA
65.52%

NEU/
'\,

o o*
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=
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Sltrdhuia ll{lcrocr.dlt Prlvrie LHt€d
CINr U65990UP20r7gtc099006
Nde! to llDanclil ilslem€nts for the yerr ended 3l Mrrch 2025
(All mounts io INR lakhs, unless oth€ruise slaled)

Partlculd
3l Mrrch 2O2S

AN at

Nd debt+

fobt quity
Nt ieit' r^ Pdnitur2rin

45,541,36

26,472.30
t12

62,41 1.06

29,93t.13

47,472.25

15,250.41

rNd debt includes d€bt s€cwirid + borrowings other lhd d$t struritis + itrterAt accned - csh dd cdh equiwlflb - hqnk balatres olher than cash md cash equivaletrb.

54 Recent Accouthq Pronoucementi

53 Clplt l Mrnrgemeot

healthy capikl ntid ia ordtr b suppon its business sd to masmise sbareholder valuc.

preeses ftm the prelios y@rs, Howevd, they are uder consbnt rfliew by the Board,

Hltrid debt insMetrB & go€ral provision of $aDdard assels.

A po RBI guidelitres, tbe Cobpmybejng a Noil-Bmking Fiil4ce Cmpmy bas to maintain l5% of@piEl adequcyratio Id NBFc-business.

eoded on March 31, 2025, MCA h* not troiified any new stedftds or amendmetrb to dre cxhting sbndards Dtich are applicable on the companyw.i.fApril 01, 2025.

55 Addltlotrrl rcguls@ry blolfullob reqdred

(l) Tltle dedr of imowble property dot hcld h name of lhe Compsuy
The Compuy does not bolds t[€ i@ovable prcperty itr its o\w nanle as on Mach 3I, 2025.

(ll) VrlutioE ofproFerry, plail and €qulph€nt, lntangllrlc rssel sud lnvcrlmenl Froperty
The Cmpatrybas not revalued its properry, plmt sd equipment (including right ofus€ ass*) or irtangiblo assels d borh dtring lhe otrst or previous trar.
(fr) Iimi or advaDcei in the nrtue otlornl

ily othd pdsor.

{lv) Capltal-yorklo.prqrcas (CWIP)
Tbe Compy dGs Dot have asy Capiral.work-irtspro$css.

(y) Detalk ofcr!?to csrcrcy or vlriual currency
The Compsyhas not rad€d or invslcd in crypto curscyor vi4al cMencyduirg ibE trrot dprevious )rd.
(yl) Detatlr oltenaml property held

(rlt) Boirovlngs from brnk3 or llnanchl lnstltullons 0n the br3ls of seculty ofcurr€tr1 assels

The compily d@s no! have any wtrkitrg 6piul limits tom my beks or ffDilcial in$ituljon on the basis ofsecsity ofcunent assets.

(tll) wllrd dchult€r
Thc Comprny hss not bccn dcclarcd ss trilhil dcfauhcr byanybink or financial irstiturion or other lcndcr.

(lr) Relrtlonihlp Mlh 3lruck ofl eomparlet
'fhe Coilpmy do$ not havc rny t3nsacriotrs wilh comprtrics slruck otl under section 248 ol tbe Comprni N Act, 20 I I or section 5 60 of Comprtries Act, I 956.

(x) Undlsclosed lncome

(xl) Cmpllance wllh trwber 0f lsyero of companles
'l'ho Compary has compli€d wirh thc nrmlH oflaysrs prescribed !nder cl.use (87) ofsection 2 ofThc Campanis Ad, 2011.

(xll) Compllrnce wl{h epproved icheme(s) ofarrangemeolr
The Compery h6 uot approved any sch€me ofailatrgsmetrt iD asordailce with sections 210 io 217 ofthe Companis Aci, 2011.

(rlll) Utillssttotr ofborrow€d fud6 snd shsre prcmlu -Other thatr thetransactions lhai are ffiniedout as pd oiCompany's trormal lildirg businessi

enlitis (intemediuies) wiih lho undershding (Nhether rmrded h witing or otheqise) that the httrmediary shall:

-direcilytr bdnecilyldd m bve$ in oiberpssoos or @lid6 idetrlr'fled iu atrymannerwha$oever by or or behalfofihe Company (rlimale BeneficiarisJ or
-provide anyStrilt€e, secudtym lhe like 1D tr otr behalfofthe ljltirnateBoefciilies.

Conpily shall:

-provide my$ddt€e, setrityor lhe like oil b€baliof lhE Ultimate BencficiariEs.

56 ReNlston DlsclmEeg

56.1

tuat

11,916,71

457.25

15J71.00
664r0.63asselS

I CRnn
TI CRAN.

I mpibl
capltsl

24,215,96
531,96

24,141.91
7Gr37,68

29.213.61
506.93

29,720.51
9E,181.87

Titr I CaDiral (%)

Tier tr Capird (9i)
ofsubordjrrtcd debr rdis€d as TicrJI caFi{,1

0.

29.130/r

Roc

o ,Y

*
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Psrdcuhrs
Ar et Mrrch Jl, As et Mrrcb 31,

2lr1

Vslue of inEltments
Gross value of investmenb

In India
oukidc hdia

B ovisioE ld d€piecialion
Id India
tutcide India

Nd valu€ olinveshetrts
Itr IDdia
Oulside lndia

Movcment of proviiloD, held towsrali deDttclafion on lDve3tugntr

Opening balmse
Add : ProvisioDsmade dtring lhe yw
t a. wrilp-ns / Grp-Lr.L hf .v.... nr.J cinn ! frri dd $ e vear

D€blls offlnrncial a$ets sold to Seculllsadon/R€cotrNfucdon Conprnv for As[et Reconslrucdon:

The hpmyhas Dot sold ily litrdcial assels to SecuritistimlReconstrudion Compilyfor Asset R€cons@ctioD for $e ytr etrded 31 Mtrch , 2025, 3l Mtrch, 2024

Tbe Company hss sld tlnrncisl a!*k by say ofDlrect Asilrndenl ln the vesr ended M.rch 31. 2025.

Ddaits ofloans re-Fuchascd in conptidc€ wirh ptragraph 48 ofMaltd Dile€tion - RBI Cfransfer oflod dpMd) Dircllions, 2021 dwing the 

'tar 
cnded Mdch 31,2025: Nil

(Ma{ch 31, 2024r Nil).

The Cmpauy did not uusfs uy skssed l@n during ahe finaocial ydr ildei March 3 I , 2025 and Match 3 I 2024

Ile compeydid not acquire aoy slressed loan dtring the finilcial year edded March 31, 2025 atrd Mech 31,2024

The Compdy has not scquired ey Epsial mfltiotr acm&t or sterled loaB or lom not h defnult duing ths ftrucial yar mded Msch 3 I , 2025 md Mdch 3 I ,2024.

56J D€rlvaliver

Th€ cofrmnv ert€n lnlo deriyatlv€ conirich Ior rllk manrE€menl puFote,

Nots ? ieprEsents the iair value of derivate finnrcial iistrmenls record€d as assds togciher with lhE notional mount, The notional moul indicalcs lhe valuE of uansaction

oubbnding ar the yes end a[d are rot indi€dvc oleilher lhe mtrketrisk or tredh rhk.

Erchioge Trrd.d lnteres ratc (IR., Derlvrilver
Th c company b6 not aaded in lntscst Ratc Derivat ivc during the finatrcial year endRl I I M, rclt, 2025 (l I Ma rch 2024: Ni l).

56.,1 Srptrures
i. Ths Codpany has no expo6uc to real c6talc sedot during fre Mech 31, 2025 afld March 3 l, 2024.

ii. TLe Companvhx no exposurc lo capital nark€t durhs rhc March ll, 2025 aild Ma'ch 3 l, 2024.

iii. frelails ofSinqle Borower t imit (SGI ) / GrouD Borrows l-imil (GBf,) exceeded by lhc NRFC

ir Duias lhcraq tbe Compmvhas nol dcccd€d SGL& GBL limib at prescribed und$NBFC R€rulation.

iv. Utrsflured Advatres

I)urins rhewar. the Comoauvhas not qiven anvadvaoce asainsi collalerrl ofrighs. licenses, authoriw, etc.

CIN: U65990IIP20r?gf C099006
Notcr t0 flninclal rlatemenlr for the l€ar ehded !l March 2015
(A[ moub in INR lakhs, wless otheois staled)

56,2

56.8

56.9 Remonentlnn of Dlrector!
Remmdation or Sitinfi fecs paid or Drovided is disclosed id the Related party disclcurenote ]7.

56.5 ReslstrstloB obidned ftoDr otler fln[nchl secror regulators
RBI reaisEation ro : N'12.0M69
Compily Id€trtilicaliotr NMber (CIM : U65990UP2017FTC099006

56.6 Dkclosue of Petraltlei tunFsed bv RBI 8dd other reslator
Duilq rhe Ed flded March I 1. 2025 illd Mtrch 3 l. 2024, no Dmalris have bseD levied by any reslalor or the Company,

56.7 Relsled Party Tr{treactlon
Refs note 37 ofFinancial Sblements {br rel0led party transaclion disclosure.

ycar *ith dir€dors, KMP ild lheir r€latives

Psrtlculars 3l llcrch ?025 3l luarch 202.,

Nm-Cmvdible Debmture "IND BBB'Y POSITIVE "IND BBB'Y STABLE

Lons Teril Ba'* loails
"lNl) litsB'/ P()Sl l lvL and

"(RISII, BBB9STABLE
"lND BRB"/ STABLC snd "CRISIL

RARtr/SAAA' F

As at Ar aj
7n24

23,419.OO

6,251.00
13.?5

9.40
av@8e matuiiy (in notrths)
avtrage holding pqiod (j! hontls)
of bmefi cial cc&omic iottrest

ofloan

5,960.10

899.90

1,1A7.6n

310.52

(pro[t) s{rich vould be in@ed if coulspdios faiicd ro tu]fiI thEir obliaati@s udd
principal of swp ag€m€nls

agemol

of credh risk arisirg from swp
by the appli€ablE MFC lpon otsing into swnps

NEW

K

n

Q
c *
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Ar lrl Aa aiup o['pro]i[lotrt ln !tatcmetrt

-l
I r.224.25)l

{1.440.98t1
I 15.92 I

l l14q? I

698.66
915.55
168.98

126.43

tdw& NPA
made towds iucome bx ilet oidefeilcd td

provision atrd @trtingercies (Gratuity and Lave dcasb$flt)

d invGtm€ol

SiEdhula Ittlcr0credlt Prlvat€ Llmit€d
cIN: U65990UP2017PTC099006
Nots t0 fln|trchl rfatements lbr the verr ended 3l Mtrc[ 2025

(A[ moutrts in INR hkhs, udess otheflisc stated)

56.10

55,11 DrsEDmftomResil.t
DMjnq ihe ysr, the Cqmy bas lot akiM doM any amomt fiom R€setres

56.12 Conc€trtratlon oI d€posllq advance!, expdu$ snd NPAS

The Cmpily has not bko any deposits fiofr any parry dwfug rhe year @ded Mtuch 3l' 2025 ild March 31' 2024'

56.13 CmcctrlratloD of Advatre€!. ErpeDs€! & NPA'

Pidlcnlrrs
Ar al

ll llar.h 2024

229.00
n lroa

184,00

tr 12ntr

56.r4

Prdcdds 31 i

il,';l
lEt.5;
o.t90t

56.15

Prrtlculan
As atl At al

T^r,l Frn^silreh tnn f^nrmA ,.6untR 1447 I 2.45

56.16

56.17 Movemetrl ofNPA!$ek

(oet ofpiovirloD3) lo (%)

of NPA (Grosr)

duing the year

during lhe year

hakncs

ofNet NPA

duina tbsyeil

durinS thE ],ttr
bshnce

rr rrl
3l March 2025l 31 March 2024

Moremert ofprovBlotr! Ibr NPA (etcludltrg provl3lotrs oD standrrd .6rets)

Op@ing balance

Write-ofl / Wrjte-back of exc€ss provisims

Clollng bslstrce

I

t,213.24 
|

8.248.1s 
I

(9,472.40)l

48.ee I

5?4.58

1,036.40

(331.74)

1,213,21

55.18 Overaear A8selt thole wlth Joitrt Ventlres and Subddlarlcs

Nsme ol the Jolnt Ventue/ Subsldlary
Olher Parher ln

lh€.IV Coutry TotalAsrels

NAThe compmydcs ilot have anyjointvf,uc or subsidiaryabroad, hoc€, not applicable NA

56.19 oltibrlance Sbeet spvi ipoNor€d

The compmy dfts nothave anyoffbalilce sheet sPV spmsred.

Trede

pdMal l@ns

MSME
Corpoaate bdowds
Seniccs

As

1,441,20

9,420.84

10,197.15

61.79

t61.96

t,t12.69

1,r25.35

15,30

600.1 7

I,193.8 I

35:.78

1,141.2n

25.59

151.41

15.04

161,96



Slndhulr l{lcrocredla Prlvrte Ltnlted
CINr U65990UPt0r7FrC099006
Nd.r to linsnchl stNtemetrt! for thc yesr ended 31 MsrcL 2025
(All uoudB itr INR Lakhq unleEs otheNise stated)

55.20 DlslNue of Complslnti

rccelved tbe NBFC' from cuElomerr

55.21 recaiYed

56,25 ps51pe16psa1 o1"€yenue recogtrltlotr

Thde is no sisificrur orrccrrainry \\'hich rEquires posrpotr@cnl ofrcvcnrc rccognilion rs ri Mnrch 31, 20:5 rnd March I l, 2024.

56,23 p6g11s e1119 go6e 0D Soclal Seculty, 20!0 ('CODE') retrt ng to cmploye€ benetlb

The Code on Social Secuity,2020 ('Codc') rclating to mployee boEfirs duif,g cmplotment and po$-employndr b€n.6ts received Plesidcntisl asscnt;n Septmber, 2020. The

isiled. The CompmyMll assess lhe impact ofthc Code whd ir rcms inro €fi-ect aDd will rtrord ilyr€lated ihpacr in the p€riod the Code bccMcs cllcctive.

56.24 TradsrctloBs with tr0q-erccuttve

56,22 Dllclosue on frsud! pususdt to RBI Ma3l€r Dlrcctlon

froe is tro ftaud dctedcd dulng Sr ycar cDdcd Mnrch ll, 2025 rDd March ll, 2024

Nrme of non-ersullvc dlr6ctor Msrch 31,2025

Mr Y,shvsnt Malhota

M Sedccp Phanasgaonltr

2.451

6 001

5.411

4.36

6.2'l

6.54

r3.901 r?,1:

iltarch 31,

56.26 Detalls of Don-perfbrmlng flnanclal !$eb purcharraysold

iu! LlurPr rdi !v! j!,

56.27 vstue oflmports crlculated o! clF brsls

Tb6 Company bas not inpo(cd dy goods thErefore valuE ofimpofr on CIF basis is Nil, (As oil Mrch 31, 2024 - NiD.

56.28 Thse are no si$ilficnnr subsequent evflils rhat have ocilrred afier rhe rqoning period lill the dste ofapproval ofthesc financial stalemmb.

56.29 Inira croup Erpoeure

The cmpmy dH not have any Intragroup Exposurcs for lhe ysr ended March 3 l, 2025 atrd March 3 l, 2024.

56.10 Lo!trD to dlrectorq 3enlor omc€rs and rehllv€s ofdlr€ctorg

The Companyhar not provided ady loills to directors, senior ollisrs and relalives ofdirectors during the ydr ended March 31, 2025 and March 3 1, 2024

Cuf{m$ ComFlslits (At cedlllcd by mansgement ad reli€d by Audltori) rl Mrr.h 2ll2l

of @mplamt6

ofcomplainls

ofcomplainE

retrived duing Oc y@

redresicd

23

2,O19

2,O31

28

t,699

t,104

No. pending at tbe end tt 23

(c) Mnlntaltrabl. complaitrts recetved by lhc NBFCfrom ofllce ofOmbudsman

Mainbinable coDrplaints recev€d by thc NBFC fm ofrce of Ombudmm

of(s), No ofc@plaiols rcsolv€d in favou ofthc NBFC troh offcc of ombudsu
Ol(e),No ofcomplaiols rsolved lbrough Conciliatim^'l€diarioil/advisoris iss€dWotfice of
ombudsmd

(D No. ofa\Erds uimplmeDted with in the Stipulal€d riffe ( olher rban those aPp@led)

1

1

Groudr of complslutr, (i.e. complriutg
relatlng io) beglnnltrg ol ahe yeor

Number of
comploltrts

recelred dultrg
the ye0'

7o lncrease/
decreale ln the

number of
compldnlE recclved

over the prcvlous

Nuober ol
complslntr

p€ndlDg at the

eud ofthe yed

Of5, Dumber
of compl€lntg

Petrdlng
beyond 30

dayr

1 2 1 4 5 6

Uodatim of Rsaw@t rtrfid 82(

llndetior/disoute on dala(CIR) 1( 225 t(
464 t(

Diqibl rasaction 52

Sfli@
Othtrs 32:

R@ovry practics t lt I

I6tel 21 203i

3l-MaF24

I lbdatinn of Rebauntrt reord 60i I

I Ind,tion/.li.bilre 
^n 

darafCIR) l'l 36( l6

IBumce claim t0 264

Disibl tmaction l6l
It

Fraud bv staff
Recovfl mactic4 t le I

2E 169t 2i

*
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Stndhula Mlcrocredlt Prlvrte Limlted
CINr U55990uP20r7PTC099006
Not€r to flnrnchl ltrJcm€nls for lhe yesr end€d 31 Msrch 2025

(All mouts in INR ltkhs, udes otheffiis stated)

56J I Dlvergence ln A$el Clsrsncrtlon rnd Proi'lrlonlng

satisfiedi
(a) the addirional prwisi@tug requiremis ssssed by RBI (o Natimal Hosiog BaDIOTHB) in the cse of Hosing FioamE Compmies) exceedr 5 percft of the r$ded profb before w ard

impairmmt los m financial instnmmb for the refed€e pdio4 or

(b) the addirioDal crc$ NPAS id€nrified by RBLNBII exc€dj 5 perc@t of ihe repoilcd Grds NpA ftr the ref€rdce psiod,

No insp*tim @nducted bylhe RBI duitrg ibe finmcial yu etrded Match 31, 2025 md March 3l' 2024

56.32 Dlslosueon Modlfed Opidotr
ftc audrtd have exprcsscd s umodifi€d opinion for y€ar endEd Mtrch 31, 2025 & Mtrch 3I, 2024.

Sgctor Totd Erposur Groic NPls
o/o of Gross NPi

to Totrl Erporr(

(a) AgridlNe and allied activitis

(b) ltrduty
(c) Senices

(d) Per6onal Loans

(e) othtrs

"Trade
-lhsmred loans

-MSME

80,646,92

3,i12.9r

11,056.23

s,t72.56

426.O4

1,363.14

8.66

46.32

21.08

t.6904

o.26n4

o,42dt

o.45"1

56J4 Net Profll or Ia! for the year, prlor pedod ltems and chatrgs ln accountltrgpollcl€s:

The cmpmy has aalopted Indim Accouriog Slmdtrds (Ind AS) Dotified uder section l3l of rhe Companis Ad 2013 ('tbe Ad') red wilh tbe Cmpanies 0ndis Accouting Slandildt Ruls, 2015

2023, Also, lhc €ompmy bas takcn all the impad of prior Fdod irms durinS thEyw.

S6J5 Addltlonal dhcloru€! pururnl lo Annerur VIII ofMiilcr Dhecllon " nesenc Banl oflndh (Non.Brnkltrg I'Inatrclal Compsoy - Scrle Bssd Regulatlon) Dtr€ctlon!, 2011

Llsbllllles 3lde

As rt 3l Iurrch 2025 As st3l March 2024

AmouJ ouktsndtry
Amount

(1) Lods dd advdc€! availed bythcNBFC idelusile ofinte.esl ecmcd rberEd but notpaid:

(a) Dcbentu€s

(other than fallitrg \yilhid f}lc meaning oipublic dgposils)

(b) Dcferrsd Credils

(c)Tcm lrils (iocludes shortncm bonowings dd interes sesed)
Secu cd

Unsecu'ed

(d) Idrer{orporare loans snd botrovins

(e) Commercial Paper

(0 Public Deposits

(e) Oth6 hans (ECB)

(2) Brmkup of l(D abov€ (outsunding public dqNib inclusiw ofinlq6t accNed thtrem but trot paid):

(a) h the form of Unsecued debntu*

O) In lhe fom ofpdlly sccwed d€benNes i.e., debenlures where lhcre is a shorfall fu the value ofsecurity

(c) o[rer public dcpshs

12,714.8i

798.09

.t9, L l l.0{
r.27

6,240.72

9,837.9t

600.00

?4,681.71

t,856.44

a

Totsl GrGgScctor

60,510,09

16,612,61

t2,@6,62
4,405.51
1 487 2t

49,63

t4.66

0,087o

o.9904

Indusry
Swic6
Pqs@al haDs
Oihss
.Trade

-Uns@red lMs

alliEd adivitios

NE\TW,,
'\,

o*

t1 o (,
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Stodhulr Mlcrocredlt Prlnte Lftolt€d
cINr U65990UP'0I?PTC099006
Nds to rlnrnchlfrtcmeltc for the yesr e[d.d 3l Merch 2025
(All @o&b id INR Ial,hs, ul6 olheilise stated)

A8latr rlde
Ar st.U M{ic! A! rtil Mecl

(3) Brsk up of Loes md AdEncs;

a) Seffe4 FN6
b) U6ed!ed, sss

r,487.2t

69_215.73

426.M

94.052.43

Tottl 10,702.91 c4a7a.t1

Bek w of tn&d Ass4
L6s as* fucluding lcre @dc udd s@dry dsttdr

lms
opsatfug lqse

Stek d hir€ inclDding hire cbdgs ede sudry debtd8:

d hir.
RcpNssed assd

Oihn l&Ds @ulitrg towdds sssct filmcing adiviris
whqc atsab havo bEd rspdscssrd

Lms oths $ad (a) abovc

Brerkup ofinrcsmdb (ldg{@ unquoted equity)

Itrv6h@ts
l. Quoted
(i) ShareE

(a) Equrty

(b) heferdce
(ii) DEb@ues dd B@dr

(iii) Unib ofmutld ftsds

(iv) G('@dt Secuitis
(v) Olh6

2, Unqu*d
(i) Sharcs

(a) Equity

(b) Prcfc{cncc

Debmws dd Boals

of muMl ffmds

Gwffi@tSeruitis
Oth6s

l. Quded
Sh{es :

(s) Bquity

(b) hofddce
DdbmNs md Bonds

Ijnilr of DuMl frrnds

cov@m6t sccurltlB

Othss

Shares

(a) Equity

(b) Prefsence

DebmNres and Bmds

Utrib ofmutul ftods

Gffidmmt smririB
Olhss

Tolsl
Related pnies

Sutridiaries

Compuies u the umo group

olhd r€lated pdies

Odcr tho rclatcd putiq
lotal t-d6t.or 67-421.fl1 6t_oB_06

Cetegory

1 . Relaled pdies

(a) Sub6idifli6

(b) Compdies in lhe sa6€ group

(c) Olhc related pmies

2. Olhd thd tclated ptrtis

Selured

425.19

Urrecored

92,295,t2

ToIel

92,120,31

Totrl 4Zt.t9 92,293.12 92.720.31

RoC
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7l Inveltor 6ouD-wise clsssifistion of all hvsmcnb (cMfll and

Foi the year ended
31 March 2025

l'd theye|r ended
3l Mrrct 2024

Bookvilut
(Net of Piovldodsl

Market valuc i

Brdkup ot frlr
Book vtlo(

(Net ol
Prodsloo3l

Braskup or frll vslut
Mrrket vrlue

Crlegory

L. Relatedpdies

Aa at 31 Marci
lnaa

As at 3l Marci
2nu(8) Other iilfomation

64.29

15.30 167.96

1,441.20

(i) Cros Non-Pldoming Asee

(a) Related pdier
(b) Oth6 the rclat€d pdios

(ii) Nd Non-PerfofriDg As*b
(a) Related parties

(b) Olhd lhd related panis

riiil Assds acouired on stisfactioD ofdebl

Note$
I As defined itr pna8raph 5.1.26 ofthc RBINBFC dir@.id
2 ProvisiorinSnoms shau be applicablc asprcsibed in tbesc Dircdions

(5) above,

56.36 Deblls of llnatrciig of prrent company products

Thc Compeydcs'thavc ptrdt Company, bdc€ this clausc i3 notappli$ble.

Stndhul! lvlcrocredlt Prlvste Llnlted
cINr U65990UP20r7I'TC099006
Nols to llnsnclil stttements forlle vear etrdsd !l Msrch 2025

(All amounb in INR hkhs, ules otherwise swed)

57 Trrnrferred fltraDclal ertet tbat are not derecqBlzed h tbelr endrery

ils*iated liab,!ties.

\\'bich this br$cb EM€d and seektl8 lime io cure iltis brEch.

Trrrrferred lhanclal assl fhal are bot det€cofnL€d ld thelt enth.tv

dsecoshed financial a$els :

60 ldst.nc$ ofbrerch of covensnl of lorn rvailed or d€bt s€curltles ksued

Bresch ofcovenant As atl 
^s 

atl
1l l{rr.h 1ot5l ll illstch 20241 I April 2021

Nrmh.r 6fil<t,n,F( r<nnl

am.unr involved fil.lR if, Lakhs) ?6187 001

Thse are !o douDt Nhich se required to be Eansffied ro the inv€$or edu€tional aild p(otection fisd by th€ Company as at March ll, 2025, atrd March 11, 2024 and April 01, 2023.

A ps ou axach€d repon of€v€n date

Pardculili
1l Mrrrh 2021 :l Mrrch 2021 I ADrll 202:

Securltlr|tlotrr
Crying amoutof$e resfcftcd asset (hcld as collateal)
a,#ild 

'milnt 
of 

'*(Mialed 
liahililie\

Pertlculsrs For lhe y.arl
endedl

For lhe yrar
ended

Mrr.h il 202i

':lffl 6,A22.78

682 2A

Yljay Kumar

Me$brshipNo : 092671

For S S Kothart Mrhta & Cc LLP
Charlered Accountrnlr

For sud on behElfofth€ Borrd ofDlrtctor3
Slndhuja Mleyocredlt Prlvale l,imh€d

trm ReClsballoo No. 0007561t / NSOM4I

\ ,nt,/ -r1.'l r.., t. --r\"/
6dP- l.YLt-s''e'tc'- t:L,a'>'

Ahtl3he&a Knmar
Managing Dr€c10
DINr 029?25?9

,rL
""t-A 

') "\

N

i.'-, "/ 2
Mrlklt Slngh DldlslN
Whole Time Djreclor
DIN: 07957488
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Place : New Delhi
Date: Jue 02,2025

Phce i Noidg
DaE: Jme 02, 2025

Placc : Noida
Dale: Jue 02.2025


